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ANNUAL REPORT 

of the Board of Directors 

according to 

R.N.S.C. / F.S.A. Regulation no. 1 / 2006  

for the financial year 2016 
 

Report date: 31.12.2016 

 

Name of the company: SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A. 

Headquarters: Dolj county, Craiova city, Tufănele street, no. 1, postal code 200767  

Phone/fax number: 0251-419.343; 0251-419.340 

Tax Identification Number: RO 4175676 

Trade Register Number: J16/1210/30.04.1993 

  Number in R.N.S.C. (C.N.V.M.) Registry: PJR09SIIR/160003/14.02.2006  

Regulated market where the issued securities are traded: Bucharest Stock Exchange - Premium 

category 

Subscribed and paid-in share capital: 58,016,571 lei 

The main characteristics of securities issued by the company: S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. shares are 

nominative, issued in dematerialized form and give equal rights to their holders. The nominal value 

of one share is 0.1 lei. 

 

1. ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY ACTIVITY 
 

Societatea de Investiţii Financiare OLTENIA S.A. - Romanian legal 

person – incorporated as a commercial company on shares on 01.11.1996 

according to Law no. 133/1996, has the Tax Identification Number RO 4175676 

and is registered in the Trade Register under no. J16/1210/30.04.1993 (Trade 

Register Office attached to Dolj Court). 
 

According to the articles of incorporation, the company has the following object 

of activity:  
 

- administration and management of shares in commercial companies for 

which own shares were issued, according to Property Certificates and 

Privatization Nominative Coupons subscribed by citizens, according to the 

provisions of art. 4 paragraph 6 of the Law no. 55/1995; 
 

- management of own securities portfolio and making investments in 

securities in accordance with the regulations in force;  
 

- other similar and adjacent activities, according to the regulations in force,  
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as well as of administration of own assets.  

 

Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders dated 25.08.2016 decided to 

supplement the activity object of the company with "risk management". This 

change took place at the request of FSA to align the articles of incorporation of the 

company  to the requirements of Law no. 74/2015 - on investment fund managers - 

and FSA Regulation no. 10/2015 - on the administration of alternative investment 

funds. 

The new Articles of Incorporation - approved in E.G.M.S. dated 25.08.2016 

- it is transmitted to F.S.A. for approval. 

 

Subscribed and paid in share capital, registere on 31.12.2016, was of 

58,016,571 lei, divided in 580,165,714 shares, with the nominal value of 0.1 

lei/share.  

During the reporting period, S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. developed its activity in 

compliance with the legal provisions contained in:  
 

- Law no. 31/1990 R, as subsequently amended and supplemented; 

- Law no. 297/2004, as subsequently amended and supplemented;  

- R.N.S.C. (F.S.A.) Regulations no. 15/2004; 

- R.N.S.C. (F.S.A.) Regulations no. 1/2006; 

- F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014;                           

- F.S.A. Regulations no. 2/2016;  

- Code of Bucharest Stock Exchange; 

- Code of Corporate Governance of Bucharest Stock Exchange; 

- the other normative acts concerning the matter; 

and 

- Articles of Incorporation (Statute and Company Contract). 
 

The accomplishment of the storage activities provided by the legislation and 

regulations of F.S.A. was provided, in 2016, by RAIFFEISEN BANK S.A. 
 

The evidence of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. shareholders is kept by S.C. 

DEPOZITARUL CENTRAL S.A. Bucharest.   

The shares of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. are included in the Premium Tier of 

Bucharest Stock Exchange, being negotiable and freely transferable, in compliance 

with legal provisions.  

 During the financial year 2016 there has been no significant merger or 

reorganization of the Societăţii de Investiţii Financiare OLTENIA S.A. or of the 
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companies controlled by it. (Voltalim S.A. Craiova absorbed Lemcor S.A. Craiova and 

CM1 S.A. Craiova, but this three companies do not have an important share in the 

managed portfolio). 

 

ECONOMIC FRAMEWORK  
 

2016 was, economically, a good year. According to data published by the 

National Institute of Statistics, economic growth in 2016 was 4.8%, the highest 

growth recorded by Romania after 2008. 

This growth is the highest in the EU. (According to IMF estimates, growth in 

Romania will be the largest in Europe, followed by Ireland). 

But this growth is unbalanced among regions, the capital being the engine of 

economic growth - with an advance of 5.5%. GDP in Bucharest - Ilfov is more than 

double compared to each region. 

The main drivers of economic growth remain domestic consumption, supported 

by economic policy mix, and investments. 

Although the economy of Romania has performed, political events - 2016 was 

an election year with parliamentary elections in December – and the unstable 

international environment (elections in the USA, BREXIT, events impacting oil 

prices) have influenced a small market such as Bucharest Stock Exchange, so this was 

not a spectacular evolution in 2016. 

The average daily transactions were 8.11 million euros, up by only 2.78%, 

while the BET index of the 10 most liquid shares increased by only 1.15% to 7.085,85 

points (+ 0.78% pegged to the euro). 

BET Plus index recorded the best performance among local indices, with a plus 

of 1.74%. BET-FI index recorded losses of 1.87% and BET-NG of 2.97%. 

A positive event to report was the first private IPO concluded successfully in 

recent years, respectively MedLife listing. 

During 2016 also took place the sale by OP of a package of shares issued by 

OMV PETROM S.A., by Fondul Proprietatea. 

The two deals concluded successfully demonstrated the high ability of 

Bucharest Stock Exchange in absorbing securities issued by quality companies. 

The major challenge remains to increase the level of liquidity in the stock 

market, despite listings in the recent years (ROMGAZ, ELECTRICA) and significant 

package sales of Fondul Proprietatea, it fails to exceed seven to eight million euros 
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per trading session.  

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. manages a portfolio of shares listed exclusively on the 

Romanian stock market. 

Illiquidity of Bucharest Stock Exchange, modest increases in stock indices, low 

interest of investors in the listed securities, episodes of volatility, all these have 

negatively influenced the activity of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. but despite this unfavorable 

context, we managed to conclude the year 2016 in terms of profitability succeeding to 

achieve the indicators approved by the Revenue and Expenditure Budget. 

 
 

1.1. a) PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT 

 

The main objective of the activity of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. is managing a 

diversified portfolio of assets able to ensure a steady stream of income, preservation and 

long-term growth of capital in order to meet the interests of its shareholders. 

Asset allocation strategy is designed to maximize performance of the managed 

portfolio, in terms of prudentiality established by the rules incidental to the functioning 

of society. 

By the activity performed, we aim to improve resource allocation, to achieve 

high returns for the invested capital and to develop the company by increasing the value 

of managed assets. 

 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. also continued in 2016 the restructuring policy of the 

portfolio by reducing the number of holdings. From a number of 56 issuers 

existing in the portfolio on 31.12.2015, a number of 52 issuers are recorded on 

31.12.2016, the nominal value of shares packages being 522,663,899 lei, with a 

market value of 1,514,995,674 lei, with 189.86% higher than the nominal. 

Evaluation of assets of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. is made under Regulation F.S.A. no. 

9 / 2014. 
  

During the year 2016, S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. exit from the shareholder of 

5 issuers, as follows: 
 

a) by merger: 
 

 Voltalim SA Craiova absorbed: 

 Lemcor SA Craiova 
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 CM1 SA Craiova 

 

b) by sale on the stock market: 
 

 GASTRONOM SA Buzau 

 SIBEX STOCK EXCHANGE SA Sibiu 
 

c) by sale – purchase contracts of shares, closed companies type: 

 MIRFO TRADING SA Târgu-Jiu 
 

 During the analyzed period, one issuer entered the portfolio: SIF 

TRANSILVANIA SA.  
 

  

The structure of the shares portfolio on 31.12.2016, according to the market 

where they are traded and the modality they enter in the calculation of the net  

asset, appears as follows: 

31.12.2016 
 

No. 

item 

Portfolio structure 

 

Issuers Nominal value of shares 

packages 

Market value of shares 

packages calculated 

according to F.S.A. 

Regulations 

no. 9/2014 

 

  Nr. 

co. 

% - lei - % - lei - % 

        

1.  Companies quoted B.V.B. 17 32.69 231,131,997 44.22 784,142,209 51.76 

2.  Companies quoted - AeRO (B.V.B.) 12 23.08 75,993,463 14.54 177,114,014 11.69 

3.  Companies listed and not 
traded 

2 3.85 8,529,222 1.63 10,033,107 0.66 

4.  Closed companies 16 30.77 205,847,745 39.38 543,706,344 35.89 

5.  
Companies in reorganization, 

judicial liquidation 
5 9.62 1,161,472 0.22 0 0 

 TOTAL 52 100.00 522,663,899 100.00 1,514,995,674 100.00 

 

  
  

From the analysis of the portfolio structure, it is noticed that 64.11 % of the 

market value (calculated according to F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014) is given by the 

value of the packages of shares listed, compared with 67.14 % at the end of the year 

2015.  
 

In S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. portfolio is found the shareholding in the Banca 

Comercială Română (B.C.R.*Romanian Commercial Bank), considered as liquid 
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shareholding because of the bank being again on profits and cleaning the portfolio 

of bad debts.  
 

The value of the shareholding in the share capital of the Romanian 

Commercial Bank – 388,952,975 lei - calculated in accordance with F.S.A. 

Regulation no. 9/2014, represent 71.54% of the market value of share packages 

holded in “closed” type companies.  
 

Adding the value of this  shareholding  to thet market value of the listed 

companies, we find that 89.79% of the portfolio is liquid. 
 

We note that the market value of the listed and traded shares is calculated in 

accordance with F.S.A. Regulation no. 9/2014 and represents the closing price of the 

market section considered the main market or the reference price provided in other 

systems than the regulated markets, including alternative systems related to the day to 

which the calculation is made.    

 

 The structure of the portfolio by categories of holdings is: 
 

Quota held from 

the issuer`s total 

share capital 

 

31.12.2015 

 

31.12.2016 

No. 

sc. 

Nominal value 

of the 

packages 

- lei - 

Weight in the 

total portfolio 

of shares 

% 

No. 

sc. 

Nominal value 

of the packages 

- lei - 

Weight in the 

total portfolio of 

shares 

% 

       

0.01% -  5% 12 156,701,782 29.55 13 188,177,196 36.00 

5.01% - 33% 30 284,024,139 53.55 27 246,971,050 47.25 

33.01% - 50% 2 8,375,438 1.58 1 2,451,093 0.47 

50.01% - 100% 12 81,249,358 15.32 11 85,064,560 16.28 

TOTAL 56 530,350,717 100.00 52 522,663,899 100.00 

  

 

A slight decrease is  noticed  in the  number of portfolio  holdings  in   which 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. holds a quota below 33% of the share capital, from 

42 on 31.12.2015, to 40 on 31.12.2016. 
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The main sectors of activities represented in the portfolio on 31.12.2016 are: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

 

 

 



 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 



 11 

The finances-banks-insurances sector, the best represented in the portfolio, has a 

share of  35.32% of the total nominal value of the portfolio, respectively 46.40% of 

the market value.  

 Regarding the market value of the portfolio of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., the first two 

sectors (“finance, banks, insurances” and „oil resources and related services”), as a share, 

represent 58.47%. These are areas where S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. has invested heavily in 

recent years.  

 S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. is shareholder to the most important 3 banks of the 

system, in terms of market share: Banca Comercială Română, BANCA 

TRANSILVANIA S.A. Cluj-Napoca şi BRD GROUPE SOCIETE GENERALE S.A. 

Bucharest.  

 During 2016, the value of the shareholding in BANCA TRANSILVANIA S.A. 

Cluj-Napoca increased, the number of shares held on 31.12.2016 was higher by 

20.48% of the 31.12.2015. 

 In  BRD GROUPE SOCIETE GENERALE S.A. Bucharest, the number of 

shares decreased by 19.41%. 

 Shareholder decrease in BRD GROUPE SOCIETE GENERALE S.A. is due to 

the decision to divest from this issuer in order to obtain liquidities for the dividend 

policy achievement. The interest for the issuer BRD GROUPE SOCIETE 

GENERALE S.A. remains unchanged and, to the extent that we have the necessary 

liquidity, we will invest in BRD shares in order to strengthen shareholding. 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. strategy is to maintain the high shareholdings in 

banking, considering that in Romania the degree of financial intermediation is still 

low, so the banking market has growth potential.  

The positive development of profitability indicator of the banking system in 

Romania in the past two years (2015, 2016) leads us to be optimistic and maintain 

a high exposure of the managed portfolio in this sector.  
 

The activity of portfolio companies – particularly those in which we hold 

controlling or majority holdings – was constantly monitored, the main objectives 

pursued being: 

- assessing the real potential of companies;  

- estimating the necessary investment for business development; 

- improving the economic and financial results; 

- promoting an effective management;  

- establishing arrangements for the eventual recovery of shareholdings.  

 Exercise of shareholder duties conferred by Law no. 31/1990, as 

subsequesntly amended and supplemented, was conducted through representatives 
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in the General Shareholders Meetings.  
 

 S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. was actively involved in the management of companies – 

where the share of participation in the share capital allowed it– seeking solutions to 

reduce expenses, to identify new sales markets, etc.  
 

Through representatives in the administration boards, S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 

conducted an intense activity of analysis, monitoring and management of the 

portfolio companies in which it holds a majority stake, in order to preserve the 

patrimonies of the companies concerned and to improve the economic indicators.  

On 31.12.2016, S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. held majority stakes in 11 companies:  
 

Item 

No.  

Name of the company Share in the total 

assets of  

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A.  

- % - 

Holding percentage 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A.  

- % - 

1.  S.C. COMPLEX HOTELIER S.A. DAMBOVITA 0.41 99.94 

2.  S.C. VOLTALIM S.A. CRAIOVA 1.78 99.19 

3.  S.C. MERCUR S.A. CRAIOVA 0.90 93.37 

4.  S.C. GEMINA TOUR S.A. RM.VILCEA 0.12 88.29 

5.  S.C. ARGUS S.A. CONSTANTA 5.89 86.21 

6.  S.C. FLAROS S.A. BUCHAREST 2.51 81.04 

7.  S.C. CONSTRUCTII FEROVIARE S.A. CRAIOVA 0.02 77.50 

8.  S.C. UNIVERS S.A. RM.VALCEA 0.79 73.75 

9.  S.C. PROVITAS S.A. BUCHAREST 0.30 70.28 

10.  S.C. TURISM S.A. PUCIOASA 0.30 69.22 

11.  S.C. ALIMENTARA S.A. SLATINA 0.21 52.24 

TOTAL 13.23 - 

 

 During 2016 the company MERCURY S.A. Craiova, where S.I.F OLTENIA S.A. 

is a major shareholder, holding 93.37% of the share capital, took place a wide program of 

modernization of the shopping center, which required significant investment efforts.  

 The investment program was conducted by bank loans and shareholder 

contributions, the company launched an Initial Public Offer of sale in order to raise the 

share capital.  

 S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., as majority shareholder, has supported the company in this 

process, being aware of the need for such investment which brought the Shopping Center to 

the level of competitors, the company having significant potential given that the site is based 

in the civic center of Craiova.   

 Following the decision of the Board of Administrators of  S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 

made in December 2016, in January 2017 it was transferred the sum of 15,000,000 lei for the 

share capital increase. 
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Evolution of shares portfolio during the period 

2013 - 2016 

 2013  2014  2015  2016  
2016 / 2015 

% 

Number of companies in portfolio    71  66  56  52  92.86 

Portfolio nominal value               - lei - 
 

578,206,090 

  

546,332,934 

  

530,350,717 

  

522,663,899 

  

98.55 

 -lei- % -lei- % -lei- % -lei- %  

Portfolio market value 1,683,968,797 100.00 1,547,521,392 100.00 1,682,125,271 100.00 1,514,995,674 100.00 90.06 

Closed companies value 630,950,781 37.47 486,763,514 31.45 552,671,449 32.86 543,706,344 35.89 98.38 

Listed companies value 1,053,018,016 62.53 1,060,757,878 68.55 1,129,453,822 67.14 971,289,330 64.11 86.00 

Net Asset Value                1,604,003,245  1,543,555,299  1,622,765,774  1,494,899,450  92.12 

Unitary Net Asset Value     2.7647  2.6605  2.7971  2.5767  92.12 
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During 2016, the shares portfolio has experienced, in summary, the 

following evolution:  

- the number of companies was reduced by 7.14% (from 56 companies – to 

52); 

- nominal value of the shares portfolio recorded a slight decrease by 1.45%, as 

a result of the opportunity to exploit some of shareholdings;   

- the market value of the portfolio was depreciated by 9.94%.  

 

 1. 1. b) INVESTMENTS AND TRANSACTIONS 
 

During the period January - December 2016 were carried out transactions of 

shares sales, mainly to obtain cash needed to pay dividends to shareholders – 

amounting to 75.4 mill. lei but also to optimize the portfolio structure, taking into 

account the opportunities on the market. Among the shares packages that were the 

subject of selling, we mention: 
 

 - BRD Groupe Societe Generale S.A. Bucharest 

 - C.N.T.E.E. TRANSELECTRICA S.A. Bucharest 

 - GASTRONOM S.A. Buzău 

 - SIBEX STOCK EXCHANGE SA Sibiu 
 

 Selling value of shares was 76.26 mill. lei. Net profit after selling 

transactions was  55.25 mill. lei, respectively 72.4% of the selling price (representing 

2.6 times the purchase prices).  
  

In the same period under review, were made total investments in shares in 

the amount of 15.80 mill. lei.  

The most important investments on the capital market were made on 

securities issued by:   
 

 - S.N.G.N. ROMGAZ S.A. Mediaş 

- OMV PETROM S.A. Bucharest 

- ANTIBIOTICE S.A. Iași. 
 

 Also, on the secondary market were acquired, under a sale and purchase 

agreement, shares issued by TURISM LOTUS FELIX S.A. Băile Felix. 
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 The amounts allocated to investments (15.80 mil. lei) represent 20.72% of 

those obtained from disinvestment (76.26 mil. lei). 

 As mentioned, the amounts obtained from disinvestment were largely 

directed to payment of dividends.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Year 

 

- mil. lei - 

2013 280.48 

2014 132.82 

2015 99.97 

2016 15.80 

TOTAL 529.07 

 

 

During the mandate of the Board of Administrators (2013 - 2016) were made 

total investment of 529.07 mil. lei (117 mil. euro), representing a high financial effort 

to the company. 

 

1.1. c) MONEY MANAGEMENT TOOLS 
  

 The placement policy of cash reserves was prudent and pursued the 
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diversification of risk both by using several types of investment instruments, and 

by collaborating with several bank institutions. 
 

 In the year 2016, partner banks were: BANCA COMERCIALĂ ROMÂNĂ, 

BANCA TRANSILVANIA, RAIFFEISEN BANK.  
 

 The money reserves were placed, after a rigorous analysis of the opportunities 

offered by money market, in deposits in lei and foreign currency. They hold a 

weight of 1.56% of the total assets administered. 
 

 The placements were generally made on short terms, on different maturity 

dates, in order to have provided necessary liquidities for the payment of due debts 

and to diminish, also in this way, the investment risk. 

 

   

 

 

 

The amounts placed in money tools on 31.12.2016 were of  27,975,673 lei - 

conform datelor de activ, according to data from asset, including interests to be 

cashed. 
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1.1. d) STRUCTURE OF ASSETS MANAGED ON 31.12.2016 
 

On 31.12.2016, the value of the managed assets – calculated  in accordance with 

F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014 – is of 1,570,989,901 lei, representing a depreciation 

by 8.03% of the value recorded on 31.12.2015 (1,708,098,544 lei). 
 

31.12.2016 
 

No. 

Item 

Asset type Value 

- lei - 

Weight 

- % - 

1 Quoted shares 971,289,330 61.83 

2 Not quoted shares  543,706,344 34.61 

3 Bank deposits 24,466,476 1.56 

4 OPCVM and/or AOPC securities 2,386,705 0.15 

5 Reserves 3,509,197 0.22 

6 Other assets 25,631,849 1.63 

TOTAL 1,570,989,901 100.00 
 

 

 

 

It is found that the shares quoted represent 61.83% of the assets managed. 

The financial assets such as shares have a market value of 1,514,995,674 lei, 

respectively 96.44% of the total assets, representing 90.06% of the value recorded 

on 31.12.2015 (of 1,682,125,271 lei).   
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The main 10 stakes in the portfolio 

 31.12.2016                        31.12.2015 
 

No. 

Item. 
Issuer 

Shares No. 

SIF OLTENIA 

SA 

Market value 

Weight in 

the issuer`s 
share 

capital 

Weight in the 
total asset of 

SIF 

OLTENIA SA 

Weight in the 
net asset of 

SIF 

OLTENIA SA 

Shares No. 

SIF OLTENIA 

SA 

Market value 

Weight in 

the issuer`s 

share capital 

Weight in the 
total asset of 

SIF 

OLTENIA SA 

Weight in the 
net asset of 

SIF 

OLTENIA SA 

1.  
BANCA COMERCIALĂ 

ROMÂNĂ S.A. Bucharest 
1,023,534,303 388,952,975 6.2973 24.7585 26.0187 1,023,534,303 395,046,018 6.2973 23.1278 24.3440 

2.  
OMV PETROM S.A. 

Bucharest 
700,500,277 182,830,572 1.2367 11.6379 12.2303 688,557,177 199,681,581 1.2156 11.6903 12.3050 

3.  
BRD GROUPE SOCIETE 

GENERALE S.A. Bucharest 
15,142,850 179,897,058 2.1729 11.4512 12.0341 18,790,831 227,369,055 2.6963 13.3112 14.0112 

4.  
BANCA TRANSILVANIA 

S.A. Cluj-Napoca 
40,936,647 97,633,903 1.1228 6.2148 6.5311 33,975,468 82,560,387 1.1228 4.8335 5.0876 

5.  ARGUS S.A. Constanţa 30,844,568 92,533,704 86.2050 5.8902 6.1900 30,843,518 90,679,943 86.2021 5.3088 5.5880 

6.  

C.N.T.E.E. 

TRANSELECTRICA 

Bucharest 

2,823,742 82,453,266 3.8521 5.2485 5.5156 3,949,105 115,116,411 5.3874 6.7394 7.0938 

7.  SNTGN TRANSGAZ  Mediaş 180,873 53,176,662 1.5362 3.3849 3.5572 180,873 50,101,821 1.5362 2.9332 3.0874 

8.  ANTIBIOTICE S.A. Iaşi 92,389,446 48,042,512 13.7620 3.0581 3.2138 90,784,446 48,297,325 13.5229 2.8275 2.9762 

9.  FLAROS S.A Bucharest 1,232,894 39,452,608 81.0386 2.5113 2.6391 1,232,894 48,082,866 81.0386 2.8150 2.9630 

10.  
SNGN ROMGAZ S.A. 

Mediaş 
1,551,729  38,793,225 0.4026 2.4693 2.5950 1,225,760 33,340,672 0.3180 1.9519 2.0546 

 TOTAL  1,203,766,485 - 76.6247 80.5249  1,290,276,079 - 75.5386 79.5108 
 

Total asset    1,570,989,901     1,708,098,544  

Net asset     1,494,899,450     1,622,765,774 
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The market value on 31.12.2016 of the first 10 issuers present in the 

portfolio represents 76.62% of the total asset of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., calculated 

in accordance with F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014. 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. increased its stake, compared to 31.12.2015, in the 

share capital of: 
 

- OMV PETROM S.A. Bucharest 

- BANCA TRANSILVANIA S.A. Cluj Napoca 

- ANTIBIOTICE S.A. Iaşi 

- SNGN ROMGAZ S.A. Mediaş 
 

In order to achieve the profit indicators, as well as to ensure the available 

amounts necessar to the dividents payment, packages of shares were sold to issuers 

like BRD GROUPE SOCIETE GENERALE S.A. Bucharest, C.N.T.E.E. 

TRANSELECTRICA Bucharest, thus it decreased the rate of participation to their 

share capital.  

 

1.1. e) NET ASSET EVOLUTION  
 

 With a value of 2.5767 lei on 31.12.2016, net asset per unit shows a decrease 

with 7.88% of the value registered on 31.12.2015 (2.7971 lei). 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

The evaluation of SIF OLTENIA SA assets is made according to the F.S.A. 

Regulations no. 9/2014. 
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1.1. f) EVOLUTION OF S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. SHARES AT 

BUCHAREST STOCK EXCHANGE  
 

The shares of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. were traded, at the end of the year, with a 

discount of – 36.74 % compared to the unitary net asset value. 
 

The closing price on 30.12.2016 – the last trading day of the year 2016 – for 

a SIF 5 share was of 1.6300 lei, which represents 96.45% of the closing price  of 

the year 2015 – of 1.6900 lei. 
 

As a whole, the situation of closing prices in the last three years appears, for 

the five S.I.F.s, as follows: 

 Closing price 

30.12.2016 

Closing price 

30.12.2015 

Closing price 

30.12.2014 

30.12.2016 

/ 

30.12.2015 

S.I.F. BANAT CRIŞANA S.A. 1.8480 1.6880 1.3030 109.48 

S.I.F. MOLDOVA S.A. 0.7800 0.7860 1.5910 99.24 

S.I.F. TRANSILVANIA S.A. 0.2500 0.2735 0.2462 91.41 

S.I.F. MUNTENIA S.A. 0.6560 0.7440 0.8810 88.17 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 1.6300 1.6900 1.6700 96.45 

 

It appears that only  S.I.F. BANAT CRIŞANA S.A. registered a growth of 

quotation in 2016. 
 

 Total number of traded shares: 48,037,676; 

 Transactions value: 73,770,292 lei; 

 Average trading price: 1.5367 lei;  

 Market capitalization  of  S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. on 30.12.2016 was of  

945,670,114 lei (208 mil. EUR).   

  31.12.2013 31.12.2014 31.12.2015 
*
 31.12.2016 

 

Asset Value                            - lei - 1,742,909,601 1,620,289,005 1,708,098,544 1,570,989,901 

 

Net Asset Value                      - lei - 1,604,003,245 1,543,555,299 1,622,765,774 1,494,899,450 

 

Unitary Net Asset Value         - lei - 2.7647 2.6605 2.7971 2.5767 

B.V.B.  Quotation                     - lei - 

(closing price on last trading day of 

the year)  

 

 

1.9840 

 

 

1.6700 

 

 

1.6900 

 
1.6300 

B.V.B. Quotation/ Unitary Net 

Asset Value                                          

- % - 71.76 62.77 60.42 63.26 

Discount                                      - % - - 28.24 - 37.23 - 39.58 - 36.74 
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* We mention that the financial data for the calculation of net asset on 

31.12.2015 were determined in accordance with Regulation no. 4/2011 regarding 

the Accounting Regulations compliant with the Directive IV – of the European 

Economic Communities applicable to authorized entities, regulated and supervised 

by C.N.V.M.  

Where would be applied Norm no. 39 of F.S.A. / 2015 for the application of 

Accounting Regulations compliant with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards, applicable to authorized entities, regulated and supervised by the 

Financial Supervisory Authority from the Instruments and financial investments 

sector, unitary net asset value would have been all of 2.7971 lei, the difference 

being minimal between the net asset R.C.R. – 1,622,765,774 lei, compared to 

1,622,769,712 lei – I.F.R.S.  

 
 

1.1.1. GENERAL ASSESSMENT ELEMENTS: 
 

a) PROFIT 

Gross profit registered on 31.12.2016 affected also by provision established 

for the participation fund to profit of the staff, of the effective and administrative 

management of the company, is of 118,005,088 lei. After rcording a corporate 

income tax of 16,733,711 lei, resulted a net profit of 101,271,377 lei, higher with 

0.89% to the net profit provided in the Budget of Revenues and Expenditures for 

the year 2016.  

 

b) TURNOVER 

Acording to the specific activity, S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. recorded  total incomes 

of 150,471,930 lei. 

 

c) EXPORT – not applicable. 
 

 

d) COSTS 

 

Total expenditures are, on 31.12.2016, of  32,466,842 lei. 
 

According to the specific activity, the main expenditure groups are: 

- commissions, fees, administration and supervision taxes – 2,267,755 lei;  
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- other operating expenses        – 30,199,087 lei;  

of which:  - expenses with salaries and other staff expenses  

   – 12,034,806 lei;  

- amortisation provisions and value adjustments  

expenses           – 17,018,325 lei. 
 

The expenses of the company are largely covered by the dividends received 

from portfolio companies.    

  

e) % OF MARKET SHARE – not applicable. 
 

f) LIQUIDITY 
 

On 31.12.2016, liquidities  of  S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. - according to the balance 

sheet data – were of 27,975,673 lei, of which 24,466,476 lei representing  87.46% - 

placed in bank deposits. 

1.1.2. ASSESSMENT OF THE COMPANY TECHNICAL LEVEL 

DESCRIPTION OF MAIN PRODUCTS MADE AND/OR SERVICES 

PROVIDED 
 

a) MAIN OUTLET MARKETS – not applicable  
 

b) SHARE OF EACH CATEGORY OF PRODUCTS OR 

     SERVICES IN INCOMES AND IN THE TOTAL TURNOVER 
 

 

Note: The Indexes are presented under IFRS reporting conditions, on the entire period 

 
 

c) NEW PRODUCTS TAKEN INTO ACCOUNT IN THE FUTURE 

FINANCIAL YEAR – not applicable 
 

1.1.3. TECHNICAL-MATERIAL ASSESSMENT OF THE SUPPLY 

ACTIVITY (DOMESTIC SOURCES, SOURCES FROM IMPORT) 
 

Name of indicator 2013  2014  2015  2016  
 -lei- % -lei- % -lei- % -lei- % 

TOTAL INCOMES of which: 199,782,243 100.00 140,220,321 100.00 187,332,371 100.00 150,471,930 100.00 
- Incomes from financial 
assets  

40,662,521 20.35 44,554,682 31.77 29,501,952 15.75 44,249,147 29.41 

- Earnings from disposal of 
financial investments 

150,004,872 75.08 82,724,646 59.00 55,479,287 29.62 55,253,217 36.72 

- Interest income 1,148,033 0.57 469,278 0.33 303,769 0.16 53,278 0.04 
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Technical and material supply of the company is related to products and 

materials necessary to conduct routine administrative activity, the share of these 

expenses being insignificant. 

 

1.1.4. ASSESSMENT OF SALES – not applicable 
 

1.1.5. ASSESSMENT OF ASPECTS REGARDING  

EMPLOYES/STAFF OF THE COMPANY  
 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. had, on 31.12.2016 a number of 50 employees and 2 

members of senior management (General Director and Deputy General Director). 

Among employees, 32 are employed in jobs requiring higher education.  
 

 No. of employees of which, with 

higher education 

2013 51 33 

2014 51 33 

2015 53 35 

2016 50 32 

 

During 2016 the number of employees was reduced by 5.7%. 
 

There is no syndicate organised by the company. The employees have 

appointed a representative to represent their interests in relations with the 

management of the company. 

 

1.1.6. ASSESSMENT OF ASPECTS RELATED TO THE IMPACT OF 

THE ISSUER`S BASIC ACTIVITY ON THE ENVIRONMENT – Not 

applicable 
 

1.1.7. ASSESSMENT OF RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

ACTIVITY – Not applicable 

 

1.1.8. ASSESSMENT OF THE ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY  

          ON RISK MANAGEMENT 
  

Management of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. continually evaluates the risks that 

may affect the objectives of the company' and takes appropriate measures in case 

of changes in operating conditions.  
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Risk management is thus an integral part of all decision-making and 

business  processes at S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 

The complex activity carried out by our company dictates the existance of 

various risks that must be monitored.  

Risk monitoring is done on each hierarchical level, existing supervisory 

procedures and approval of decisional limits.  
 

Internal reporting of risk exposure is continuously made on each business 

line, the management of the company is kept informed of the risks that may arise 

in running the activity.  

The main risks identified in the activity of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. are:  

- the risk related to economic environment 

- the operational risk 

- the market risk (price risk, currency risk, interest rate risk) 

- the credit risk 

- the liquidity risk. 

 

RISK RELATED TO ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT 

 This risk is extremely important, having both direct effects on the activity of 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., as well as indirect, through commercial companies in which 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. holds shareholders. 

The Romanian economy continues to present specific characteristics of an 

emergent economy, and there is a significant degree of uncertainty regarding the 

development of political, economic and social environment. 

From the point of view of the Romanian economy, 2016 was a good year, 

outstripping GDP growth to be above the forecast level. 

Romanian economy is still a fragile economy and is affected by 

developments in other economies, notably the EU countries, which are the main 

business partner for our country.  

 

EU economy in 2017 will be subject to political risks in particular. The policy will 

influence the economy and will generate uncertainty. In the euro area elections will be 

held in three of the largest economies: France, Italy and the Netherlands. 

The way UK will exit the EU, the conditions to be negotiated, raises new 

questions on the evolution of the EU economy in 2017.  
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2017 will therefore be a difficult year with high risks due to unpredictable 

economic developments. 

 

OPERATIONAL RISK 

Operational risk is the risk of incurring losses or reaching the estimated profits 

due to internal factors, such as conducting inappropriate domestic activities, existence 

of an inadequate personal or systems, or because of external factors, such as changing 

economic conditions, legislative changes in the capital market, socio-political events. 

 

The primary responsibility of developing and implementing operational risk 

controls belongs to the management of the company. Responsibility is supported by 

the development of the company general standards of operational risk management on 

the following areas:  

- requirements for separation of responsibility;  

- compliance with the regulatory requirements;  

- requirements to report operational losses and proposed remedial action; 

- professional development and training; 

- establishing ethical standards;  

- documentation of controls and procedures; 

- preventing the risk of litigation.  

The operational risks are inherent in the activity of the company.  

S.I.F.Oltenia S.A. manages the operational risk through the identification, 

assessment, monitoring and control of risks.  

It must be emphasized that, in managing the operational risk, models and 

techniques are not the most important, but the attitude towards risk, which is 

formed over time and is an aspect of organisational culture.  

 

Frequent legislative changes, the necessity to authorise S.I.F.Oltenia S.A. as 

AIFMs and authorization of key positions at the company level (compliance 

officer, risk manager) on the one hand, induce certain risks especially for 

understanding the complexity of the activity and its adaptation to legal 

requirements, on the other hand, lead to a higher supervision (professional) of risk-

generating activity. 
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MARKET RISK 

Market risk is the risk of current or future adverse outcome on profits, caused 

by fluctuations in the market prices of share securities - in terms of activities 

belonging to the trading portfolio - interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations for 

the entire activity of the company .  

Interest rate risk is the risk of adverse outcome of current or future earnings 

and capital due to adverse changes in interest rates.  

Regarding foreign exchange risk, S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. is very little 

exposed, most of its assets are denominated in national currency. 

 

CREDIT RISK 

Credit risk is the risk of loss of the company following the insolvency of its 

debtors.  

Credit risk expresses the possibility that debtors or issuers not honor their 

obligations at maturity, due to degradation of the debtor's financial situation or the 

overall economic situation. Credit risk arises in relation to any type of debt.  

Issuer risk is the risk of loss of value of a portfolio security due to 

deterioration of its economic and financial situation.  

The main elements of credit risk identified, which could significantly affect 

the activity of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. are: 

- the risk of not collecting the dividends from portfolio companies; 

- the risk of not collecting the value of the contract, if case of sales activity 

of shares packages in „closed” type companies, by sale-purchase agreement;  

- the risk that in the event of liquidation of a company from the portfolio, the 

value obtained is less than the initial investment. 

For  S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., the credit risk is mostly caused by exposures to 

asset items such as “shares” representing 96.44% of the managed assets, evaluated 

according to the law.  

Credit risk assessment is made in two steps, both prior to taking investment 

operations and after approval and actual implementation of operations, aiming at 

development of assets to take appropriate measures if the emergence of elements 

that can damage the economic activity of companies and, in extreme cases, their 

entry into insolvency.   
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LIQUIDITY RISK 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. aims to maintain an appropriate level of liquidity for its 

support obligations, based on an assessment of relative liquidity of assets on the 

market, taking into account the time required for liquidation and the price or value 

that those assets can be liquidated as well as their sensitivity to market risks or other 

external factors.  

The company must hold liquid assets whose aggregate value to cover the 

difference between liquidity outflows and inflows of liquidity in crisis situations, so 

be assured that the company maintains levels of liquidity which are adequate to 

enable it to any imbalances between cash inflows and outflows in crisis situations. 

Liquidity risk is mainly related to shareholdings in "closed" companies from 

the managed portfolio. Thus, the sale of shareholdings – in case of emergence of 

negative aspects of their economico-financial situation or where the aim is liquidity - 

is particularly heavy, with the risk of not being possible to obtain a price which is 

higher or at least equal to that that those holdings are valued in the calculation of net 

assets in accordance with F.S.A.   

Also, the low liquidity of the capital market in Romania often makes it difficult 

even trading of holdings in listed companies.  

In the perspective of 2017, we anticipate maintaining a low level of liquidity on 

the capital market, due to the uncertainties surrounding the eurozone.  

This is always to the attention of management, looking for solutions to increase 

liquidity in the managed portfolio. 

 
 

PORTFOLIO RISK 
 

FRAMING THE CATEGORIES OF ASSETS WITHIN THE LIMITS 

IMPOSED BY LEGISLATION  

In accordance with art. 235 (1) of  Regulation R.N.S.C./ F.S.A. no. 15/2004, 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. falls within the category OCIS (Other Collective Investment 

Scheme) with a diversified investment policy.   

 Holding limits on various categories of assets are covered by art. 188 

Regulation R.N.S.C./ F.S.A. no. 15/2004. s 

 During 2016, was analyzed periodically the structure of the portfolio and its legal 

provisions. 
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 Portfolio structure of financial assets on 31.12.2016 is as follows: 
 

a) Securities and money market instruments not admitted to trading – 

allowed limit: 20% of assets 

 
 

Asset type 

Assets value according to 

FSA Regulation no. 9/2014 

- lei - 

Share in 

net asset 

- % - 

Share in total 

asset 

- % - 

Shares hold in "closed" * 

type companies 
154,753,369 10.3521 9.8507 

    

Bank deposits 24,466,476 1.6366 1.5574 
    

TOTAL 179,219,845 11.9887 11.4081 
 

 

 

* Was not taken into account the calculation of - according to art. 275 (2) of R.N.S.C. 

Regulations  no. 15/2004- the shareholding in Banca Comercială Română S.A. Bucharest. 

 

 

b) Securities and/or instruments of the monetary market issued by the 

same issuer – exposure on one issuer: 10% of assets 

BANCA TRANSILVANIA S.A. Cluj Napoca (market simbol TLV) 

 
 

 

Asset type Assets value according 

to FSA Regulation no. 

9/2014 

- lei - 

Share in net 

asset 

- % - 

Share in total 

asset 

- % - 

Shares issued by Banca 

Transilvania S.A. Cluj Napoca 
97,633,903 6.5311 6.2148 

    

Bank deposits 24,431,097 1.6343 1.5551 
    

TOTAL 122,065,000 8.1654 7.7699 
 

 

The share holding possessed in OMV PETROM S.A. Bucharest 

represent, on 31.12.2016, 11.64% of the total assets, respectively 12.23% of 

net asset, falling under the exception provided in art. 188 lit. b) of the 

Regulations  no.  15/2004 of  R.N.S.C. (F.S.A.). 
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c) Financial instruments issued by entities belonging to the same   

group - allowed limit: 50% of assets 
 

Group name Assets value 

according to FSA 

Regulation no. 

9/2014 

- lei - 

Share in net 

asset 

- % - 

Share in 

total asset 

- % - 

Banca Transilvania Group, of which: 

- Banca Transilvania shares 
97,633,903 6.5311 6.2148 

    

      - BT ASSET MANAGEMENT SAI shares 3,003,794 0.2009 0.1912 
    

      - BT INDEX securities 1,473,140 0.0985 0.0938 
    

Bank deposits 24,431,097 1.6343 1.5551 
    

TOTAL 126,541,934 8.4648 8.0549 
 

 

d) The exposure to the counterpart risk in a transaction with derived 

financial instruments – not applicable 
 

e) The value of current accounts and cash – maximum limit allowed: 10% 

of the assets value 
 

The value of current accounts and cash highlighted in the net asset on 

31.12.2016 is of 27,975,673 lei – value that contains up to date interests for bank 

deposits - representing 1,78% of the assets value. 
 

f) Bank deposits in the same bank – allowed limit: 30% of assets 
 

Total holdings in bank deposits is of 24,466,476 lei, representing 1.56% of 

the assets value.    
 

g) Global exposure toward derived financial instruments – not 

applicable. 
 

h) Shareholdings in AOPC – allowed limit: 50% of assets. 
 

 S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. holds shareholdings in OPCVM/AOPC registered in the 

net asset on 31.12.2016, of 2,386,705 lei, representing 0.15% of the assets value. 

 

 Also, if we take into consideration the shares held in S.I.F. MOLDOVA S.A. 

and S.I.F. TRANSILVANIA S.A., the value of titles amounts to 4,057,314 lei, 

respectively 0.26% of the assets value. 
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 1.1.9. ELEMENTS OF PERSPECTIVE REGARDING THE 

ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY  
 

 a) The liquidity of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. shares portfolio – established on 

31.12.2016 to a rate of 64.11% of shareholdings in the share capital of some listed 

companies (on the Bucharest Stock Exchange - regulated market, and AeRO – 

alternative trading system) - is closely linked to the capital market liquidity . Given 

that in 2017, the liquidity of capital markets will remain low, the liquidity of the 

portfolio will be affected. 
 

 b) The capital expenditure that we set in 2017, namely investments to be 

made both on the capital market and the money market will not affect the company's 

financial situation, which will be done from their own sources. 
 

c) In 2017 it is anticipated that Romania's economy will keep on growing. 

This increase is based on salary increases made during 2016 and fiscal easing. The 

same forecasts favors a stagnation of this increase at 3.6 – 3.7% in 2017, due to 

inflation acceleration from the middle of 2016.  
 

But taking into account the fragility of Romanian economy and its 

dependence on the developments of EU economies, prospects for 2017 are 

regarded with caution by the management of  S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 
 

2. TANGIBLE ASSETS OF THE COMPANY 
 

 S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., by the nature of its activity, does not own production 

capacities. 

 The tangible assets owned have an insignificant value, being recorded in the 

accounts with 11,856,466 lei and represent 0.75% of fixed assets value 

(1,590,907,996 lei). They are represented by land and fixed assets. The main assets 

are buildings, electrical and thermal installations, computers and cars necessary to 

conduct the current administrative activity. 

There are no disputes regarding the ownership of tangible assets from the 

patrimony. 
 
 

3. MARKET SECURITIES ISSUED BY THE COMPANY 

 

3.1. SPECIFICATION OF ROMANIAN AND OTHER COUNTRIES 

MARKETS WHERE THE SECURITIES ISUUED BY THE 

COMPANY ARE NEGOTIATED 
 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. shares were listed starting with 01.11.1999 on the first 
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tier of the Bucharest Stock Exchange. Following amendments made in 2014 on the 

Bucharest Stock Exchange Code, S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. is currently falling 

within Premium category.   
 

 

 

3.2. DESCRIPTION OF COMPANY POLICY ON DIVIDENDS 
 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. distributed dividends throughout the period of operation. 

Dividend policy aimed both to satisfy the interests of investors on short term and 

institutional development on medium and long term, so that part of the net profit was 

allocated to reserves, to create its own sources necessary for the investment activity. 
 

 

 2013 

 

- lei - 

2014 

 

- lei - 

2015 

 

- lei - 

2016 

- I Version proposed by CA for 

distribution of net profit - 

- lei - 

 

Gross dividends to be distributed - 

total 

 

92,826,514 

 

69,619,886 

 

75,421,543 

 

47,283,505.69 

     

Paid gross dividents          - total 70,956,939 53,695,371 56,223,665 - 
     

Paid gross dividents/ Gross 

dividents to be distributed                    

- % -  

 

76.44 

 

77.13 

 

74.55 

 

- 

     

Gross dividend/share 0.16 0.12 0.13 0.0815 
     

Net profit 130,000,062 94,876,130 132,405,011 101,271,377 
     

Allocation from net profit for 

dividends                                 - % - 

 

71.40 

 

73.38 

 

56.96 

 

46.69% 

 

 

Up to 31.12.2016, were distributed: 76.44% of dividends for the financial 

year 2013, 77.13% of those for 2014, respectively 74.55% of those for the year 

2015. 
 

According to Decision no. 4 adopted by the Ordinary General Meeting of 

Shareholders S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. held on 29.04.2016, the dividend payment for 

financial year 2015 was held on the following conditions: 
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 gross dividend / share was 0.13 lei for one share held on the record 

date; the company calculated and withholded the tax on dividends in 

quotas stipulated by the laws in force at the date of payment;  
 

 shareholders entitled to receive dividends distributed to from the net 

profit in financial year 2015 werethose  registered in the consolidated 

register of shareholders on 12.09.2016 - "Registration Date" approved 

by the general meeting of shareholders (Date ex. 09.09.2016);  
 

 dividends from the profit realized in the financial year 2015 have 

started to be paid to shareholders with effect from 03.10.2016 - 

"Payment Date";  
 

 costs related to the payment of dividends, regardless of the payment 

method, were borne by shareholders from the net value of the 

dividend.  
 

 

In accordance with the capital market legislation, the payment of dividends 

distributed by S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. was achieved through the Central Depository,of  

Participants to the clearing-settlement and registry system (intermediaries, 

according to Law 297/2004, art. 2 pt. 14, which concluded a contract for 

participation in the Central Depository system) and through Banca Comercială 

Română - paying agent. 

 

Dividend payment methods: 
 

A. Payments for individual shareholders who have no securities 

accounts opened with the participants (Section I - Central Depository) 

 

I.   Cash Payments at the desks of Banca Comercială Română  
 

For individual shareholders, the dividend payment was made in cash, by 

providing the amounts due at the desks of B.C.R., as of 03.10.2016. 

II. Payments by bank transfer accounts opened in lei from a bank in Romania 

    Central Depository made available to all shareholders with shares in Section 

I of the Central Depository, the option to cash out any amount of money due 

directly by bank transfer into a bank account.  
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   Therefore, shareholders individuals and legal entities in this category 

(Section I – Central Depository), who wanted dividend payment by bank transfer, 

could apply for and submit to the Central Depository the documents required for 

dividend payment by transfer starting from the publication of the company 

communique on dividend payment for financial year 2015. 

 Requests to distribute dividends by bank transfer, along with the documents 

mentioned, had the deadline for submission on 23.09.2016, at the address: Central 

Depository SA – Bucharest, bd. Carol I, nr.34-36, Sector 2.  

 

B. Payments to shareholders holders of securities accounts opened with 

the participants - custodian banks or S.S.I.F. (Section II – Central 

Depository): transfer to participants' accounts   
 

For legal and natural person shareholders which on registration date holded 

shares issued by S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. outlined in Section 2 of the Register of 

shareholders, dividends were paid automatically on Payment Date (03.10.2016) by 

bank transfer through the Central Depository in the respective Participants 

accounts, without additional documents.  

Non-resident shareholders who wanted the application of more favorable 

provisions of the Convention on avoidance of double taxation concluded between 

Romania and their country of residence, or more favorable provisions for non 

resident pension funds (as defined in the legislation of the EU Member State or in 

any EFTA state), they could send such requests at SIF Oltenia S.A. headquarters, 

until 23.09.2016. 

 Dividend payment on Payment Date (03.10.2016) was conditioned by full 

and accurate submission of all documents and any explanations requested until 

23.09.2016. 

If they opted for Deferred payment of dividends (option expressed no later 

than 23.09.2016), the necessary documents could be submitted until 11.11.2016 (at 

the latest). 

 

Payment of dividends due to non-resident shareholders who have opted for 

deferred payment and sent to the headquarters of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A through 

Participants the complete and accurate documentation, was instructed by the 

Central Depository according to its own procedure. 
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C. Dividends due to deceased shareholders  
 

Dividends due to deceased shareholders, have been collected by the Banca 

Comercială Română, only after registration by the Central Depository of the direct 

transfer of property as a result of succession, based on the request of heirs. 

 

D. Dividends whose payment has not been effected by the Central 

Depository 
 

Dividends due to shareholders whose value does not cover the distribution 

expenses resulting from payment by Central Depository (cases of holders with 

more than 20 S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. shares) were distributed to the shareholder request 

from the headquarters of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. through cash desk, without 

commission, as of 03.10.2016.  
 

Information relating to dividend payments were communicated to 

shareholders according to the information requirements of Regulations R.N.S.C./ 

F.S.A. and the Bucharest Stock Exchange.  
 

For the financial exercise of 2016 year, the Board of Administrators of 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. propose to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders 

two options for allocating the net profit achieved in 2016: 
 

Option I. Distribution of dividends 
 

Net profit distribution 
 

Gross dividend of 0.0815 lei per share 
 

- I. 1. Dividends  -  47,283,505.69 lei  (46.69% of net profit)  
 

- I. 2. Own resources of development  - 53,987,871.12 lei (53.31% of net 

profit) 
 

Proposed dividend provides to the shareholders a remuneration rate of 5.3% 

calculated as the average trading price of shares in 2016 (1.5357 lei/share) and of 

5% calculated on the closing price for 2016 (1.63 lei/share). 
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Option II. Shares buy-back program 
 

Net profit distribution 
 

II. 1. – Reserve fund – 72,520,715 lei (71.61% of net profit) for the buy-

back of 29,008,286 shares representing 5% of company share capital. The 

company will carry out the buy-back program in accordance with EC Regulation 

no. 2273/2003 in order to reduce the share capital by canceling them. 

The minimum price per share: 1.4 lei 

The maximum price per share: 2.5 lei 

12 months from the date of publication of the decision in the Official 

Gazette of Romania, Part IV.   

 

II. 2. – Own sources of company development 28,750,661.81 lei ( 28.39% of 

net profit). 
  

 

In case of approval of the Option II of net profit allocation, respectively the 

Shares buy-back Program, The Board of Administrators of the company will 

call, organize and run an Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting, which will 

decide in accordance with the existing legal framework, the carrying out of the 

Shares buy-back Program, with a corresponding reduction of the share capital. 

 

In case the Ordinary General Shareholders Meeting of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A., 

called for the date of 04/05.04.2017, will approve the Option I of net profit 

allocation, respectively the one regarding the Distribution of dividends, the 

shareholders entitled to receive dividends from the net profit achieved in the financial 

year 2016 shall be those registered in the consolidated register of the shareholders on 

the registration date which will be approved by the Ordinary General Meeting of 

Shareholders, in accordance with art. 238. paragraph (1) of Law no. 297/2004 - on the 

capital market. The Board of Administrators has proposed and will submit for approval 

to the Ordinary General Shareholders Meeting that the registration date should be 

10.07.2017. 
 

The Board of Administrators proposes to the Ordinary General Meeting of 

Shareholders that the dividend payment date to be determined after the record date, 

according to legal regulations.  

Distribution expenses (commissions) shall be borne by shareholders from 

the net dividend amount.  
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Shareholders will be informed regarding the distribution way of dividends  

through press releases which will be sent timely to the Bucharest Stock Exchange 

and will be published in the press and on the official website of S.I.F. OLTENIA 

S.A.: www.sifolt.ro. 

 
 

3.3. DESCRIPTION OF ANY COMPANY ACTIVITIES OF OWN 

SHARES ACQUISITION 

 

        S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. - until 31.12.2016 – did not aquire own shares.  

3.4. REGISTERED BRANCHES OF S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 
 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. has no registered subsidiaries. 

 

3.5. BONDS AND/OR OTHER DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED BY S.I.F. 

OLTENIA S.A.  

 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. has not issued bonds and / or other debt securities. 
 

 

4. COMPANY MANAGEMENT   
 

 

 Board of Directors 
 

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation (Contract and Status) S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. is administered under a unitary system. 

Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. consists of 7 members elected 

by the General Assembly for a period of 4 years, with the possibility of being 

reelected. Most Board Members - 5 members - are non-executive.  
 

During 2016, the Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. was 

composed by two executive directors. They constitute the senior management 

(executive) of the company, being responsible for the management and smooth 

running of the company's activitys, including implementation of policies, strategies 

and goals. 

Tasks and criteria that must be met by the senior management are defined by 

GEO no. 32/2012, F.S.A. Regulation no. 9/2014 and F.S.A. Regulation no. 2/2016.  
 

During  the period 01.01.2016 - 31.12.2016, the Board of Administrators of 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A.  was made of:  

http://www.sifolt.ro/
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1. Tudor Ciurezu – Chairman/ General Manager 

2. Anina Radu – Vicepresident/Deputy General Manager 

3. Cristian Buşu – administrator 

4. Victor Căpitanu – administrator 

5. Nicolae Stoian - administrator  

6. Carmen Popa – administrator  

7. Paul-George Prodan – administrator 
 

 

Short presentation of Board members 

 

1) Ciurezu Tudor – Chairman  
 

- age - 62 years 

- BA in Economics, Ph.D. in Economics, Associate Professor  

- professional experience – seniority: 37 years  

- Deputy General Manager - at FPPV Oltenia duringa 1993 – 1996 

      - at S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A.     1997 – April 2011  

- CA Vicepresident during: April 1993 -  December 1994 and 

    December 2000 -  April 2011 

- CA Chairman:  April 2011 – up to now 

- General Manager: April  2011 - up to now 

- Member of the Nomination Committee: 19.12.2016- up to now 
 

 

 

 

 

 

2) Radu Anina – Vice President 

- age - 44 years 

- BA in law  

- professional experience – seniority: 19 years 

- administrator:  12.09.2011 - 27.04.2012 and 

                             17.05.2012 - up to now 

- CA Vice President: - 18 October 2011 - 27.04.2012 

      and 25.05.2012 - up to now 

- Deputy General Manager: - October 2011 - 27.04.2012 

                                                and 30.05.2012 - up to now 

 

3) Cristian Buşu  
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- age - 37 years 

- BA in economics; PhD in economics, university lecturer 

- professional experience – seniority: 16 years 

- administrator: 31.05.2013 – up to now 

- Member of the Audit Committee: from 03.06.2014 - up to now 

- Chairman of the Audit Committee:   10.11.2015 – up to now 

- Member of the Nomination Committee: 19.12.2016- up to now 

 

4) Victor Căpitanu      

- age -  37 years 

- BA in economics  

- professional experience – seniority: 16 years 

- administrator of 28.05.2014  - up to now 

 

5) Nicolae Stoian 

- age - 60 years 

- BA in economics 

- professional experience – seniority: 32 years 

- provisional administrator: 28.05.2014 – 29.07.2014 

- administrator: 12.09.2014 – up to now 

 

6) Carmen Popa  

- age - 50 years 

- BA in law  

- professional experience – seniority: 25 years 

- provisional administrator: 28.05.2014 –  29.07.2014 

- administrator: 12.09.2014 – up to now 

- Member of the Audit Committee: from 03.06.2014 - up to now 

- Chairman of the Nomination Committee: 19.12.2016 - up to now  

 

7) Paul-George Prodan  

- age - 52 years 

- BA in economics 

- professional experience – seniority:  34 years 
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- administrator: 16.06.2015 – up to now 

- Member of the Audit Committee: from 10.08.2015 - up to now 

 

On 31.12.2016, the company's managers had the following holdings: 
 

1.  Tudor CIUREZU 1,527,530 shares 
   

2.  Anina RADU 137,189 shares 
   

3.  Cristian BUŞU 12,000 shares 
   

4.  Victor Căpitanu 500 shares 
   

5.  Nicolae Stoian 220 shares 
   

6.  Carmen Popa - 
   

7.  Paul-George Prodan 1,010 shares 

 

 

 

Senior management 
 

According to the Articles of Incorporation of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A., the 

Chairman of the Board Directors also serves as General Manager and the Vice 

President also serves as Deputy General Manager.   
 

During the analyzed period 01.01.2016 - 31.12.2016, Senior Management of 

S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. was provided by: 
 

- Tudor CIUREZU - General Manager 

- Anina RADU – Deputy General Manager 
 

The managers of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. were approved by: R.N.S.C. Notice  

no. 32/11.07.2007 – Ms. Tudor CIUREZU - and R.N.S.C. Notice no. 

39/13.10.2011 -  Mrs. Anina RADU. 
 

Members of senior management have entered into mandate agreements with 

the company. According to GEO. 32/2012 and F.S.A. Regulation no. 9/2014, 

senior management managers are empowered to lead and coordinate the daily 

activity of the company and are invested with the power to engage its 

responsibility. 
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Management of departments (departments and divisions) 

 

Managers of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. departments are the employees of the 

company under individual employment contracts, on indefinite period. 

Management of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. departments had the following structure 

during 2016: 

 

1) Elena SICHIGEA - Economic Department Manager   

2) Elena CALIŢOIU – Manager of Net Asset Investments, Transactions and 

Calculation Division  

3) Dan VOICULESCU – Manager of Portfolio Monitoring Division  

4) Vasilica BUCUR – Legal Department Manager 

5) Ion PATRICHI  - Manager of Human Resources and Logistics Division 

 

On 31.12.2016, senior management members (General Manager and Deputy 

General Manager) and the managers of departments hold shares at S.I.F. 

OLTENIA S.A. as follows: 

 

1.   Tudor CIUREZU 1,527,530 shares 

   

2.  Anina RADU 137,189 shares  

   

3.  Elena SICHIGEA 9,214 shares 

   

4.  Elena CALIŢOIU 79 shares 

   

5.  Dan VOICULESCU 60,000 shares 

   

6.  Vasilica BUCUR 22,000 shares 

   

7.  Ion PATRICHI 1,000 shares 

 

 

DISPUTES OF BOARD MEMBERS AND MANAGEMENT  

ŞI CONDUCERII RELATED TO THE ACTIVITY OF THE ISSUER – 

not applicable 
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5. DISPUTES SITUATION 

On 31.12.2016, at the Legal Department of Societatea de Investiţii 

Financiare Oltenia S.A. appeared recorded in trial state a number of 33 cases, of 

which: 

 22 cases - plaintiff; 

   5 cases - defendant; 

   1 case - intervener; 

   5 cases - in insolvency proceedings. 

After their subject, the cases are structured as follows: 

- 5 cases - companies in insolvency proceedings, as follows: 

 - in 4 cases S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. has the status of unsecured creditor; 

 - in one case has the status of contribution creditor. 

- 11 cases – cancellation of A.G.A decisions/ cancellation of transactions in shares, 

in which S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A holds the capacity of plaintiff 

- 17 – other cases. 

In bankruptcy cases, the most significant amount is recorded in the 

statement of affairs of the company ARO S.A. – 217,921 lei, representing 

dividends 1995, 1996, interest and court costs. The other 3 companies where S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. is unsecured creditor are ELECTROTOTAL S.A. Botoșani, CCCF 

S.A. Bucharest, ROPRINT S.A. Craiova. 

Regarding the cases where S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. has the quality of plaintiff, 

having as subject the cancellation of AGA decisions, they mainly concern 

amendments to the articles of incorporation, incorporation of new companies with 

contributions in kind, assets acquisition, transactions in shares, mergers, decisions 

adopted in breach of the limits of competence, among the defendant companies being 
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COREALIS S.A. Craiova, PRODPLAST S.A. Bucharest,  CONTACTOARE S.A. 

Buzau, CEREALCOM S.A. Alexandria, BANCA COMERCIALĂ ROMÂNĂ S.A.  

In "other causes" in which S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. has the quality of 

plaintiff, are registered files with a diversified subject: criminal complaints, 

enforcements, claims-compansations, complaints to enforcement by withholding 

the payable dividends, of which we illustrate: 

- enforcement to recover the amount of 603,516 lei, representing civil 

damages given by Criminal decision in case no. 11108/2/2007 - theft of shares 

committed by Goga Dan Octavian, Panaitescu Miron Victor, Negruţiu Claudiu 

Marius, jointly and severally liable to pay. So far, was recovered the amount of 

35,987 lei, the execution continues.  

- enforcement against the debtor A.V.A.S. (currently A.A.A.S.) to recover 

the amount of 633,567 lei, according to the Civil Sentence no.  1581/21.10.2010, 

case no. 19477/3/2010, representing the amount owed by A.V.A.S. to S.C. 

RETIZOH S.A., respectively 70 % from the value of a building restituted to former 

owners. This company has executed this amount from the account of S.I.F. Oltenia 

S.A., making use of the provisions applicable to joint and several liability. So far 

was collected the amount of 7,875 lei and also was distributed S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. 

the amount of 35,565 lei from the sale price of the shares held by A.A.A.S. at  

Biofarm S.A. Bucharest, amount which was not received until the reporting date - 

31.12.2016. The execution continues. 

- actions having as subject compensations for the failure to fulfill the 

obligation to proceed the mandatory public offer of shares in the application of art. 

203 of Law 297/2004 (regarding sharea at MOBILA RĂDĂUŢI S.A., LACTA 

S.A. Giurgiu). The case regarding the shares at S.C. MOBILA S.A. Rădăuţi is on 

enforcement of claims from the executive titles obtained. In the case regarding the 

shares at LACTA SA Giurgiu, after the favorable settlement judgment obtained in 

the first court, the Court of Appeal Bucharest upheld the appeals and ordered the 

defendants to pay the appellant GEOCHIS S.A. the amount of 8,676 lei 

representing court costs. Until 31.12.2016, the decision was not communicated and 

can be appealed within 15 days of notification.   
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- in cases covering damages under art.  210 of Law 297/2004, in 

contradiction with the major shareholders of issuers SINTEROM S.A. and 

CONTACTOARE S.A., cases are pending, not being settled as irrevocable.  

In case no. 4395/114/2012, having as subject the obligation to damage of 

CONTACTOARE S.A. as majority shareholder of SINTEROM S.A., after 

addmission by the High Court of Cassation and Justice to appeal promoted by 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A., the case was retried by Ploiesti Court of Appeal and was 

resolved by Decision 641/12.10.2016, proceeding the admission of the action to 

oblidge the defendant SINTEROM S.A. to pay the amount of 368,804 lei, 

representing damages 32,144 lei, and court costs.  The decision was appealed by 

CONTACTOARE S.A. Buzau. 

 In case no. 5756/279/2012, having as subject the obligation to damage the 

company SERVICIILE COMERCIALE ROMÂNE S.A. Piatra Neamț, as majority 

shareholder of  CONTACTOARE S.A. Buzau, the claim was rejected for both in 

first court and on appeal, S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. attacking the decisions by appeal. 

- S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. also promoted during 2016 an action for an action for 

monetary claims to oblidge CEREALCOM S.A. Alexandria to pay the amount of 

1,660,826 lei, representing the value of the package of shares due to the 

withdrawal from the company, in accordance with the provisions of art. 134 of 

Law no. 31/1990 R, with subsequent amendments and completions. Case term for 

judgement is 23.02.2017. 

Cases where S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. is the defendant, representing actions 

having as subject monetary claims arising from the position of Manager and/or 

administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A., promoted by Buzatu Florian Teodor and 

Popescu Carmen Ioana which, at the reporting date - 31.12.2016, present the 

following situation: 

 Case no. 6584/63/2014, plaintiff Buzatu Florian Teodor, 

having as subject monetary claims in the amount of 1,758,550 lei and 

moral damages in the amount of 40,000 lei, due to the fact he was 

removed from his position of administrator in AGOA S.I.F. Oltenia 

S.A. from the date of  29.04.2011. Dolj Court, by Sentence no. 
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128/31.03.2015, dismissed the application for summons. The plaintiff 

appealed, admitted by Decision 667/01.10.2015 de către Curtea de 

Apel Craiova, the court ruling the annullment for the first instance 

court and referring the case back to the same court. S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. 

filled an appeal, which was rejected by the High Court of Cassation and 

Justice. The case returns to Dolj Court for retrial. So far the summons 

were not received.  

 Case 12919/215/2015, plaintiff Popescu Carmen Ioana, 

having as subject the obligation ,,to do'', respectively obligation of 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. to return the material guarantee according to the 

Articles of Incorporation of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. for conducting the 

function of a member of the Board of Directors, following the 

dismissal of that position by the General Meeting of Shareholders 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. of  29.04.2011. By Sentence no. 337/15.01.2016, 

Craiova Court dismissed the request, the solution being final by 

dismissing the appeal filed by the plaintiff, according to Decision no. 

767/08.11.2016. 

 Case no. 22552/215/2015, plaintiff Popescu Carmen Ioana, 

having as subject monetary claims in the amount of 48,000 lei, 

representing participation to profits for the period 01.01.2011-

29.04.2011 (date on which it was revoked by AGOA S.I.F. Oltenia 

S.A. from the position of Administrator). By Sentence no. 

14446/20.11.2015, Craiova Court partially upheld the request, coercing 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. to pay the amount of 17.969 lei. In this case, filled 

an appeal both  S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. - 19.01.2016, and Popescu Carmen 

Ioana - 04.02.2016. Case term for judgement is 19.01.2017. 

During 2016 there were no actions for annulment of decisions adopted by 

the General Meeting of Shareholders S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. 
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6. FULFILLMENT OF COMMUNICATION OBLIGATIONS 

     ESTABLISHED BY LAW 
 

 The activity of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. was conducted in transparent 

conditions in compliance with legislation. 

 The Company prepared and published periodical and current reports in the 

content and in terms provided by the capital market regulations and provided the 

information requested by the Bucharest Stock Exchange - regulated market where 

are listed the shares issued by S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 

 
 

7. OTHER IMPORTANT EVENTS 

 

 On 29.04.2016 took place the General Meeting of Shareholders S.I.F. 

OLTENIA S.A., General Meeting care which decided to distribute a gross 

dividend of 0.13 lei/share. 

     The distribution of dividends started on October 3, 2016. 

       On 31.12.2016, the amount of  75,421,543 lei, representing gross dividends for 

distribution for the financial year 2015, it was distributed the amount of 

56,223,665 lei, respectively a percentage of 74.55%. 

 

 During the period 23.05.2016 – 03.06.2016, in accordance with the FSA 

Control decision no. 914/20.04.2016, at the headquarters of S.I.F. OLTENIA 

S.A. took place the  periodic monitoring which focused on the verification of 

the activity conducted.  

The period under review was 03.13.2013 – 23.05.2016. 

     As a result of the control, was not issued a decision for sanctioning the people 

working in S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. 

 

 8. ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL RESULTS AND ASSETS STATE 

 

The individual financial statements have been prepared by the company in 

accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the 

European Union (EU). The Company prepared the financial statements in IFRS to 

meet the Norm 39/2015 for the approval of Accounting Regulations compliant with 
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International Financial Reporting Standards, applicable to authorized entities, 

regulated and supervised by the Financial Supervisory Authority of Financial and 

Investment Instruments Sector.  

Within the meaning of Norm 39/2015, International Financial Reporting 

Standards, hereinafter IFRS represent the standards adopted under the procedure 

laid down in Regulation (EC) no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and of the 

Council from 19 July 2002 on the application of international accounting standards 

with subsequent amendments and completions.  

The reporting currency of financial results is the leu.  

 
 

ECONOMIC AND FINANCIAL RESULTS 
 

Individual situation of financial position  

for the financial exercise ended at 31 December 2016  
 

In lei 31 December  

2016 

31 December  

2015 

31 December  

2014 

31 December  

2013 

Assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 3,509,197 762,407 194,154 68,377 

Deposits from banks 24,466,476 5,813,698 39,336,729 39,091,517 

Financial assets available for sale 1,578,803,318 1,668,679,019 1,515,653,416 1,680,256,416 

Credits and debts 13,427,910 4,467,266 17,448,281 3,046,498 

Tangible assets 11,373,395 11,822,860 12,008,597 12,475,211 

Real estate investments 483,071 438,571 1,005,026 889,766 

Other assets 347,473 367,280 483,466 901,777 

Total assets 1,632,410,840 1,692,351,101 1,586,129,669 1,736,729,562 

Debts     

Dividends for payment 56,991,969 81,027,502 65,967,399 127,558,764 

Taxes and fees 5,246,637 2,541,343 7,064,365 8,836,041 

Defferred tax liabilities 122,077,335 135,643,658 115,645,941 138,186,712 

Other debts 18,899,845 9,958,816 11,915,978 10,723,083 

Total debts 203,215,786 229,171,319 200,593,683 285,304,600 

Equity     

Share capital 58,016,571 58,016,571 58,016,571 58,016,571 

Share capital adjustments 631,852,524 631,852,524 631,852,524 631,852,524 

Other elements of equity 626,427,414 686,281,321 613,285,759 666,876,156 

Reserves from reevaluation of tangible 

assets 7,755,548 8,077,015 9,523,186 8,293,760 
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Legal and statutory reserves 17,782,035 17,782,035 17,782,035 36,636,839 

Other reserves 2,417,698,157 2,387,864,253 2,445,274,777 2,054,752,709 

Reported result due to applying IAS 29 

on the share capital and reserves (2,438,631,885) (2,438,631,885) (2,438,631,885) (2,138,982,157) 

Reported result due to applying IAS 

without IAS 29 7,023,313 (20,467,063) (45,497,070) 7,480,561 

Current Profit  101,271,377 132,405,011 93,930,089 126,497,999 

Total equity 1,429,195,054 1,463,179,782 1,385,535,986 1,451,424,962 

Total debts and equity 1,632,410,840 1,692,351,101 1,586,129,669 1,736,729,562 
 

 

Loss from upgrading to hyperinflation in accordance with IAS 29 "Financial 

reporting in hyperinflationary economies" in the amount of 2,438,631,884.98 lei, 

reflected in the financial statements of the years 2015 respectively 2016, according 

to the accounting regulations of FSA Rule no. 39/2015, is proposed to be covered 

from other elements of equity. Coverage in question does not change the equity, 

does not influence the profit and loss account of the Company and is in line with 

art. 91 and 92 from Rule no. 39/2015 of FSA. 

 

Total assets on 31.12.2016 have a value of 1,632,410,840 lei, decreasing by 

3.54% compared to 31.12.2015 (1,692,351,101 lei). 
 

Within assets, financial assets available for sale are in the amount of 

1,578,803,318 lei and represent 96,72% - according to the specific activity. 

Deposits in banks are 24,466,476 lei, showing an increase of 320.84% 

compared to the previous year. 

Company debts amounting to 203,215,786 lei, in decrease compared to the 

previous year (11.33%) are mostly represented by: 

- payment dividends – 56,991,969 lei (28.05% of total debt) 

- debts with deferred tax – 122,077,335 lei (60.07% of total debt) 

Company equity capital – 1,429,195,054 lei – shows a decrease of 2.32% 

compared to 31.12.2015. 

 

Individual situation of profit or loss and other elements of global result 

for the finacial exefcise ended at 31 December 2016  
 

In lei 2016 2015 2014 2013 

     

Incomes       

Incomes form dividends 44,249,147 29,501,952 44,554,682 40,662,521 

Incomes from interest 53,278 303,769 469,278 1,148,033 

Other operational incomes 42,358,113 96,484,451 6,958,825 2,979,519 

Net gain from exchange rate 

differences 194,519 550,210 512,890 (119,045) 

Net gain from sale of assets 55,253,217 55,479,287 82,724,646 150,004,872 
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Expenditures      

Administration and supervision 

commissions and fees (2,267,755) (3,065,988) (2,962,171) (3,229,289) 

Income from the reversal of 

shareholdings for risks and 

expenditures 8,363,656 5,012,702 5,000,000 4,987,298 

Other operational expenditures (30,199,087) (23,345,387) (24,233,838) (42,122,028) 

Pretax profit 118,005,088 160,920,996 113,024,312 154,311,881 

     

Income tax  (16,733,711) (28,515,985) (19,094,223) (27,813,882) 

     

Net profit for the financial exercise 101,271,377 132,405,011 93,930,089 126,497,999 

Other elements of global result     

Net change of reserve from 

reevaluation in fair value of financial 

assets available for sale and tangible 

assets  (59,853,907) (20,266,827) (5,577,963) 78,411,638 

Total global result afferent to the 

period (41,417,470) 112,138,184 88,352,126 204,909,637 

     

Result per share     

Basic 0.1746 0.2282 0.1619 0.218 

 

The main groups of incomes achieved by the company in 2016: 

- incomes form dividends – 44,249,147 lei (incomes from dividends are 

registered at their gross value); 

- incomes form interest – 53,278 lei;  

- incomes from sale of assets – 76,257,242 lei; net gain from sale of financial 

assets is 55,253,217 lei; 

- other operational incomes – 42,358,113 lei. 

Within these is included the amount of 42,009,606 lei – unclaimed dividends 

for more than three years from the date of chargeability, in accordance with AGOA 

Decision no. 7/29.04.2016. 

 

Companies from the portfolio of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. which distributed, 

during 2016, dividents for the financial year 2015 are: 
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Item 

no. 
Company name 

S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. 

holdings 

on 

registration 

date 

- % - 

Net dividends 

due to 

S.I.F. Oltenia 

S.A. 

- lei - 

Net dividends 

collected by 

S.I.F. Oltenia 

S.A. 

until 

31.12.2016 

- lei - 

1 BANCA TRANSILVANIA S.A. Cluj Napoca 1.123 12,799,588 12,799,588 

2 C.N.T.E.E. TRANSELECTRICA S.A. 

Bucharest 
5.135 9,476,134 9,476,134 

3 BRD SOCIETE GENERALE S.A. Bucharest 2.696 5,390,128 5,390,128 

4 S.N.T.G.N. TRANSGAZ S.A. Mediaş 1.536 4,744,209 4,744,209 

5 S.N.G.N. ROMGAZ S.A. Mediaş 0.403 3,980,185 3,980,185 

6 ANTIBIOTICE S.A. Iaşi 13.553 1,891,190 1,891,190 

7 EXIMBANK S.A. Bucharest 3.270 1,217,731 1,217,731 

8 UNIVERS S.A. Râmnicu Vâlcea 73.749 886,449 886,449 

9 TURISM FELIX S.A. 16.966 538,715 538,715 

10 BURSA DE VALORI BUCUREŞTI S.A. 5.000 316,662 316,662 

11 IAMU S.A. Blaj 19.834 313,169 313,169 

12 ELECTRICA S.A. Bucharest 0.071 200,360 200,360 

13 S.I.F. TRANSILVANIA S.A. Braşov 0.246 135,346 135,346 

14 ELBA S.A. Timişoara 2.369 100,787 100,787 

15 TURISM S.A. Pucioasa 69.219 85,901 85,901 

16 RELEE S.A. Mediaş 11.487 47,884 47,884 

17 DEPOZITARUL CENTRAL S.A. Bucharest  3.906 46,115 46,115 

18 CONTACTOARE S.A. Buzău 18.196 38,212 38,212 

19 S.I.F. MOLDOVA S.A. Bacău 0.041 17,981 17,981 

TOTAL GENERAL - 42.226.746 42,226,746 
 

Of the total net dividends due to S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. for 2015, namely 

42,226,746 lei (gross dividends – 44,249,147 lei), a percentage of 97.67% was 

provided by only 10 companies – 41,240,991 lei. 

 Pre-tax profit is 118,005,088 lei, profit tax being 16,733,711 lei. 

  

Gross profit incorporates the amount of 5 mill. lei, provisions constituted 

according to the statutes, the collective work agreement and the warrant of senior 

management. We propose to the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders to 

approve the result of gross income, which includes the shareholding designed to 

stimulate employees, senior management and managers in accordance with the legal 

framework mentioned and  to grant to the Board of Administrators the power to 

allocate the amount per employees, senior management (contract of mandate) and 

administrators.  
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 Net profit of the financial year 101,271,377 lei, higher with 0.89%  to that 

provided in the Income and Expenditure Budget for the year 2016. 

 

Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. proposes to the Ordinary General 

Meeting of Shareholders two alternatives for allocating the net profit achieved in 2016: 

 

Option I. Distribution of dividends 
 

Net profit distribution 
 

Gross dividend of 0.0815 lei per share 
 

- I. 1. Dividends  -  47,283,505.69 lei  (46.69% of net profit)  
 

- I. 2. Own resources of development  - 53,987,871.12 lei (53.31% of net 

profit) 
 

Proposed dividend provides to the shareholders a remuneration rate of 5.3% 

calculated as the average trading price of shares in 2016 (1.5357 lei/share) and of 

5% calculated on the closing price for 2016 (1.63 lei/share). 

 
 

Option II. Shares buy-back program 
 

Net profit distribution 
 

II. 1. – Reserve fund – 72,520,715 lei (71.61% of net profit) for the buy-

back of 29,008,286 shares representing 5% of company share capital. The 

company will carry out the buy-back program in accordance with EC Regulation 

no. 2273/2003 in order to reduce the share capital by canceling them. 

The minimum price per share: 1.4 lei 

The maximum price per share: 2.5 lei 

12 months from the date of publication of the decision in the Official 

Gazette of Romania, Part IV.   

 

II. 2. – Own sources of company development 28,750,661.81 lei ( 28.39% of 

net profit). 
  

 

In case of approval of the Option II of net profit allocation, respectively the 

Shares buy-back Program, The Board of Administrators of the company will 

call, organize and run an Extraordinary General Shareholders Meeting, which will 
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decide in accordance with the existing legal framework, the carrying out of the 

Shares buy-back Program, with a corresponding reduction of the share capital. 

 

 

The individual situation of Cash-flows 

on 31.12.2016 

Element name 

 

               Reporting period 

 31.12.2013 31.12.2014 

 

31.12.2015 31.12.2016 

A 1 2 3 4 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers, other receipts 934,062 963,126 1,404,049 1,163,256 

Receipts from sales of financial 

investments (equity) 
348,082,144 213,773,958 128,293,435 77,519,118 

Payments for purchase of shares (280,710,951) (131,521,511) (101,823,481) (15,855,610) 

Payments to suppliers and employees, 

other payments 
(12,880,590) (11,452,498) (12,096,512) (12,367,224) 

Payments to the state budget, social 

security budget and local budget 
(5,049,702) (18,128,166) (4,126,886) (1,336,117) 

Collected interest 1,177,531 508,846 335,575 51,883 

Collected dividends 35,716,104 38,206,968 25,584,309 42,234,760 

Paid interest     

Paid profit tax (27,899,422) (20,687,139) (14,635,599) (10,768,532) 

Receipts from insurance against 

earthquakes 
    

Net cash from operating activities 59,369,176 71,663,584 22,934,890 80,641,534 

 

Payment for purchase of  tangible assets (26,931) (165,435) (36,099) (43,258) 

Receipts from sale of tangible assets 759,338  619,659  

Net cash from investing activities 732,407 (165,435) 583,560 (43,258) 

 

Receipts from shares issuing     

Receipts from long-term loans     

Payment of debts related to financial 

leasing 
    

Paid dividends (50,734,025) (60,614,129) (46,475,860) (53,934,735) 

Advance amounts to the Central 

Depository to pay dividends 
  (712,114) (1,193,999) 

Tax on paid dividends (9,053,333) (10,473,386) (9,253,230) (4,071,277) 

Net cash from financing activities (59,787,358) (71,087,515) (56,441,204) (59,200,011) 

Net increase of treasury and cash 

equivalents 
314,225 410,634 (32,922,754) 21,398,265 

Cash and cash equivalents at the 

beginning of the reporting period  
38,772,996 39,087,221 39,497,855 6,575,101 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 

the reporting period 
39,087,221 39,497,855 6,575,101 27,973,366 
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9. CORPORATE GUVERNANCE 

Societatea de Investiţii Financiare Oltenia S.A. is classified under Premium 

category to the  Bucharest Stock Exchange. 

The social capital subscribed and transferred of the company is of 

58,016,571 lei. It is divided in 580,165,714 shares with nominal value of 0.1 lei. 

The shares are ordinary, nominative, of equal value, issued in dematerialized 

form and give equal rights to their holders. The shares are indivisible, the 

company recognizing a single representative for the exercise of the rights arising 

from ownership of a share. 

The company develops its activity according to the provisions of the 

Romanian legislation. The main normative acts governing the activity of S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. are: Law no. 31/1990 R regarding the commercial companies as 

subsequently amended and completed, Law 297/2004 regarding the capital market, 

as subsequently amended and completed, R.N.S.C. (F.S.A.) Regulations  

no.1/2006, regarding issuers and operations with securities, R.N.S.C. (F.S.A.) 

Regulations no. 15/2004, regarding the authorization and functioning of the 

companies of investments administration, of the organisms of collective placement 

and depositories, F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014, regarding the authorization and 

functioning of the companies of investments administration, of the organisms of 

collective placement in securities and of depositories of the bodies of collective 

placement in securities, R.N.S.C. (F.S.A.) Regulations no. 6/2009, regarding the 

exercise of certain rights of shareholders within the general assemblies of 

commercial companies, the Articles of incorporation (Statute and Contract), 

Internal Regulations, Bucharest Stock Exchange Code and Corporate Governance 

Code of Bucharest Stock Exchange (2015), as well as according to legal 

documents specific for the activity, issued by F.S.A. (Financial Supervision 

Authority). 

According to the Articles of Incorporation, S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. is 

administered in a unitary system.  

The Administration Board of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. consists of 7 members 

elected by the General Assembly for a period of 4 years, with the possibility of  

being reelected.  

On 01.01.2016, the Board of Administrators of S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A. was 

made of: 
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1. Tudor Ciurezu – Chairman/ General Manager 

2. Anina Radu – VicePresident/Deputy General Manager 

3. Cristian Buşu – administrator 

4. Victor Căpitanu – administrator 

5. Nicolae Stoian - administrator  

6. Carmen Popa – administrator  

7. Paul-George Prodan – administrator 

structure which was maintained until the end of the year – 31.12.2016. 

During 2016, the Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. was made 

of two executive directors, respectively "managers with mandate contract" as 

defined by F.S.A.Regulation no. 9/2014, respectively GEO no. 32/2012, as 

amended and supplemented, with the following members: 

1. Tudor CIUREZU: C.A.Chairman / General Manager 

2. Anina RADU: C.A. VicePresident /Deputy General Manager 

Majority of Board of Administrators members – 5 members – are non-

executive. 

The members of the Board of Administrators were elected on the basis of 

objective criteria regarding the qualification and professional experience, the way 

they are provided in the F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014. After the entry into force 

of F.S.A. Regulation no. 14/2015 regarding the evaluation and approval of 

members of the management structure and people who hold key positions in 

entities regulated by the Financial Supervisory Authority, members of the 

management structure, ie Board members and senior management (General 

Manager and Deputy General Manager ) proceeded to selfassessment and 

assesment by the Board of Administrators of the compliance to the requirements of 

FSA Regulation no. 14/2015, the assessments being submitted to F.S.A.  together 

with all the necessary documentation for authorizing S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. as the 

Alternative Investment Fund Managers (according to Law no. 74/2015 and FSA 

Regulation no. 10/2015).  

 

The main attributions of the Board of Administrators are: 

- determines the main directions of activity and development of the company; 

- establishes the accounting policies and of the financial control system; 
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- submits to the approval of the General Assembly of Shareholders, within 4 

months from the end of the financial exercise, the annual financial statements, 

based on the reports of administrators and financial auditor, the repartition of 

the profit, the establishment of the dividend, the budget of incomes and  

expenses and the activity program for the next financial exercise ; 

- approves the contracting of bank loans and warranties 

- approves the pledging, leasing and mortgaging of company property; 

- concludes administration contracts and depositing contracts; 

- approves the regulations of organization and functioning of the company, the 

operating and control manual, the administration policies and strategies. 

hires and dismisses the executive managers of the company, establishing 

their rights and duties; 

During 2016, the Board of Administrators met at least once per quarter. 

The total number of meetings of the Board of Administrators during 2016 

was 20 namely the data: 08.01.2016, 10.02.2016, 21.03.2016, 24.03.2016, 

28.03.2016, 21.04.2016, 26.04.2016, 18.05.2016, 28.06.2016, 06.07.2016, 

20.07.2016, 08.08.2016, 24.08.2016, 12.09.2016, 19.09.2016, 28.09.2016, 

17.10.2016, 11.11.2016, 28.11.2016, 19.12.2016. 
 

The situation of attendance of administrators in the meetings of the 

Board of Administrators during the year 2016: 

 
 

1.  Tudor CIUREZU 20 - attendancies 

2.  Anina RADU 20 - attendancies  

3.  Cristian BUŞU 20 - attendancies 

4.  Victor Căpitanu 18 - attendancies 

5.  Nicolae Stoian 20 - attendancies 

6.  Carmen Popa 20 - attendancies 

7.  Paul-George Prodan 20 - attendancies 
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The main topics  discussed at the meetings of the Board of 

Directors: 

 approvals imposed by the legal provisions applicable to accountant 

records (results of tangible assets revaluation, results of patrimony 

inventory, setting up provisions, consolidated financial statements, IFRS 

statements, setting the selling price of the company property estate); 

 approvals imposed by the legislation applicable to the exercise of 

attributions by the internal control and internal audit departments 

(activity report and control plan);  

 organisational approvals (updating internal regulations, organizational 

policies and procedures, financial auditor contracts, constitution of 

Nomination Committee, appointing Risk Managers, documentation for 

AIFM authorization, updating the limits of competence for senior 

management);            

 decisions to implement certain provisions of the law and regulations of 

the capital market object of activity according to the regulations applicable 

to AIFM, approval of ACT OF INCORPORATION in a single document 

which will replace the old CONTRACT and STATUS, the Corporate 

Governance, Committee Audit Regulation, Nomination Committee 

Regulation);  

 approvals imposed by the specific activity of the departments within the 

company (participation in the capital increase for the portfolio companies); 

 approvals imposed by the legal and statutory provisions regarding  the 

convening and development of general assemblies (analysis and approval 

of materials included on the agenda, convocation order,  expenses, 

procedures, suspending of voting right, lists of candidatures, formulation of 

special power of attorney, voting bulletin by mail, constitution of 

commissions for receiving and keeping the evidence of votes, formulated 

answers and questions submitted to shareholders at the general meetings 

etc); 

 briefings on reports prepared by the Audit Committee and the Audit 

Committee activity analysis. 
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During the period January 2016 - December 2016, the remuneration of the 

administrators was made in accordance with A.G.O.A. S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. Decision 

no. 5/20.04.2013, by which the rights of administrators were established for the 

entire mandate (2013-2017) as follows: 

- The monthly allowance of the members of the Board of Administrators is 

set at the level of 2,0 gross average salaries per company for each administrator, 

3,0 gross average salaries per company for the Vice President and 4,0 gross 

average salaries per company for the Chairman.  

- The additional allowance of the members of the Administration Board 

which are part of the advisory committees of the board is set at the level of 5% of 

the monthly allowance of the respective administrator. To the members of the 

Board of Administrators will also apply the provisions of the Articles of 

Incorporation and of the Company`s Collective Agreement, where applicable 

(travel expenses, transport, accommodation etc).  

- In order to achieve the net profit indicator, administrators are entitled to 

receive, on the whole, an additional incentive in the form of annual holding to 

profit, as a percentage of 0.5% of the Net profit achieved, subject to its approval  in 

A.G.O.A. approving the annual financial statements. The fund will be determined 

and registered in the form of provision from gross profit, so that achieving the net 

profit established by the Incomes and Expenditures Budget not to be jeopardized.  

- If achieving net profit established in the Income and Expenditure Budget 

by AGOA, effective management members will be entitled to individual additional 

stimulation of 0.1% for the General Manager and 0.075% for the Deputy General 

Manager of the capitalized value of the company based on the average quotation of 

the shares on the Bucharest Stock Exchange, recorded in that financial year. The 

Fund will determine and record the form of provision, from the gross profit, so 

achieving net profit established in the Income and Expenses Budget not to be 

jeopardized.  

- For the year 2017, the average salary per company considered is the 

average salary on 31.12.2016. Note: The average salary per company represents  

the sum of monthly basic salaries (of employment) to which are added permanent 

increments of the company employees reported to the number of full-time 

employees, with an employment contract for indefinite duration, existing in the 

company at a namely fixed date. 
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Audit Committee 
 

During  2016, Audit Committee, consisting of non-executive administrators, 

independent, was made of: 
 

- Cristian Buşu - Chairman 

  - Carmen Popa - member 

  - Paul-George Prodan - member 

  - Vasilica Bucur - secretary 

 

The Audit Committee held in 2016 six meetings, dated on 17.05.2016, 

31.05.2016, 29.06.2016, 14.07.2016, 29.08.2016, 12.09.2016, in the presence of all 

its members, metings hold to verify compliance with the legislation and regulations 

FSA and BSE and the obligations to inform the public in preparing the annual 

report on the financial statements on 31.12.2015 and 30.06.2016, the consolidated 

financial statements on 31.12.2015, for the preparation of the activity report of the 

Audit Committee for 2015, the initiation of the procedure for selecting the 

financial auditor for the financial years 2017, 2018 and recommendation of the 

financial auditor to be submitted for approval AGOA SIF Oltenia SA. 

 
 

Internal Control Department / Compliance 
 

During the financial year 2016, in the organizational structure of S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. also was part the Internal Control department / Compliance, 

independent department specialized in supervision of the company and staff to be 

compliant with the legislation in force, capital market incidents, and the Internal 

regulations, having as main responsabilities the following: 

a) monitor and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness 

of the measures, policies and procedures established and actions taken 

to remedy deficiencies in compliance by the company of its obligations; 

b) advise the relevant persons responsible for providing services and 

conducting activities, and assisting them to comply by the company of its 

obligations under the applicable legal provisions;  

c) act under its competencies to prevent and to propose measures to remedy 
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any violations of the laws, regulations of the capital market or internal company 

procedures by the company or by its employees;  

d) to provide information to the company and its employees on the legal 

regime applicable to capital market;  

e) to approve the documents submitted by the company to F.S.A. to obtain 

authorizations prescribed by the F.S.A. regulations and to ensure that the 

information which the company must send to F.S.A. and to the capital market 

entities are submitted within the legal deadline of regulations;  

f) to analyse and to approve the information / advertising materials of the 

company;  

g) to maintain direct contact with F.S.A.; 

h) to monitor and regularly review the application of legal provisions and 

the internal procedures and rules, to keep records of the irregularities found; 

i) to verify compliance with prudential regulations;  

j) to verify the correct separation of assets per entities under management; 

k) to verify the efficiency of the informational system and internal procedures; 

l) to verify the effectiveness of risk control. 

m) to prepare, according to the investigation plan, the verification notes 

aiming aspects of activity at the company which are submitted to senior 

management and, after approval by it and to submit them to the Audit Committee 

for review and evaluation of the activity; 

n) to prepare the Annual Report and the Plan of investigations for the 

following year, which are submitted to the Audit Committee for review, evaluation 

and approval of the activity. After approval, within 60 days of the end of each year, 

documents will be submitted for approval to the Board of Directors.  

The report and the investigation plan approved by the Board of Administrators 

are submitted to the Financial Supervisory Authority until March 15 of each year. 

In exercising its responsabilities, the Representative of the Internal Control / 

Compliance keeps at the company's headquarters, the following registers: 

1) Unique Registry of petitions electronically secured, per calendar year  

2) Investigations Registry  

3) Registry of personal transactions of relevant persons in the company 

4) Registry for conflicts of interest   
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The activity of the Internal Control Department / Compliance is conducted 

according to rules and procedures of supervision and control approved by the Board 

of Administrators of the company. 
 

 Annually, the Representative of the Internal Control Department / Compliance 

examines the work performed by the company during the previous year indicating, if 

applicable, any failures or issues inconsistent with the legislation specific provisions in 

force.  

 
 

 The Investigation Plan for 2016, approved by the Board of Administrators in 

its meeting on 10.02.2016, referred to the following: 
  

- The organizational activity; 

- Notices to the superior management and the employees of the company 

regarding the legal regime applicable to the capital market; 

- Approval of documents transmitted to F.S.A. in order to obtain the 

authorizations provided by the F.S.A. regulations; 

- Approvals of  current  reports,  information  /  advertising materials, 

press releases; 
 

 -  Preparing the Verification Notes according to the annual Investigation 

Plan approved by the Board of Directors.      
          

All the Verification notes and the approval granted were recorded in the 

Registry of investigations.  
 

Throughout the reporting period, ie 01.01.2016 - 31.12.2016, the 

Representative of the Internal Control Department / Compliance was -  

F.S.A.Authorization no. 215/02.09.2014. 
 

The Company has a financial auditor and an internal auditor who 

operated in compliance with the applicable laws and the contracts concluded in this 

regard. 
 

The Financial Auditor is S.C. JPA AUDIT ŞI CONSULTANŢĂ S.R.L. 

Bucharest. 

The financial auditor has audited the annual financial statements.  

The Board of Administrators verified the independence and the objectivity 
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of the financial auditor by monitoring the rotation of the partners committed to the 

issuer int the audit firm. 
 

The Internal Auditor is Ms. Bălţăţeanu Nadia Florentina, being an issuer 

employee under indefinit period. 

The internal audit function is separate and independent from other functions 

and activities of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A.  
 

The internal audit is organized in accordance with Law no. 31/1990 on 

trading companies, as amended and supplemented, GEO no. 32/2012 regarding 

undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities and investment 

management firms and amending and supplementing of Law no. 297/2004 on the 

capital market and GEO no. 75/1999 on financial audit and operates as a separate 

department within S.I.F. Oltenia S.A., according to the C.A.F.R. decision no. 

88/2007 for the approval of the internal audit Rules. 

The activity of internal audit was developed according to the Internal Audit 

Procedures approved by the Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. 

through the Decision no. 6/26.06.2015.  

The organization and operation modality, the conduct of internal audit 

missions, the objectives pursued are set by the Internal Regulations of S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. approved by R.N.S.C. with the approval no. 279/12.08.2015. 

The activity of internal audit during 2016 developed on the basis of the 

Internal Audit Plan approved by the Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia 

S.A. with the Decision no. 2/10.02.2016. 
 

The internal audit had the following objectives: 

a) evaluating the compliance of the entity`s activities with its policies, programs and 

management, in accordance with the legal provisions; 

b) evaluating the appropriateness degree and application of financial and non 

financial controls disposed and conducted by the company management for the 

purpose to increase efficiency of its activity; 

c) evaluating the appropriateness degree of the financial and non financial 

information destined to the leadership to know the reality of the company; 
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d) the protection of the patrimonial elements from balance sheet and off- balance 

sheet and the identification of the methods for the prevention of frauds and the 

losses of any kind. 

e) evaluating and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy of systems, internal 

control mechanisms and procedures of the company. 

The missions of internal audit in the year 2016 developed in the functional 

departments of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. and had mainly, according to the internal audit 

Plan, the following activities:  
 

- Inventory of patrimony and exploitation of its results; 

- Rules and procedures for the development of the activity in each 

department, according to the F.S.A. Regulations no. 9/2014;  

- The dividends paid to S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. shareholders natural and legal 

persons existing at the date of registration; 

- The  dividends  collected  from  the  companies  in  the portfolio of

 S.I.F. Oltenia S.A.;  

- Compliance with F.S.A. regulations regarding the calculation and 

reporting of net asset;  

- Organization of financial assets evidence of the type of shares and 

securities;  

- Purchases of fixed assets, inventory objects, modernizations,  repairs, 

their evidence and depreciation recorded on expenses; 

- Compliance with the discipline of cash office operations, providing and 

justifying treasury advances;  

- Employer`s contributions to the state budget, the budget of social 

insurances and special funds.  
 

Internal audits conducted according to the internal audit plan approved by the 

Audit Committee and the Board of Administrators of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. for 2016, 

which included the most important activities have been completed with the 

following conclusions:  

- The activities were conducted in accordance with procedures, rules or work 

instructions and internal regulations, without registering any significant deviations 

that may affect the smooth running of the company or register major risks; 
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- There are sufficient levers of control which are respected for safety of each 

transaction;and to reduce risks;  

- No irregularities were found in relation to the protection of assets, there 

were no fraud or loss.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In the Economic Department S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. functioned until 18.05.2016, 

the Investments and Risk Management Directorate.  
 

Among the duties of this directorate were  identifying risks and submitting 

for approval to the Company's management, in order to adapt  measures 

necessary to optimally manage risks. 
 

Risks management specific for each activities  from the functional and 

organizational structure has been achieved in each department / specialty direction.  

During 2016 they were not identified significant risks to disrupt the 

company's business. 
 

As of 10.05.2016, to ensure conditions of independence hierarchically and 

functionally for  the risk management position within the company's organization 

chart was created a risk management department under the authority of the Board 

of Directors. As of 15.11.2016, by Decision no. 26/2016, Ms. Daniela Dumitrescu 

has been appointed as Risk Manager, following to exercise in concrete tasks from 

the time of approval of his appointment by the Financial Supervisory Authority. 
 

The management of departments  S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. was composed of: 
 

- during the period 01.01.2016 – 31.12.2016:  

- Economic Departament Manager 

- Investments, Net Asset Transactions and Calculation Manager 

- Portfolio Monitoring Department Manager 

- Legal Department Manager 

- Human Resources Department Manager  
 

 

In the Internal regulations of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. clear duties are set out 

for the Department and each Directorate.  

Occupants of Manager positions  according to Internal regulations, must meet 

stringent training and experience in the capital market.  
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In order to provide to shareholders relevant information in real time, S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. created on the website www.sifolt.ro the section called Investors Info, 

easily accessible and constantly updated.  
 

The website is structured to contain specific information necessary to the 

securities holders (in Romanian and English), among which: 
 

Corporate Governance Code, Remuneration policy, Insider 

Transactions, Internal regulations, Internal audit, External audit, the 

Board of Directors, Effective management, Executive Management, 

Internal Control, Investors Info - which include: Financial calendar, 

Periodic reporting, Continuing Reporting Investment policies - 

Prudential regulation, monthly Net Asset Reporting, Monthly 

newsletter, General Assemblies.  
 

 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. has specialized internal structures for relations with the 

investors and its shareholders namely Shareholders and Relations with Shareholders 

Service (mihaela.talea@sifolt.ro) and the Public Relations Office (public@sifolt.ro). 
 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. has appointed two people to maintain contact with the 

capital market institutions (F.S.A. and B.V.B.), these people periodically attending 

specialization programs.  
 

To facilitate and encourage the participation of shareholders at the general 

meetings of Shareholders and to their full exercise of their rights, S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. 

has provided the possibility of exercising voting in absentia based on general and 

special power of attorney, of remote voting (voting by mail). Documents for 

voting, whatever the version of voting the shareholder chooses may be sent by 

post / courier or electronically or may be filed at the registry of the company, in 

compliance with the voting procedure set by the Board of Administrators based 

on the legal and statutory provisions.  
 

The working manner  was public and was presented through press in the 

Continuous Reporting.  

All the documents relating to the meetings of shareholders were legally 

published within the official website of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A .:  www.sifolt.ro. 

Under internal regulations, rules and procedures are provided on regular 

http://www.sifolt.ro/
mailto:mihaela.talea@sifolt.ro
mailto:pubilic@sifolt.ro
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ongoing provision of information to ensure a transparent activity in order to ensure 

equal access of investors to information.  
 

Following the entry into force of the New Code of Corporate Governance, 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. presented by Current Report no. 29 / 04.01.2016, the 

Declaration of conformity with the Corporate Governance Code in the transition 

period, listing the provisions of the Code which are not observed on 31 December 

2015 and explaining briefly the reason for that violation, as follows: 
 

 Code Provisions Does not 

comply 

or 

partially 

complies 

Reason for non-compliance 

A.8  The corporate governance statement should 

inform on whether an evaluation of the Board 

has taken place under the leadership of the 

chairman or the nomination committee and, if it 

has, summarize key action points and changes 

resulting from it. The company should have a 

policy/guidance regarding the evaluation of the 

Board containing the purpose, criteria and 

frequency of the evaluation process. 

 

 

 

 

X 

During 2015 there was no assessment of the 

Board of Administrators of the company. At 

thelevel of the Board of Administrators is not 

established a Nomination committee. In 2015 

the Board of Administrators was completed 

with an independent member following to be 

set up the nomination committee. 

Subsequently its establishment will be adopted 

the policy / guidelines on the assessment of 

the Committee will follow the criteria and 

evaluation process. 

A.11 The Board of Premium Tier companies should 

set up a nomination committee formed of non-

executives, which will lead to process for Board 

appointments and make recommendations to the 

Board. The majority of the members of the 

nomination committee should be independent. 

 

 

 

X 

During 2015 the Board of Administrators 

was completed by an independent 

member. During 2016 will be set up the 

Nomination Committee. 

D.2  A company should have an annual cash 

distribution or dividend policy, proposed by 

the CEO or the Management Board and 

adopted by the Board, as a set of directions 

the company intends to follow regarding the 

distribution of net profit. The annual cash 

distribution or dividend policy principles 

should be published on the corporate 

website. 

 

 

 

 

X 

The company had not formalized an annual 

dividend distribution policy but, despite this, the 

Company distributed dividends annually 

consistent. In the last five years the amounts 

distributed represented between 54% and 90% 

of net profit. Amount of the dividend / share was 

proposed annually by the executive 

management, adopted by the Board of 

Administrators and subject to the approval of 

AGOA.   

In the Ordinary General Meeting which took on 
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the agenda the approval of allocation of net profit, 

with the amount of the dividend / share, they also 

were approved their methods of distribution to 

shareholders.  

D.9  A company will hold at least two meetings / 

conference calls with analysts and 

investmenters every year. Information 

presented on these occasions will be 

published in the Investor Relations section of 

the website of the company at the date of 

meetings / teleconferences. 

 

 

 

 

 

X 

It was considered that information on 

corporate governance and continuous periodic 

reports submitted to the regulated market and 

published on the company's web site ensured a 

high degree of transparency and enabled 

investors to make decisions based on concrete 

and complete data. 

Starting with the year 2016 will be organized 

meetings / conference calls with analysts and 

investors, and the information presented 

therein will be published on the company web 

site. 

D.10  If a company sustains various forms of 

artistic and cultural expression, sporting, 

educational or scientific activities and 

considers their impact on the innovative 

nature and competitivity society are part of 

the mission and its development strategy, 

will publish policy on his activity in this 

area. 

 

 

 

X 

The company has no policy on supporting 

various forms of artistic and cultural 

expression, sporting, educational or 

scientific activities but during 2015 

granted sponsoring for up to 2.500 

lei/event. 

 

 

 

 

By Decision no. 20 / 12.19.2016 of the Board of Directors, was constituted 

the Nomination Committee with the following composition: 

- Carmen Popa – Chairman 

- Cristian Buşu – Member 

- Tudor Ciurezu – Member. 
 

Also in its meeting on 09.02.2017, the Board of Administrators approved the 

annual review (2016) of Board of Administrators members and Senior 

Management performed by the Nomination Committee. 
 

 

 

 

SOCIAL RESPONSABILITY 
 

 The sustainable development strategy of a company, there are at European 

level, the strong concern to regulate the integration of social responsibility in its 
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work. To encourage the efforts of companies that have embraced such a complex 

philosophy were thus launched numerous initiatives aimed at issues such as: 

business, customer relationship, the relationship with shareholders, the relationship 

with suppliers, the environment, local communities, the relationship with its 

employees .  

Companies should establish appropriate strategies and areas of responsibility 

while responding to community needs. It is the task of civil society and public sector 

to develop long-term projects and to realize their wide dissemination. Thus appears 

in the scene, the media, with a major role of information and education in this area, 

along with experts, government representatives, opinion leaders, representatives of 

multinational companies with rich tradition related to this concept, as Romanian 

companies who want to inform and which already have exciting projects. 
 

Well integrated in the development strategy of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A., social 

responsibility is reflected primarily in the economic impact of of the activity 

performed, consisting of high level of taxes with which the company participates in 

the state budget and social security budgets. 
 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. was directly involved, also in 2016, in solving / support 

social problems of the community by providing sponsorships for supporting 

activities.  
 

Linked to quality of life, one must mention here that one of the areas of 

activity, closely linked to the theme of social responsibility, always present in the 

portfolio of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. was and still is the pharmaceutical industry, the 

company also invested during 2016 in this area.  
 

S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. participated in 2016 to professional internships in 

accordance with the activity performed and was involved - as a partner - in 

supporting events organized and held in the specific area of the capital market, 

noting here: 

 

1)  the seminar „Major amendments of the  Fiscal Code and the Fiscal 

Procedure Code from 1 January 2016. Relationship Company – Fisc – 

Employees - Suppliers and Customers. Case studies and solutions to the 

challenges brought on by the new regulations.” 

organized by Media Makers Bucharest, in collaboration with the consulting 

company PricewaterhouseCoopers and PKF Finconta, în 29 January 2016 

in Bucharest 
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2) the course „New regulations for transfer pricing” 
organizad by Business Breakfast Craiova in 16 Feb 2016 

 

3) the course “IFRS Academy” 

organizad by KPMG during the period 14 – 15 April 2016 in Bucharest 

 

4) the conference „Women Entrepreneurship-woman in power - a better 

world" the fourth edition, organizad by newspaper BURSA on 

21.04.2016. – partner 

 

5)  the course “IFRS – capital market” 

organized by ISF (Institute of Financial Studies), on 27 May 2016 in 

Bucharest. 

 

6) the course “ Risk Manager” 

organized by the Romanian Association for Quality – ARC during 13 – 17 

June in Bucharest 

  

7)  the event “IFRS – Forum” 

organized by Business Mark in June 2016 in Bucharest 

 

Among the social responsibility principles observed in the activity of S.I.F. 

Oltenia S.A. also are: 
 

- ensuring a safe and healthy working environment; 

- ensuring the improvement of employees quality of life at work and outside 

it;  

- approaching restructuration responsibly, taking into account the interests of 

all parties involved;  

- minimizing the impact of activities developed on the environment; 

- application of equitable principles and practices by the company 

management; Thus,  

In the management structure (effective management plus executive 

management) women have a share of 57.14%. 

- building trust relations with companies where they hold shareholdings; 

- promoting the company values among employees through 

 training programs.  
 

The activities of social responsibilities also aim at stimulating and rendering 
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loyal the employees and their involvement in various humanitarian and social 

actions. 

The complex activity of the company supposes the fulfilment of certain 

high professional standars of training of employees. In 2016, the senior 

management and the Representative of  the Internal Control Department / 

Compliance participated in training courses and continuing professional 

development, with the main thematic changes in legislation, focusing on the law 

applicable to the capital market in Romania.  

 

 

 

Ph.D Associate Prof. ec. Tudor CIUREZU       Anina RADU          ec. Elena  SICHIGEA 

 

                         Chairman          Deputy General Manager        Economic Manager 
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE BUCHAREST STOCK EXCHANGE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE 
 

Code provision  
 

Complies 

Does not 
comply or 
partially 
complies 

Reason for non-compliance 

A.1  All companies should have internal regulation of the Board which includes terms of 
reference/responsibilities for Board and key management functions of the company, applying, 
among others, the General Principles of Section A.  

X   

A.2  Provisions for the management of conflict of interest should be included in Board regulation. In any 
event, members of the Board should notify the Board of any conflicts of interest which have arisen 
or may arise, and should refrain from taking part in the discussion (including by not being present 
where this does not render the meeting non-quorate) and from voting on the adoption of a 
resolution on the issue which gives rise to such conflict of interest.  

X   

A.3  The Board of Directors or the Supervisory Board should have at least five members.  X   

A.4  The majority of the members of the Board of Directors should be non-executive. At least one 
member of the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board should be independent, in the case of 
Standard Tier companies. Not less than two non-executive members of the Board of Directors or 
Supervisory Board should be independent, in the case of Premium Tier Companies. Each member 
of the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board, as the case may be, should submit a declaration 
that he/she is independent at the moment of his/her nomination for election or re-election as well 
as when any change in his/her status arises, by demonstrating the ground on which he/she is 
considered independent in xcharacter and judgement in practice 1. 

X   

A.5  A Board member’s other relatively permanent professional commitments and engagements, 
including executive and non-executive Board positions in companies and not-for-profit institutions, 
should be disclosed to shareholders and to potential investors before appointment and during 
his/her mandate.  

X   

A.6  Any member of the Board should submit to the Board, information on any relationship with a 
shareholder who holds directly or indirectly, shares representing more than 5% of all voting rights. 
This obligation concerns any kind of relationship which may affect the position of the member on 
issues decided by the Board. 

X   

A.7  The company should appoint a Board secretary responsible for supporting the work of the Board.  X   

A.8  The corporate governance statement should inform on whether an evaluation of the Board has 
taken place under the leadership of the chairman or the nomination committee and, if it has, 

X   

                                                 
1 A se vedea Codul, prevederile A.4.1. - A.4.9. pentru o enumerare a criteriilor de independenţă. Compendiul bunelor practici de guvernanţă corporativă include o explicaţie cuprinzătoare a conceptului de administrator 
independent.   
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summarize key action points and changes resulting from it. The company should have a 
policy/guidance regarding the evaluation of the Board containing the purpose, criteria and 
frequency of the evaluation process.  

A.9  The corporate governance statement should contain information on the number of meetings of the 
Board and the committees during the past year, attendance by directors (in person and in absentia) 
and a report of the Board and committees on their activities. 

X   

A.10  The corporate governance statement should contain information on the precise number of the 
independent members of the Board of Directors or of the Supervisory Board.  

X   

A.11 The Board of Premium Tier companies should set up a nomination committee formed of non-
executives, which will lead the process for Board appointments and make recommendations to the 
Board. The majority of the members of the Nomination Committee should be independent.  

X   

B.1  The Board should set up an audit committee, and at least one member should be an independent non-
executive. The majority of members, including the chairman, should have proven an adequate 
qualification relevant to the functions and responsibilities of the committee. At least one member of the 
audit committee should have proven and adequate auditing or accounting experience. In the case of 
Premium Tier companies, the audit committee should be composed of at least three members and the 
majority of the audit committee should be independent.  

X   

B.2  The Audit Committee should be chaired by an independent non-executive member.  X   

B.3  Among its responsibilities, the Audit Committee should undertake an annual assessment of the 
system of internal control.  

X   

B.4  The assessment should consider the effectiveness and scope of the internal audit function, the 
adequacy of risk management and internal control reports to the audit committee of the Board, 
management’s responsiveness and effectiveness in dealing with identified internal control failings 
or weaknesses and their submission of relevant reports to the Board.  

X   

B.5  The Audit Committee should review conflicts of interests in transactions of the company and its 
subsidiaries with related parties.  

X   

B.6  The Audit Committee should evaluate the efficiency of the internal control system and risk 
management system.  

X   

B.7  The Audit Committee should monitor the application of statutory and generally accepted standards 
of internal auditing. The Audit Committee should receive and evaluate the reports of the internal 
audit team.  

X   

B.8  Whenever the Code mentions reviews or analysis to be exercised by the Audit Committee, these 
should be followed by cyclical (at least annual), or ad-hoc reports to be submitted to the Board 
afterwards.  

X   

B.9  No shareholder may be given undue preference over other shareholders with regard to 
transactions and agreements made by the company with shareholders and their related parties.  

X   
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B.10  The Board should adopt a policy ensuring that any transaction of the company with any of the 
companies with which it has close relations, that is equal to or more than 5% of the net assets of 
the company (as stated in the latest financial report), should be approved by the Board following an 
obligatory opinion of the Board’s audit committee, and fairly disclosed to the shareholders and 
potential investors, to the extent that such transactions fall under the category of events subject to 
disclosure requirements.  

X   

B.11  The internal audits should be carried out by a separate structural division (internal audit 
department) within the company or by retaining an independent third-party entity.  

X   

B.12  To ensure the fulfilment of the core functions of the internal audit department, it should report 
functionally to the Board via the audit committee. For administrative purposes and in the scope 
related to the obligations of the management to monitor and mitigate risks, it should report directly 
to the chief executive officer.  

X   

C.1 a. Remuneration policy  
The company should publish a remuneration policy on its website and include in its annual report a 
remuneration statement on the implementation of this policy during the annual period under review.  
The remuneration policy should be formulated in such a way that allows stakeholders to 
understand the principles and rationale behind the remuneration of the members of the Board and 
the CEO, as well as of the members of the Management Board in two-tier board systems. It should 
describe the remuneration governance and decision-making process, detail the components of 
executive remuneration (i.e. salaries, annual bonus, long term stock-linked incentives, benefits in 
kind, pensions, and others) and describe each component’s purpose, principles and assumptions 
(including the general performance criteria related to any form of variable remuneration). In 
addition, the remuneration policy should disclose the duration of the executive’s contract and their 
notice period and eventual compensation for revocation without cause.  
[…]  
Any essential change of the remuneration policy should be published on the corporate website in a 
timely fashion.  
 

b. Remuneration report 
The company should publish a remuneration policy on its website and include in its annual report a 
remuneration statement on the implementation of this policy during the annual period under review. 
[…]  
The remuneration report should present the implementation of the remuneration policy vis-à-vis the 
persons identified in the remuneration policy during the annual period under review.  

X   
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D.1 2 The company should have an Investor Relations function - indicated, by person (s) responsible or 
an organizational unit, to the general public. In addition to information required by legal provisions, 
the company should include on its corporate website a dedicated Investor Relations section, both 
in Romanian and English, with all relevant information of interest for investors, including:  

X   

D.1.1  Principal corporate regulations: the articles of association, general shareholders’ meeting 
procedures.  

X   

D.1.2  Professional CVs of the members of its governing bodies, a Board member’s other professional 
commitments, including executive and non-executive Board positions in companies and not-for-
profit institutions;  

X   

D.1.3  Current reports and periodic reports (quarterly, semi-annual and annual reports) – at least as 
provided at item D.8 – including current reports with detailed information related to non-compliance 
with the present Code;  

X   

D.1.4  Information related to general meetings of shareholders: the agenda and supporting materials; the 
procedure approved for the election of Board members; the rationale for the proposal of candidates 
for the election to the Board, together with their professional CVs; shareholders’ questions related 
to the agenda and the company’s answers, including the decisions taken;  

X   

D.1.5  Information on corporate events, such as payment of dividends and other distributions to 
shareholders, or other events leading to the acquisition or limitation of rights of a shareholder, 
including the deadlines and principles applied to such operations. Such information should be 
published within a timeframe that enables investors to make investment decisions;  

X   

D.1.6 The name and contact data of a person who should be able to provide knowledgeable information 
on request;  

X   

D.1.7  Corporate presentations (e.g. IR presentations, quarterly results presentations, etc.), financial 
statements (quarterly, semi-annual, annual), auditor reports and annual reports.  

X   

D.2  A company should have an annual cash distribution or dividend policy, proposed by the CEO or the 
Management Board and adopted by the Board, as a set of directions the company intends to follow 
regarding the distribution of  
net profit. The annual cash distribution or dividend policy principles should be published on the 
corporate website.  

 X The company has not formalized a policy 
regarding the annual distribution of 
dividend, but, despite this fact, the 
company distributed a sizeable annual 
dividend. Thus, in the last 5 years the 
amounts distributed represented between 
54% and 90% of net profit. The value of 
the dividend / share was proposed by the 
executive management, adopted by the 
Administration Board and submitted to the 

                                                 
2 Conformitatea cu prevederea D.1. înseamnă că societatea este conformă cu toate subpunctele acesteia (D.1.1, D.1.2, etc.).   
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approval of OGSM annually.  
In the Ordinary General Meetings having 
had on the agenda the approval of net 
profit allocation, at the same time with the 
value of the dividend/share, also the 
methods of their distribution to the 
shareholders were approved. 

D.3  A company should have adopted a policy with respect to forecasts, whether they are distributed or 
not. Forecasts means the quantified conclusions of studies aimed at determining the total impact of 
a list of factors related to a future period (so called assumptions): by nature such a task is based 
upon a high level of uncertainty, with results sometimes significantly differing from forecasts initially 
presented. The policy should provide for the frequency, period envisaged, and content of forecasts. 
Forecasts, if published, may only be part of annual, semi-annual or quarterly reports. The forecast 
policy should be published on the corporate website.  

X   

D.4  The rules of general meetings of shareholders should not restrict the participation of shareholders 
in general meetings and the exercising of their rights. Amendments of the rules should take effect 
at the earliest as of the next general meeting of shareholders.  

X   

D.5  The external auditors should attend the shareholders’ meetings when their reports are presented 
there.  

X   

D.6  The Board should present to the annual general meeting of shareholders a brief assessment of the 
internal controls and significant risk management system, as well as opinions on issues subject to 
resolution at the general meeting.  

X   

D.7  Any professional, consultant, expert or financial analyst may participate in the shareholders’ 
meeting upon prior invitation from the Chairman of the Board. Accredited journalists may also 
participate in the general meeting of shareholders, unless the Chairman of the Board decides 
otherwise.  

X   

D.8  The quarterly and semi-annual financial reports should include information in both Romanian and 
English regarding the key drivers influencing the change in sales, operating profit, net profit and 
other relevant financial indicators, both on quarter-on-quarter and year-on-year terms.  

X 
 

 

  

D.9  A company should organize at least two meetings/conference calls with analysts and investors 
each year. The information presented on these occasions should be published in the IR section of 
the company website at the time of the meetings/conference calls.  

 X The information regarding the corporate 
governance, regular and continuous reports 
submitted to the settled market and 
published on the company website provided 
a high degree of transparency and allowed 
investors to make decisions based on 
concrete and comprehensive data. 



 6 

 

On the occasion of organizing and running 
GSMs during 2016, it was provided within 
the Procedure on organizing and running 
SIF Oltenia SA's GSMs the possibility of 
requesting the attendance by the analysts, 
investors, journalists, specialists etc. 
 
"On GSM may attend any specialist, adviser, 
expert or financial analysts based on a 
previous invitation from the company's Board 
of Administrators. The journalists accredited 
at SIF Oltenia SA may attend the GSM, 
unless the Chairman of the Board of 
Administrators decides otherwise." 

There were not such previous requests 

D.10  If a company supports various forms of artistic and cultural expression, sport activities, educational 
or scientific activities, and considers the resulting impact on the innovativeness and 
competitiveness of the company part of its business mission and development strategy, it should 
publish the policy guiding its activity in this area.  

 X The company has no policy as for 
supporting various forms of artistic and 
cultural expression, sports activities, 
educational or scientific activities, but it 
granted sponsorships up to 2.500 lei/event 
during the year 2016. 

 
 

 

The Administration Board 

      Associate prof. PhD. ec.  Tudor CIUREZU                            Anina RADU 

 

                                    President                         Vice President  

 
 
 



 

 

ANNEX 

LIST  

of the companies controlled by  S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A.  

on 31.12.2016 
 

Item 

No.  
Company name 

Total share 

capital  

  

- lei - 

Nominal 

value of 

share 

 - lei - 

  S.I.F. OLTENIA S.A.  holding 

Value 

 

- lei - 

No. of 

shares 

Percentage 

 

% 

1.  COMPLEX HOTELIER S.A. DAMBOVITA 4,385,557.5 2.5 4,383,042.50 1,753,217 99.94 

2.  VOLTALIM S.A. CRAIOVA 15,115,605.50 2.5 14,993,797.50 5,997,519 99.19 

3.  MERCUR S.A. CRAIOVA 2,958,210 2.5 2,762,090 1,104,836 93.37 

4.  GEMINA TOUR S.A. RM.VILCEA 2,146,102.5 2.5 1,894,720 757,888 88.29 

5.  ARGUS S.A. CONSTANTA 53,670,699 1.5 46,266,852 30,844,568 86.21 

6.  FLAROS S.A. BUCURESTI 3,803,415 2.5 3,082,235.00 1,232,894 81.04 

7.  CONSTRUCTII FEROVIARE S.A. CRAIOVA 8,791,365 2.5 6,813,312.5 2,725,325 77.50 

8.  UNIVERS S.A. RM.VALCEA 1,991,605 2.5 1,468,797.5 587,519 73.75 

9.  PROVITAS S.A. BUCURESTI 500,000 10 351,390 35,139 70.28 

10.  TURISM S.A. PUCIOASA 3,650,000 2.5 2,526,497.5 1,010,599 69.22 

11.  ALIMENTARA S.A. SLATINA 998,987.58 2.43 521,823.06 214,742 52.24 

12.  LACTATE NATURA S.A. TARGOVISTE 6,174,515 2.5 2,451,092.50 980,437 39.70 

 

 

 

 

The Administration Board 

      Associate prof. PhD. ec.  Tudor CIUREZU                            Anina RADU 

 

                                    President                          Vice President  

 



ANNEX 16

(it is filled in every month)                                     

FINAL DATA

Value (lei)

1 FIXED ASSETS (rows 1.1 to 1.3) 565,844,129

1.1 Intangible assets 4,519

1.2 Tangible assets 11,856,466

1.3 Financial assets, out of which: 553,983,144

1.3.1 Shares quoted 10,033,107

1.3.2 Shares not quoted 543,706,344

1.3.3 Government securities 0

1.3.4 Certificates of deposit 0

1.3.5 Bank deposits 0

1.3.6 Municipal bonds 0

1.3.7 Corporate bonds 0

1.3.8 Newly issued securities 0

1.3.9 Equity investments of OPCVM and/or AOPC 0

1.3.10 Shares entitled according to subscriptions to share capital increases    0

1.3.11 Other financial assets 243,693

2 CURRENT ASSETS (row 2.1 to 2.4 + 2.5 to 2.9) 1,005,064,496

2.1 Inventories 17,985

2.2 Receivables, out of which: 13,427,910

2.2.1 Dividends to be cashed 0

2.2.2 Other rights to receive 0

2.2.3 Other receivables 13,427,910

2.3 Liquid assets 3,509,197

2.4 Financial investments on short term, out of which: 963,642,928

2.4.1 Shares quoted 961,256,223

2.4.2 Shares not quoted 0

2.4.3 Municipal bonds 0

2.4.4 Corporate bonds 0

2.4.5 Equity investments of OPCVM and/or AOPC 2,386,705

2.4.6 Preference rights 0

2.5 Newly issued securities 0

2.6 Government securities 0

2.7 Bank deposits 24,466,476

2.8 Certificates of deposit 0

2.9 Other current assets 0

3 DERIVATIVES 0

4 EXPENDITURES REGISTERED IN ADVANCE 81,276

5 TOTAL ASSET  (rows. 1+2+3+4) 1,570,989,901

SIF Oltenia S.A.

Statement of assets and debts on 31/12/2016

Calculation modality of the net asset value  (according to RNSC 

regulations no. 15/2004)



ANNEX 16

(it is filled in every month)                                     

FINAL DATA

Value (lei)

SIF Oltenia S.A.

Statement of assets and debts on 31/12/2016

Calculation modality of the net asset value  (according to RNSC 

regulations no. 15/2004)

6 DEBTS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR (row 6.1 to 6.9) 63,473,025

6.1 Loans from issue of bonds 0

6.2 Amounts due to credit institutions 0

6.3 Advances cashed in the account of customers 0

6.4 Commercial debts 244,383

6.5 Commercial bills to be paid 0

6.6 Amounts due to companies within the group  0

6.7 Amounts due regarding equity interests  0

6.8 Dividends or other rights to be paid, out of which: 56,991,969

6.8.1 Dividends to be paid 56,991,969

6.8.2 Amounts subscribed and not paid in the share capital increases of issuers  0

6.9 Other debts 6,236,673

7 DEBTS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THEN ONE YEAR 122,077,335

8 PROVISIONS 5,048,000

9 INCOMES REGISTERED IN ADVANCE, out of which: (rows 9.1 to 9.2) 12,617,426

9.1 Subsidies for investments 0

9.2 Incomes registered in advance 12,617,426

10 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY, out of which: (rows 10.1 to 10.8 – 10.9) 1,429,195,054

10.1 Share capital subscribed and paid 58,016,571

10.2 Premium related to capital 0

10.3 Differences from revaluation 7,755,548

10.4 Adjusted reserves, out of which: 2,435,480,192

10.4.1 Reserves 628,700,831

10.4.2 Adjustments of IFRS reserves as per IAS 29 - hyperinflation 1,806,779,361

10.5 Retained earnings, out of which: -2,431,608,572

10.5.1 Retained earnings representing profit carried forward 0

10.5.2 Retained earnings due to changeover to IFRS less IAS 29 7,023,313

10.5.3 Retained earnings due to adoption for the first time of IAS 29 -2,438,631,885

10.6 Result of the exercise 101,271,377

10.7 Other shareholders equity items 626,427,414

10.8 Items assimilated to capital 631,852,524

10.9 Profit allocation 0

11 TOTAL LIABILITIES (rows 6+7+8+9+10) 1,632,410,840

12 NET ASSET (rows 5-6-9) 1,494,899,450

13 NUMBER OF SHARES ISSUED 580,165,714

14 NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARES (rows12/13) 2.5767



ANNEX 16

(it is filled in every month)                                     

FINAL DATA

Value (lei)

SIF Oltenia S.A.

Statement of assets and debts on 31/12/2016

Calculation modality of the net asset value  (according to RNSC 

regulations no. 15/2004)

15
Number of companies in the portfolio, out of which: (rows 15.1 to 

15.3)
52

15.1 Companies accepted to transaction on a regulated market 18

15.2 Companies accepted to transaction on an alternative transaction system  14

15.3 Companies not accepted to transaction 20

16 Companies where financial statements were not obtained * 0

GENERAL MANAGER,  ECONOMIC MANAGER,

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea

Statement prepared based on the check balance determined under the Norm 39 of ASF/2015 for approval of the 

Accounting Regulations complying with IFRS (International Financial Reporting Standards) applicable to 

authorised entities, regulated and monitored by the ASF (Financial Supervisory Authority) from the Financial 

Instruments and Investment Sector.

* According to art. 116 paragraph (2) of the F.S.A. Regulation no. 9 / 2014, the value of these companies 

considered in the calculation of the net asset is zero.   

Statement certified by Depositary Raiffeisen Bank S.A.



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Situation of assets on 31/12/2016 (it is filled in every year and semester)

Net asset 1,622,765,774 lei 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,708,098,544 lei 1,570,989,901 lei

FINAL DATA

Differences (lei)

I. TOTAL ASSETS
% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

1 Securities and instruments of the 

monetary market, of which: 69.6005 66.1235 0 1,129,453,822 64.9736 61.8266 0 971,289,330 (158,164,492)

1.1 Securities and instruments of the monetary 

market admitted or traded on a settled 

market of Romania, of which:shares, other 

assimilated securities to them (each 

category being mentioned) , bonds (on 

categories of issuer), other receivables 

(being mentioned on types and categories of 

issuer), other securities, instruments of the 

monetary market (on categories);
69.6005 66.1235 0 1,129,453,822 64.9736 61.8266 0 971,289,330 (158,164,492)

 - BVB - shares
53.4806 50.8088 0 867,864,404 52.4545 49.9139 0 784,142,209 (83,722,195)

 - AERO -shares
16.1142 15.3092 0 261,495,964 12.5190 11.9127 0 187,147,121 (74,348,843)

 - SIBEX - shares
0.0058 0.0055 0 93,454 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 (93,454)

 - Preference rights
0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

1.2 Securities and instruments of the monetary 

market admitted or traded on a settled 

market of a member state, of which: shares, 

other securities assimilated to them (each 

category being mentioned), bonds (on 

categories of issuer), other receivables  

(being mentioned on types and categories of 

issuer), other securities, instruments of the 

monetary market (on categories);

0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

Name of the element The beginning of the reporting period The end of the reporting period



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Situation of assets on 31/12/2016 (it is filled in every year and semester)

Net asset 1,622,765,774 lei 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,708,098,544 lei 1,570,989,901 lei

FINAL DATA

Differences (lei)

I. TOTAL ASSETS
% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

Name of the element The beginning of the reporting period The end of the reporting period

1.3 Securities and instruments of the monetary 

market admitted at the official rate of a stock 

exchange in a non member state or 

negotiated on another settled market of a 

non member state, which regularly operates 

and is recognized and open to public, 

approved by R.N.S.C of which:   shares, 

other securities assimilated to them (each 

category being mentioned), bonds (on 

categories of issuer), other receivables  

(being mentioned on types and categories of 

issuer), other securities, instruments of the 

monetary market (on categories);

0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

2 Newly issued securities 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

3 Other securities and instruments 

of the monetary market mentioned 

in art. 187 letter a): securities (on 

categories and types of issuer) 

and instruments of the monetary 

market  (on categories);

34.0573 32.3559 0 552,671,449 36.3708 34.6092 0 543,706,344 (8,965,105)



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Situation of assets on 31/12/2016 (it is filled in every year and semester)

Net asset 1,622,765,774 lei 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,708,098,544 lei 1,570,989,901 lei

FINAL DATA

Differences (lei)

I. TOTAL ASSETS
% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

Name of the element The beginning of the reporting period The end of the reporting period

4 Bank deposits, of which: 0.3583 0.3404 4,901,094.58 912,603.52 1.6367 1.5574 5,105,236.30 19,361,239.48 18,652,778 

4.1 Bank deposits made in credit institutions of 

Romania;  0.3583 0.3404 4,901,094.58 912,603.52 1.6367 1.5574 5,105,236.30 19,361,239.48 18,652,778 

4.2 Bank deposits made in credit institutions of 

a member state;  0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

4.3 Bank deposits made in credit institutions of 

a non member state;  0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

5 Financial instruments derived 

traded on a settled market 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

5.1 Financial instruments derived traded on a 

settled market of Romania, on categories;   

0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

5.2 Financial instruments derived traded on a 

settled market of a member state, on 

categories;  0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

5.3 Financial instruments derived traded on a 

settled market of a non member state, on 

categories;  0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

5.4 Financial instruments derived negotiated 

outside the settled markets, on categories of 

instruments;  0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

6 Current accounts and cash 0.0470 0.0446 136,982 625,425 0.2347 0.2234 1,415,865 2,093,332 2,746,790 

7 Instruments of the monetary 

market, other than those traded 

on a settled market, according to 

art. 101paragraph (1) letter g) of 

the Law no. 297/2004. 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Situation of assets on 31/12/2016 (it is filled in every year and semester)

Net asset 1,622,765,774 lei 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,708,098,544 lei 1,570,989,901 lei

FINAL DATA

Differences (lei)

I. TOTAL ASSETS
% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

% of net 

asset

% of total 

asset

Foreign 

Currency
Lei

Name of the element The beginning of the reporting period The end of the reporting period

8 Participation securities of 

AOPC/OPCVM 0.1418 0.1347 0 2,301,191 0.1597 0.1519 0 2,386,705 85,514 

9 Other assets (amounts in transit, 

amounts at distributors, amounts 

at SSIF etc.) 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

9.1 Shares due according to subscriptions to the 

increases of social capital  0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

9.2 Other rights to receive 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0.0000 0.0000 0 0 0 

GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX17

Situation of unit value of net asset on 31/12/2016

No. 

Item

Name of the element (according to 

RNSC Regulations no.15/2004)
30/09/2016 30/09/2015 Differences

1 No of shares issued 580,165,714 580,165,714 0

2 Unitary value of net asset 2.5767 2.7971 -0.2204

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

The evolution of net asset and of VUAN in the last 3 years on 31/12/2016

No. 

Item

Name of the element (according to 

RNSC Regulations no.15/2004)
31/12/2014 31/12/2015 31/12/2016

1 Net asset 1,543,555,299 1,622,765,774 1,494,899,450

2 Unit value of net asset 2.6605 2.7971 2.5767

GENERAL MANAGER ECONOMIC MANAGER

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Securities admitted or traded on a settled market of Romania – BVB (shares)

No. 

Ite

m

Issuer Symbol
Date of last 

transaction

No of shares 

held
Nominal value

Share 

value
Total value

Weight in 

the issuer`s 

social 

capital  

Weight in 

the total 

asset of SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of SIF

1 ALTUR SLATINA ALT 30/12/2016 49,428,571 0.1000 0.0356 1,759,657 5.9958 0.1120 0.1177

2 ANTIBIOTICE IASI ATB 30/12/2016 92,389,446 0.1000 0.5200 48,042,512 13.7620 3.0581 3.2138

3

B.R.D.-GROUPE SOCIETE 

GENERALE BUCURESTI BRD 30/12/2016 15,142,850 1.0000 11.8800 179,897,058 2.1729 11.4512 12.0341

4

BANCA TRANSILVANIA 

CLUJ TLV 30/12/2016 40,936,647 1.0000 2.3850 97,633,903 1.1228 6.2148 6.5311

5

BURSA DE VALORI 

BUCURESTI BVB 30/12/2016 383,709 10.0000 29.0000 11,127,561 5.0000 0.7083 0.7444

6

C.N.T.E.E. 

TRANSELECTRICA 

BUCURESTI TEL 30/12/2016 2,823,742 10.0000 29.2000 82,453,266 3.8521 5.2485 5.5156

7 COS TARGOVISTE COS 6,142,826 0.1000 0.0000 0 8.9220 0.0000 0.0000

8

ELECTROMAGNETICA 

BUCURESTI ELMA 30/12/2016 171,717,594 0.1000 0.1710 29,363,709 25.4006 1.8691 1.9643

9

OMV PETROM 

BUCURESTI SNP 30/12/2016 700,500,277 0.1000 0.2610 182,830,572 1.2367 11.6379 12.2303

10 PRODPLAST BUCURESTI PPL 30/12/2016 4,702,595 1.0000 2.6500 12,461,877 27.5450 0.7932 0.8336

11 S.E. ELECTRICA SA EL 30/12/2016 245,238 10.0000 13.1600 3,227,332 0.0709 0.2054 0.2159

12 S.N.G.N. ROMGAZ S.A. SNG 30/12/2016 1,551,729 1.0000 25.0000 38,793,225 0.4026 2.4693 2.5950

13

SANTIERUL NAVAL 

ORSOVA SNO 30/12/2016 2,422,738 2.5000 2.7700 6,710,984 21.2094 0.4272 0.4489

14 SIF MOLDOVA SIF2 30/12/2016 420,600 0.1000 0.7800 328,068 0.0405 0.0209 0.0219

15 SIF TRANSILVANIA SIF3 30/12/2016 5,370,162 0.1000 0.2500 1,342,541 0.2459 0.0855 0.0898



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Securities admitted or traded on a settled market of Romania – BVB (shares)

No. 

Ite

m

Issuer Symbol
Date of last 

transaction

No of shares 

held
Nominal value

Share 

value
Total value

Weight in 

the issuer`s 

social 

capital  

Weight in 

the total 

asset of SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of SIF

16

SNTGN TRANSGAZ 

MEDIAS TGN 30/12/2016 180,873 10.0000 294.0000 53,176,662 1.5362 3.3849 3.5572

17 T.M.K. ARTROM SLATINA ART 30/12/2016 6,376,741 2.5100 2.6100 16,643,294 5.4891 1.0594 1.1133

18

TURISM FELIX BAILE 

FELIX TUFE 30/12/2016 84,174,259 0.1000 0.2180 18,349,988 16.9655 1.1681 1.2275

784,142,209 49.9139 52.4545

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Activ net 1,494,899,450 lei

Total activ 1,570,989,901 lei

Securities admitted or traded on an alternative market of Romania– AERO (BVB) - (shares)

No. 

Ite

m

Issuer Symbol

Date of 

last 

transactio

n

No of shares 

held
Nominal value

Share 

value
Total value

Weight in 

the issuer`s 

social 

capital  

Weight in 

the total 

asset of SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of SIF

1 ALIMENTARA SLATINA ALRV 28/12/2016 214,742 2.4300 15.0000 3,221,130 52.2352 0.2050 0.2155

2 ARGUS CONSTANTA UARG 28/12/2016 30,844,568 1.5000 3.0000 92,533,704 86.2050 5.8902 6.1900

3

CEREALCOM 

ALEXANDRIA CCOM 12/08/2016 34,672,773 0.1000 0.0479 1,660,826 6.6944 0.1057 0.1111

4

CONSTRUCTII 

FEROVIARE CRAIOVA CFED 23/12/2016 2,725,325 2.5000 0.1000 272,533 77.5001 0.0173 0.0182

5 CONTACTOARE BUZAU CONQ 28/12/2016 521,220 2.5000 3.9000 2,032,758 18.1964 0.1294 0.1360

6 FLAROS BUCURESTI FLAO 02/12/2016 1,232,894 2.5000 32.0000 39,452,608 81.0386 2.5113 2.6391

7 IAMU BLAJ IAMU 28/11/2016 1,884,289 2.5000 3.6400 6,858,812 19.8343 0.4366 0.4588

8

LACTATE NATURA 

TARGOVISTE INBO 19/12/2016 980,437 2.5000 3.2800 3,215,833 39.6969 0.2047 0.2151

9 MAT CRAIOVA MTCR 11/07/2016 2,024,778 2.5000 4.1349 8,372,281 25.7118 0.5329 0.5601

10 MERCUR CRAIOVA MRDO 29/12/2016 1,104,836 2.5000 12.8000 14,141,901 93.3703 0.9002 0.9460

11 RELEE MEDIAS RELE 28/11/2016 62,080 2.5000 8.7000 540,096 11.4644 0.0344 0.0361

12 SINTEROM CLUJ SIRM 27/12/2016 1,531,471 2.5000 0.9500 1,454,897 31.6302 0.0926 0.0973

13 TUSNAD BAILE TUSNAD TSND 29/12/2016 26,296,078 0.1000 0.0400 1,051,843 8.7130 0.0670 0.0704

14 UNIVERS RM.VALCEA UNVR 30/12/2016 587,519 2.5000 21.0000 12,337,899 73.7494 0.7854 0.8253

187,147,121 11.9127 12.5190

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Instruments mentioned in art.187 lit.a) of RNSC Regulations no.15/2004

Shares issued by commercial companies of closed type  

No. 

Item
Issuer

No of shares 

held

Acquisitio

n date

Acquisition 

price
Share value Total value

Weight in 

the issuer`s 

social 

capital  

Weight in 

the total 

asset of SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of SIF

1

BANCA COMERCIALA 

ROMANA BUCURESTI 1,023,534,303 01/11/1996 0.0030 0.3800 388,952,975 6.2973 24.7585 26.0187

2

BIROUL DE INVESTITII 

REGIONAL OLTENIA IFN 272,411 01/11/1996 15.4540 10.8623 2,959,021 19.4540 0.1884 0.1979

3

BT ASSET MANAGEMENT 

S.A.I. CLUJ 716,559 28/02/2006 0.2791 4.1920 3,003,794 9.9998 0.1912 0.2009

4

COMPLEX HOTELIER 

DAMBOVITA 1,753,217 31/01/1998 2.7577 3.6563 6,410,364 99.9427 0.4080 0.4288

5 COREALIS CRAIOVA 655,757 30/06/2000 2.5000 3.8686 2,536,886 19.1789 0.1615 0.1697

6 CORINT TARGOVISTE 178,297 01/11/1996 0.4800 0.0000 0 5.7978 0.0000 0.0000

7

DEPOZITARUL CENTRAL 

BUCURESTI 9,878,329 31/07/1998 0.0770 0.1210 1,195,762 3.9057 0.0761 0.0800

8 DEPOZITARUL SIBEX 12,480 27/03/2009 96.1538 96.0059 1,198,153 5.4379 0.0763 0.0801

9 ELBA TIMISOARA 39,628 01/11/1996 2.5000 112.7097 4,466,459 2.3694 0.2843 0.2988

10

ELECTRO TOTAL 

BOTOSANI 57,909 28/02/2003 2.5000 0.0000 0 29.8562 0.0000 0.0000

11

EXIMBANK BANCA DE 

EXPORT IMPORT A 

ROMANIEI BUC 4,364,430 01/11/1996 5.0892 8.3650 36,508,314 3.2702 2.3239 2.4422

12 GEMINA TOUR RM.VILCEA 757,888 01/11/1996 1.3793 2.5302 1,917,587 88.2866 0.1221 0.1283

13 OTELINOX TARGOVISTE 1,809,195 01/11/1996 2.8091 5.8268 10,541,762 5.4694 0.6710 0.7052

14 PROVITAS BUCURESTI 35,139 01/11/1996 2.0114 135.2422 4,752,275 70.2780 0.3025 0.3179

15 SAGRICOM ULMI 57,941 01/11/1996 2.5000 0.0000 0 4.2057 0.0000 0.0000



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Instruments mentioned in art.187 lit.a) of RNSC Regulations no.15/2004

Shares issued by commercial companies of closed type  

No. 

Item
Issuer

No of shares 

held

Acquisitio

n date

Acquisition 

price
Share value Total value

Weight in 

the issuer`s 

social 

capital  

Weight in 

the total 

asset of SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of SIF

16 SANEVIT ARAD 792,662 30/06/1998 0.1000 0.0000 0 13.2841 0.0000 0.0000

17 SANEX CLUJ 23,999,434 17/12/2002 0.4011 0.5260 12,624,258 13.6228 0.8036 0.8445

18 TURISM LOTUS FELIX 347,859,802 18/12/2009 0.1006 0.0977 33,979,044 27.4554 2.1629 2.2730

19 TURISM PUCIOASA 1,010,599 01/11/1996 2.1170 4.5961 4,644,845 69.2191 0.2957 0.3107

20 VOLTALIM CRAIOVA 5,997,519 31/10/1999 2.6734 4.6711 28,014,845 99.1942 1.7833 1.8740

543,706,344 34.6092 36.3708

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Securities of AOPC/OPCVM

No. 

Item
Issuer Symbol Quantity Quotation Market value

Weight in the 

number of 

operating 

securities 

Weight in 

the total 

asset of SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of SIF

1 BT INDEX RO 146,000.000 10.0900 1,473,140 3.7663 0.0938 0.0985

2 FDI NAPOCA 381,222.000 0.4527 172,579 1.1212 0.0110 0.0115

3 FDI TRANSILVANIA 7,444.000 41.2266 306,891 1.1810 0.0195 0.0205

4 FDI TEHNOGLOBINVEST 382.990 1,133.4378 434,095 4.7956 0.0276 0.0290

2,386,705 0.1519 0.1597

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Bank deposits in lei made in credit institutions of Romania

No. 

Item
Name of the bank

Constitution 

date
Due time Initial value Daily interest

Cumulated 

interest
Updated value

Weight in 

the total 

asset of 

SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of 

SIF

1 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 21/12/2016 09/01/2017 10,000,000.00 88.8889 977.78 10,000,977.78 0.6366 0.6690

2 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 21/12/2016 09/01/2017 5,000,000.00 44.4444 488.89 5,000,488.89 0.3183 0.3345

3 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 21/12/2016 09/01/2017 3,000,000.00 26.6667 293.33 3,000,293.33 0.1910 0.2007

4 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 21/12/2016 09/01/2017 500,000.00 4.4444 48.89 500,048.89 0.0318 0.0335

5 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 21/12/2016 09/01/2017 500,000.00 4.4444 48.89 500,048.89 0.0318 0.0335

6 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 30/12/2016 03/01/2017 324,000.00 1.3500 2.70 324,002.70 0.0206 0.0217

7 BCR 31/12/2016 01/01/2017 35,378.99 0.0098 0.01 35,379.00 0.0023 0.0024

19,359,378.99 1,860.49 19,361,239.48 1.2324 1.2952

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea



SIF Oltenia S.A. ANNEX 17

Detailed situation of investments on 31/12/2016
Net asset 1,494,899,450 lei

Total asset 1,570,989,901 lei

Bank deposits in foreign currency made in credit institutions of Romania  

No. 

Item
Name of the bank

Constitution 

date
Due time Initial value Daily interest

Cumulated 

interest
Updated value

Weight in 

the total 

asset of 

SIF

Weight in 

the net 

asset of 

SIF

1 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 23/12/2016 23/03/2017 2,151,650.00 20.9188 188.27 2,151,838.27 0.1370 0.1439

2 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 23/12/2016 23/03/2017 1,290,990.00 12.5513 112.96 1,291,102.96 0.0822 0.0864

3 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 23/12/2016 23/03/2017 860,660.00 8.3675 75.31 860,735.31 0.0548 0.0576

4 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 23/12/2016 23/03/2017 645,495.00 6.2756 56.48 645,551.48 0.0411 0.0432

5 BANCA TRANSILVANIA 23/12/2016 23/03/2017 155,994.63 1.5166 13.65 156,008.28 0.0099 0.0104

5,104,789.63 446.67 5,105,236.30 0.3250 0.3415

 GENERAL MANAGER  ECONOMIC MANAGER 

Dr. ec. Tudor Ciurezu  Ec. Elena Sichigea
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.
 
Standalone statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income    
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016

In lei Note 2016 2015

Income  

Income  from dividends 6 44,249,147 29,501,952

Income from interests 7 53,278 303,769

Other operational income 8 42,358,113 96,484,451

Net income from differences of exchange 
rate   194,519 550,210

Net income from assets sale  9 55,253,217 55,479,287

Expenses

Administration and supervision fees and 
taxes  10 (2,267,755) (3,065,988)

Revenues from retaking provisions for risks
and expenditures   8,363,656 5,012,702

Other operational expenditures 11 (30,199,087) (23,345,387)

Pre-tax profit 118,005,088 160,920,996

Income tax 12 (16,733,711) (28,515,985)

Net income of financial year 101,271,377 132,405,011

Other comprehensive income

Income reserve from reevaluation of 
tangible assets, net of deffered tax 0 77,539

Net variation of reserves from adjustment 
to fair value  of financial assets available 
for sale (13,664,437) 8,792,103

Reserves from the difference of fair value 
adjustment of financial assets available for 
sale transferred to profit or loss, net of tax (46,189,470) (29,136,469)

Total comprehensive income afferent to 
the period 41,417,470 112,138,184

Earnings per share

Basic 26 0.1746 0.2282

Standalone  financial  statements  were  approved  by  the  Board  of  Directors  in  the  meeting  of
02.03.2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Administrator Financial Manager

conf.univ.dr.ec. Ciurezu Tudor             ec. Sichigea Elena

jr. Radu Anina

Notes from pages 6 to 53 are an integral part of this standalone financial statements.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Standalone statement of financial position
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016

In lei Nota
31 December

2016
31 December

2015

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 13 3,509,197 762,407

Deposits placed in banks 14 24,466,476 5,813,698

Financial assets available for sale 15 1,578,803,318 1,668,679,019

Credits and receivables 16 13,427,910 4,467,266

Tangible assets 17 11,373,395 11,822,860

Real estates investments 18 483,071 438,571

Other assets 19 347,473 367,280

Total assets 1,632,410,840 1,692,351,101

Liabilities

Payable dividends 20 56,991,969 81,027,502

Taxes and duties 21 5,246,637 2,541,343

Deferred tax liabilities 22 122,077,335 135,643,658

Other liabilities 23 18,899,845 9,958,816

Total liabilities 203,215,786 229,171,319

Equity 24

Share capital 58,016,571 58,016,571

Adjustments in share capital 631,852,524 631,852,524

Other elements of equity 626,427,414 686,281,321

Reserves from revaluation of tangible assets 7,755,548 8,077,015

Legal and statutory reserves 17,782,035 17,782,035

Other reserves 25 2,417,698,157 2,387,864,253

Retained earnings as aresult of applying  IAS 
29 on share capital and reserves (2,438,631,885) (2,438,631,885)

Retained earnings as aresult of applying  IAS 
without IAS 29 7,023,313 (20,467,063)

Current profit 101,271,377 132,405,011

Total equity 1,429,195,054 1,463,179,782

Total liabilities and equity 1,632,410,840 1,692,351,101

Standalone  financial  statements  were  approved  by  the  Board  of  Directors  in  the  meeting  of
02.03.2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Administrator Financial manager

conf.univ.dr.ec. Ciurezu Tudor            ec. Sichigea Elena

jr. Radu Anina

Notes from pages 6 to 53 are an integral part of this standalone financial statements.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.
 
Standalone statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016

- lei –

Inflated share
capital

Reserves from
revaluation of
tangible assets

Legal and
statutory
reserves

Other reserves
Reserves from

revaluation of financial
assets available for sale

Other equity

Retained earnings as
aresult of applying

IAS 29 on share
capital and reserves

Accumulated
profit

TOTAL

BALANCE AT
1 JANUARY 2016

689,869,095 8,077,015 17,782,035 2,387,864,253 689,343,001 (3,061,680) (2,438,631,885) 111,937,948 1,463,179,782

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit of financial year 101,271,377 101,271,377

Other elements of comprehensive income

1.  Reserve variation from tangible assets 
revaluation net of deferred tax

(321,467) 321,467

2. Net variation of reserves from adjustment to 
fair value  of financial assets available for sale

(13,664,437) (13,664,437)

3. Reserves from the difference of fair value 
adjustment of financial assets available for sale 
transferred to profit or loss, net of tax

(46,189,470) (46,189,470)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
afferent to the period

0 (321,467) 0 0 (59,853,907) 0 0 101,592,844 41,417,470

Deferred tax related to comprehensive income 
revaluation surplus not gained taxed 

19,345 19,345

Other reserves - own financing sources 29,833,904 (29,833,904)

Transactions with shareholders recognized 
directly in equity

1. Dividends prescribed by law – Transfer to 
profit or loss account from other reserves

2. Dividend Payment for the year 2015 (75,421,543) (75,421,543)

TOTAL TRANSACTIONS WITH 
SHAREHOLDERS RECOGNIZED 
DIRECTLY IN EQUITY

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (75,421,543) (75,421,543)

BALANCE ON
31 DECEMBER 2016

689,869,095 7,755,548 17,782,035 2,417,698,157 629,489,094 (3,061,680) (2,438,631,885) 108,294,690 1,429,195,054

Standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting of 02.03.2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

conf.univ.dr.ec. Ciurezu Tudor      jr. Radu Anina                      ec. Sichigea Elena
Chairman/ General Manager             Vicepresident/ Deputy General Manager               Financial Manager

Notes from pages 6 to 53 are an integral part of this standalone financial statements.
pag 3



SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.
 
Standalone statement of changes in equity
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2015

- lei –
Inflated share

capital
Reserves from
revaluation of
tangible assets

Legal and
statutory
reserves

Other reserves
Reserves from

revaluation of financial
assets available for sale

Other equity

Retained earnings as
aresult of applying

IAS 29 on share
capital and reserves

Accumulated
profit

TOTAL

BALANCE ON
1 JANUARY  2015

689,869,095 7,999,476 17,782,035 2,445,274,777 615,731,332 (2,438,631,885) 47,511,156 1,385,535,986

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Profit of financial year 132,405,011 132,405,011

Other elements of comprehensive income

1.  Reserve variation from tangible assets 
revaluation net of deferred tax

77,539 77,539

2. Net variation of reserves from adjustment to 
fair value  of financial assets available for sale

8,792,103 8,792,103

3. Reserves from the difference of fair value 
adjustment of financial assets available for sale 
transferred to profit or loss, net of tax

(29,136,469) (29,136,469)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
afferent to the period 

0 77,539 0 0 (20,344,366) 0 0 132,405,011 112,138,184

Other reserves - own financing sources 25,256,244 (25,256,244)

Other components of equity (deferred tax related 
to reserves)

(3,061,680) (3,061,680)

Other transfers (reported result) (941,035) (941,035)

Transfer of free shares in the balance 93,956,035 27,838,946 121,794,981

Transactions with shareholders recognized 
directly in equity

1. Dividends prescribed by law – Transfer to 
profit or loss account from other reserves

(82,666,768) (82,666,768)

2. Dividend Payment for the year 2014 (69,619,886) (69,619,886)

TOTAL TRANSACTIONS WITH 
SHAREHOLDERS RECOGNIZED 
DIRECTLY IN EQUITY

0 0 0 (82,666,768) 0 0 0 (69,619,886) (152,286,654)

BALANCE ON
31 DECEMBER  2015

689,869,095 8,077,015 17,782,035 2,387,864,253 689,343,001 (3,061,680) (2,438,631,885) 111,937,948 1,463,179,782

Standalone financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting of 02.03.2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

conf.univ.dr.ec. Ciurezu Tudor      jr. Radu Anina                      ec. Sichigea Elena
Chairman/ General Manager             Vicepresident/ Deputy General Manager               Financial Manager

Notes from pages 6 to 53 are an integral part of this standalone financial statements.
pag 4



SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.
 
Standalone statement of cash flows
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016

lei

Name of element                Reporting period 

31.12.2016 31.12.2015

A 1 2

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers, other receipts 1,163,256 1,404,049

Receipts from sales of financial investments 
(equity securities)

77,519,118 128,293,435

Payments for acquisition of shares (15,855,610) (101,823,481)

Payments to suppliers and employees, other 
payments

(12,367,224) (12,096,512)

Payments to the state budget, social security budget 
and local budget

(1,336,117) (4,126,886)

Interest received 51,883 335,575

Dividends received 42,234,760 25,584,309

Paid interest 0 0

Paid profit tax (10,768,532) (14,635,599)

Receipts from insurance against earthquakes 0 0

Numerar net din activități de explotare 80,641,534 22,934,890

Fluxuri de trezorerie din activități de investiție:

Plăți pentru achizitionarea de imobilizări corporale (43,258) (36,099)

Încasări din vânzarea de imobilizări corporale 0 619,659

Net cash from operating activities (43,258) 583,560

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Receipts from the issue of shares 0 0

Receipts from long-term loans 0 0

Pay of debts related to financial leasing 0 0

Paid dividends (53,934,735) (46,475,860)

Amounts advanced to the Central Depository to 
pay dividends

(1,193,999) (712,114)

Paid dividends tax (4,071,277) (9,253,230)

Net cash from financing activities (59,200,011) (56,441,204)

Net increase of cash and cash equivalents 21,398,265 (32,922,754)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the 
reporting period

6,575,101 39,497,855

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the 
reporting period

27,973,366 6,575,101

Notes from pages 6 to 53 are an integral part of this standalone financial statements.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

1. Reporting entity

Societatea  de  Investitii  Financiare  Oltenia  S.A.  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  “The  Company”)  was
founded on 01.11.1996 in Craiova - Romania, under Law no. 133/1996, Law for transformation of
Private  Ownership  Funds  into  financial  investment  companies.  The  company  was  founded  by
transforming Private Ownership Fund V Oltenia.

The company is a  collective investment which operates under Law no. 31/1990 on trading
companies and Law no. 297/2004 on stock market, as amended and supplemented.

It is a self management company.

The  company is  headquartered  in  Craiova,  str.  Tufanele  nr.  1,  postal  code  200767,  Dolj
county.
The company is registered at: 
-  Trade Register  Office  attached to  Dolj  Court,  registration number  J16/1210/1993,  Tax Registration
Number 4175676, tax attribute RO;
-  National  Securities  Commission  (NSC)  as  Other  Collective  Investment  Undertakings  with  a
diversified policy under Decision No. 1958 / 02.09.1999 and entered in the C.N.V.M. Register no.
PJR09SIIR/160003/14.02.2006. Starting on April 30, 2013, according to GEO no. 93 / Dec. 2012, is
founded Financial Supervisory Authority (FSA) which takes over the duties of the National Securities
Commission,  the  Private Pension System Supervisory Commission and the Insurance Supervisory
Commission;
- Securities Record Office under Certificate no. 419/07.09.1999. 
The Company shares are listed on the Bucharest Stock Exchange, the Premium category,  with the
indicative SIF 5, starting on 01.11.1999. 
Evidence of shareholders and the Company's shares is held by the Central Depository S.A. Bucharest.
Activitatea The depository activity stipulated by legislation and regulations of C.N.V.M / F.S.A. it is
provided by Raiffeisen Bank S.A. -  Bucharest  Branch starting on 22.01.2014,  up to  this date  the
depositary activity being held by ING Bank NV Amsterdam - Bucharest Branch.
According to the Articles of Incorporation the Company has the following main activity: 
-  administration  and  management  of  shares  in  companies  for  which  were  issued  own  shares,
corresponding to the Certificates of Ownership and Nominative Privatization Coupons subscribed by
citizens in accordance with art. 4 para. 6 of Law no. 55/1995; 
- own securities portfolio management and making investments in securities according to regulations
in force; 
- other similar and adjacent activities, in accordance with regulations in force and management of its
own assets. 
Subscribed and paid up share capital is 58.016.571 lei, divided into 580.165.714 shares with a nominal
value of 0.1 lei / share. 
The main characteristics of shares issued by the company are: ordinary, indivisible, nominative, of
equal value, issued in dematerialized form and grant equal rights to their holders. 

2. Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance
The  standalone  financial  statements  are  prepared  in  accordance  with  Regulation  no.  39/2015  on
approving  the  Accounting  Regulations  in  accordance  with  the  International  Financial  Reporting
Standards,  applicable  to  authorized  entities,  regulated  and supervised  by the  Financial  Supervisory
Authority from the Investment and Financial Instruments Sector. 

Standalone  financial  statements  were  approved  by  the  Board  of  Directors  in  the  meeting  of
02.03.2017.

pag 6



SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
a) Statement of compliance (continued) 

In accordance with Regulation no. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and the EU Council of 19
July 2002 and  the  Decision  of  NSC.  1176  /  15.09.2010,  the  financial  investment  companies  are
required to prepare and submit to the FSA the consolidated annual financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union, within 8 months
from the closing of the financial year. Consolidated financial statements of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. Group
on 31.12.2016 will be prepared, approved and made public until the date of 31.08.2017. They will be
available on the Company's website: www.sifolt.ro. 
The accounting records of the Company are reflected in lei.
December  31,  2015 is  the  date  of  transition  to  IFRS as  accounting  basis,  the  date  on  which  by
restatement were made and recorded in accounting the operations determined by the transition from
NSC Regulation no. 4/2011 to IFRS Accounting Regulations.  
The  main  restatements  made   to  the  financial  statements  prepared  in  accordance  with  RCR  on
31.12.2015 to align them to the IFRS requirements adopted by the European Union are: 
- grouping multiple items into broader categories;
- adjustments of the elements of assets, liabilities and equity in accordance with IAS 29 "Financial
reporting in hyperinflationary economies" because the Romanian economy was a hyperinflationary
economy until 31 December 2003;
- fair value adjustments and impairment losses in accordance with IAS 39 "Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement";
- adjustments in profit or loss account to record dividend income at the time of declaration and the
gross value;
- adjustments of investment properties for their evaluation at fair value in accordance with IAS 40
"Investment Property".
- adjustments to recognize assets and liabilities regarding  deferred income tax in accordance with IAS
12 "Income Taxes"; and
- presentation requirements according to IFRS.

b) Presentation of Financial Statements 

IFRS  standalone  financial  statements  are  presented  in  accordance  with  IAS  1  "Presentation  of
Financial  Statements".  The presentation adopted by the Company is  based on the liquidity in the
statement of financial position and the income and expenses presentation was made in relation to their
nature  in  the  statement  of  comprehensive  income.  The  Company believes  that  these  methods  of
presentation provide information that is reliable and more relevant than those that would have been
presented based on other methods allowed by IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements". 

c) Functional and presentation currency 

The Company's management considers that the functional currency, as it is defined by IAS 21 "Effects
of  exchange  rate  variation"  is  the  Romanian  leu  (RON).  The  standalone  financial  statements  are
presented  in  local  currency,  rounded  to  the  nearest  leu,  the  currency  which  the  Company's
management has chosen as presentation currency. 

d) Basis of assessment 

The  standalone  financial  statements  are  prepared  on  a  fair  value  basis  for  derivative  financial
instruments, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss account and financial
assets  available  for  sale,  except  those  for  which  fair  value  can  not  be  determined  reliably.
Other financial assets and liabilities and non-financial assets and liabilities are stated at amortized cost,
revalued amount or historical cost.

pag 7



SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

e) Use of estimates and judgments 

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported  amounts  of  assets,  liabilities,  revenues  and  expenses.  The  estimates  and  assumptions
associated  with  these  judgments  are  based  on  historical  experience  and  other  factors  considered
reasonable in the context of these estimates. The result of these estimates form the basis for judgments
about the accounting amounts of assets and liabilities that can not be obtained from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.  

The Company periodically reviews the estimates and assumptions underlying the accounting records.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods, if
the revision affects both the current period and future periods. 

3. Significant accounting policies 
Accounting  policies  are  the  specific  principles,  bases,  conventions,  rules  and practices  applied in
preparing and presenting financial statements.

Policies that will be presented below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Company will continue its operations in the
foreseeable future. To assess the applicability of this principle, the management analyzes projections
of future cash inflows.

a) Subsidiaries and associates 

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Company has control.  The company controls an entity in
which it invested when it is exposed, or has rights to variable return based on its participation in the
entity on which it invested and has the ability to influence those revenues through its authority over
the entity in which it invested.

When assessing control must be taken into account the potential voting rights that are exercisable or
convertible at that time.

Associates  are  those entities  over  which the Company can exercise  significant  influence,  but  not
control over the financial and operating policies.

List of subsidiaries and associates on 31.12.2016 respectively 31.12.2015, is presented in Note 30.

The  Company  has  classified  and  accounted  for  in  these  standalone  financial  statements  all  the
financial investments in subsidiaries and associates as financial assets available for sale in accordance
with IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement".

b) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in lei at the exchange rates prevailing at 
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the 
date of the statement of financial position are translated into the functional currency at the exchange 
rate of the day. Gains or losses resulting from the settlement thereof and from the conversion using the
exchange rate at end of the financial year of assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are reflected in profit or loss, except those who were reflected  in equity as a result of registration in 
accordance with hedge accounting.

The conversion differences on the investments held at fair value through profit or loss account are
presented as gains or losses from fair value. The conversion differences on the elements of the nature
of financial instruments are classified as being
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Foreign currency transactions (continued)

available for sale,  are included in the change in  fair  value reserve of  these financial  instruments.
The exchange rates of major foreign currencies used at the reporting date are: 

Currency 31 December
2016

31 December
 2015

Variation

EUR 4.5411 4.5245 +0.37
USD 4.3033 4.1477 +3.75

c) Accounting for the effect of hyperinflation
According  to  IAS  29  "Financial  reporting  in  hyperinflationary  economies",  standalone  financial
statements of an entity whose functional currency is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy shall
be disclosed regarding the  current purchasing power of the currency, on the preparation dateof the
statement of financial position, ie non-monetary items are restated by applying the general price index
from  the  date  of  purchase  or  contribution.  IAS  29  stipulates  that  an  economy  is  considered
hyperinflationary if, among other factors, the cumulative inflation rate exceeds 100% for a period of
three years. 
Continued  decline  in  inflation  and  other  factors  related  to  the  characteristics  of  the  economic
environment in Romania indicate that the economy whose functional currency was adopted by the
company ceased to be hyperinflationary with effect for financial periods beginning from 1 January
2004. Therefore, IAS 29 was adopted in preparing the standalone financial statements at 31 December
2003. 
Thus, the amounts expressed in the current measuring unit at 31 December 2003 are treated as the
basis for the accounting amounts in the standalone financial statements and do not represent appraised
value, replacement cost or any other current value of assets or the prices at which transactions would
take place at this point. 
For  the  preparation  of  standalone  financial  statements  under  IFRS  conditions,  the  Company has
adjusted the following elements to be expressed in the current measuring unit on 31 December 2003:
- share capital and other reserves (Note 24);
- available for sale financial assets measured at cost, for which there is no active market or the market
is not active.

d) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash comprises the available funds in cash,  banks and demanding deposits.
Cash equivalents are short-term investments, highly liquid, which are readily convertible to cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
In prepairing the statements of cash flows have been considered as cash and cash equivalents: the
actual cash, current accounts with banks and deposits with initial maturities less than 90 days.

e) Financial assets and liabilities

 Classification
The Company classifies the financial instruments held in the following categories: 

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss account 
This  category  includes  financial  assets  and  financial  liabilities  held  for  trading,  derivatives  and
structured financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
A financial asset or liability is classified in this category if it was acquired mainly with speculative
purpose
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(in order to generate short-term profit) or if it has been appointed in this category by the Company's
management.
Derivatives, structured financial instruments are classified as held for trading if they do not represent
instruments used to hedge accounting.
The company has no assets or financial liabilities classified held for trading at fair value through profit
or loss on 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity  investments  are  those  non-derivative  financial  assets  with  fixed  or  determinable
payments and a fixed maturity which the Company has the intention and ability to hold until maturity
other than: 
- those that the Company, on initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;
- those that the Company designates as available for sale; and
- those that correspond to the definition of loans and receivables. 
The Company shall not classify any financial asset as held to maturity if the current financial year or
the last two previous years, sold or reclassified before the maturity more than an insignificant amount
of  investments  held  to  maturity  (less  more  than  insignificant  in  relation  to  the  total  value  of
investments held to maturity) other than those from sales or reclassifications that: 
- they are so close to maturity or the anticipated date of repayment of the financial asset (for example,
less than three months before maturity) that changes in market interest rates have a significant effect
on the fair value of the financial asset;
- occur after the Company has collected most of the initial value of the financial asset through sched-
uled payments or prepayments; or
-  are attributable to an isolated event falling outside the scope of control of the Company, are not re-
peated and should not have been reasonably anticipated by the Company.

Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets that provide fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market, other than:
- those that the Company intends to sell immediately or soon, which must be classified as held for
trading and those that the Company, on initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or
loss;
- those that the Company, on initial recognition designates as available for sale; or
- those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of the initial investment for any reason
other than credit deterioration, which must be classified as available for sale.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are designated as available for sale or are
not classified as loans and receivables, held to maturity investments, or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets for which there is an active market
are measured at fair value and changes in fair value other than impairment losses, and gains and losses
resulting from exchange rate movements on monetary items available for sale are reflected directly in
equity.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

At derecognition of the asset, the cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity is transferred to profit
or loss.

The  Company classified  all  its  holdings  in  the  share  capital  of  other  issuers  as  financial  assets
available for sale.

 Recognition 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized on the date on which the Company becomes party to the
contractual terms of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are measured at initial recognition
at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, where transaction costs are not included in the value of the instrument and investments
in shares whose fair value can not be reliably determined and are initially recognized at cost.

 Compensations 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net result is presented in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legal right to compensation and if there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or if it is intended realization of the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Revenues and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted by accounting standards, or
for gains and losses arising from a group of similar transactions such as the trading activity of the
Company.

 Review 

Upon initial recognition, the Company should measure financial assets, including derivatives that are
assets, at fair value, without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other
disposal, except for the following categories of financial assets: 

a) loans and receivables, which are valued at amortized cost through the effective interest 
method; 

b)  investments  held to  maturity,  which should be measured at  amortized cost  through the
effective interest method; and 

c) investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market
and whose fair value can not be measured reliably and derivatives that are related, and which must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, which are valued at cost. 

All financial assets except those measured at fair value through profit or loss are tested periodically for
impairment.

Upon initial recognition, the Company must measure all financial liabilities at amortized cost through
the effective interest method, except for: 

- financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including
derivatives that are liabilities, are measured at fair value, excluding debt derivatives that are linked and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument whose fair value can not be measured
reliably; These derivative liabilities are valued at cost;

-  financial  liabilities  that  arise  when  a  transfer  of  a  financial  asset  does  not  qualify  for
derecognition and is accounted for using the continuing involvement approach.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Amortized cost measurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset
or liability fnancial is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus accu-
mulated amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the original value
and the value at maturity, and minus any reduction (directly or by using an allowance account) for im-
pairment or uncollectability.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash payments and receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net accounting
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Company must estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but
must take into account future losses from the change in credit risk. The calculation includes all fees
and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums and discounts.

Fair value measurement 

Fair  value  is  the  price  that  would  be  received  to  sell  an  asset  or  paid  to  settle  a  liability in  a

transaction carried out  under normal  conditions between participants on the main market,  on the

measurement date or if no main market, on the most advantageous market in which the Company has

access to that date.

The Company measures the fair  value of a financial  instrument using quoted prices in an active

market for that instrument. A financial instrument has an active market if for that instrument are

readily available  and regularly quoted prices.  The  company measures  the  instruments  quoted on

active markets using the closing price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market when the quoted prices are readily

available and regularly from an exchange, dealer, broker, an association from the industry, a service

of pricing or a regulatory agency, and these prices reflect real transactions occurring and regularly

carried out under objective conditions of the market. 

In the category of shares quoted on an active market are included all those shares admitted to trading

on the Bucharest Stock Exchange or on the alternative market and which have frequent transactions.

The criterion determining the active market should be set so as to ensure a stable portfolio of shares

valued at cost / fair value from one reporting period to another. The market price used to determine

fair value is the market closing price of the last trading day prior to the measurement date. 

The fair value of financial instruments traded on an active market is measured as the product of the

quoted price for the individual asset or liability and the amount held by the company.

Units issued by Undertakings for Collective Investment will be valued at their last calculated and pub-

lished net asset value per share.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

 Identification and measurement of impairment 

The company must evaluate each reporting period to the extent that there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

If there is any evidence of this type, the Company must apply the requirements below to determine the
amount of any impairment loss, differently for:

- financial assets carried at amortized cost;
- available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair value or at cost.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost 

If there is objective evidence that has emerged an impairment loss on loans and receivables or on
investments  held to  maturity at  amortized cost,  the  amount of loss is  measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows estimated (excluding
losses future credit that have not been incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
financial asset (ie the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). 

When such a loss occurs from impairment, the carrying amount of the asset should be reduced by
using an allowance account for impairment. 

The amount of the impairment loss is then reflected in profit or loss. 

In the event that, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can  be  related  objectively  to  an  event  occurring  after  being  recognized  impairment  (such  as  an
improvement in the credit rating of the borrower), the loss from impairment previously recognized
must be reversed by adjusting an allowance account for impairment. 

The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the asset which exceeds the value that would be
the amortized cost if the impairment had not been recognized at the date the impairment is reversed.
The value of loss reversal is reflected in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets 

When a decline in fair value of a financial asset available for sale was recognized directly in equity
and there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that has been reflected
directly in equity shall be reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment even
though the financial asset has not been derecognised. 

The amount  of  the  cumulative loss  which is  reversed from equity into profit  or  loss  will  be  the
difference between the acquisition cost (net  of  any principal  repayment and amortization) and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously reflected in profit or loss.

Impairment losses reflected in the profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available for sale shall not be reversed in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired equity increases, the recovery is recognized di-
rectly in other elements of the comprehensive income.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recog-
nized in profit or loss, the impairment loss must be reversed and the amount resumed must be reflected
in profit or loss. 

If there is objective evidence that has been supported an impairment loss on an unquoted instrument of
equity that is not carried at fair value because its fair value can not be measured reliably, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying financial and the present
value of estimated future cash flows using current internal rate of return for a similar financial asset
market. These impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss account. 

To determine whether an asset is impaired, the Company takes into account the loss-relevant events,
such as significant long-term decline in fair value below cost; market and field of activityconditions, to
the extent that they influence the recoverable amount of the asset; financial conditions and short-term
prospects of the issuer, including any specific adverse events that may influence the operations of the
issuer,  the issuer recent  losses,  qualified independent  auditor's  report  on the most  recent  financial
statements of the issuer etc. 

Given the inherent limitations of the methodologies applied and significant evaluation uncertainty of
assets on international and local markets, the Company estimates may be revised significantly after the
approval date of the financial statements.

 Derecognition 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the rights to receive cash flows of that financial
asset expire or when the Company has transferred the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
related to that financial asset in a transaction that has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership. 

On derecognition shares are decreased using the FIFO (first in - first out) method. 

Any interest  in  transferred  financial  assets  retained  by  the  society  or  created  for  the  Society  is
recognized separetely as an asset or liability. 

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are ended or when the
contractual obligations are canceled or expire.

 Gains and losses 

Gains or losses resulting from a change in fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability that is
not part of a hedging relationship are recognized as follows: 

- gains or losses from financial assets and financial liabilities classified as at fair value through profit
or loss are reflected in profit or loss;

- gains or losses from financial assets available for sale shall be recognized in other comprehensive
income, excluding impairment losses.

When  the  asset  is  derecognised,  the  cumulative  gains  or  losses  previously  reflected  in  other
comprehensive income are reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost, a gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognized or impaired, and through
the amortization process.
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SOCIETATEA DE INVESTIŢII FINANCIARE OLTENIA S.A.

Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

In case of financial assets recognized using the accounting on settlement date, any change in fair value
of the asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the settlement date is not rec -
ognized for assets carried at cost or amortized cost (except for impairment losses ). For assets carried
at fair value, however, change in fair value must be recognized in profit or loss or in equity, as appro-
priate.

 Reclassifications 
The Company:
- shall not reclassify a derivative out of the category of instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss while it is held or issued;
- shall not reclassify any financial instrument out of the category of instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss if upon initial recognition has been designated by the Company at fair value
through profit or loss; and
- it may, if the financial asset is no longer held for sale or for repurchase in the near future (despite the
fact that the financial asset may have been acquired or have arisen in particular for the purpose of
selling  or  repurchasing  in  the  near  future),  reclassify that  financial  asset  out  of  the  category  of
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss if the requirements of IAS 39.50B and 50D
are met. 
The Company must not reclassify any financial instrument into the category of instruments measured
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition. 
If,  after  the  change  in  intention  or  capacity,  it  is  no  longer  appropriate  the  classification  of  an
investment as held to maturity, it shall be reclassified as available for sale and will be revalued at fair
value. 
Whenever sales or reclassification of a more than insignificant value  from the investments held to
maturity  does  not  satisfy  any  of  the  conditions  in  IAS  39.9,  any  remaining  held-to  maturity
investments must be reclassified as available for sale. 
If it becomes available a reliable assessment of the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability
for which such an assessment was not previously available, the asset or liability should be measured at
fair value and the difference between its carrying amount and fair value should be accounted at equity
or profit or loss. 
If at a certain moment, a financial asset or a financial liability shall be carried at cost or amortized cost
rather than at fair value, the fair value of the financial asset or financial liability on that date becomes
its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable ; this situation can occur: 
- after the change in intention or capacity of the Company;
- in rare cases when there is not available any reliable assessment of fair value.
Any previous gains or losses in that asset that was recognized in other comprehensive income must be
accounted as follows: 
- in the case of a financial asset with a fixed maturity date, the gain or loss must be amortized in profit
or loss over the remaining useful life of the investment held to maturity using the effective interest
method. Any difference between the new amortized cost and maturity amount shall also be amortized
over  the  remaining  life  of  the  financial  asset  using  the  effective  interest  method,  similar  to  the
amortization of a prime and a discount.  If the asset depreciates further,  any gain or loss that was
previously recognized directly in other elements of the comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss;
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Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
(all amounts are expresen in lei, unless otherwise stated  )

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

- in the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity date, the gain or loss shall
be recognized in profit or loss until the financial asset will be sold or disposed of in another
way.  If  the  asset  depreciates  further,  any  gain  or  loss  that  was  recognized  in  other
comprehensive income elements is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

f) Other financial assets and liabilities 

Other  financial  assets  and liabilities  are  measured at  amortized cost  using the effective interest
method less any impairment losses. 

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Upon initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

• Subsequent expenditures 

Subsequent expenditures are capitalized only when they increase the value of future economic benefits
embodied  in  the  asset  to  which  they  are  intended.  All  other  expenses,  including  expenses  for
impairment of goodwill and internally generated brands are recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

• Amortization of intangible assets 

Amortization is  calculated for the cost  of  the asset  or  other amount  substituted for cost,  less any
residual  value.  Amortization is  recognized in profit  or  loss  using the straight  line  method for the
estimated useful life of intangible assets from the date they are available for use, this method more
accurately reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the
asset.

Estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: software - 3 years.  

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values  are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted accordingly. 

h) Property and equipment

• Recognition and Measurement 

Tangible  assets  recognized  as  assets  are  initially  measured  at  cost  (for  those  purchased  against
payment), at the amount of intake (for those received as contribution in kind to the establishment /
share capital increase) respectively at fair value at the acquisition date for those received for free. 

The cost of a tangible asset element comprises the purchase price, including non-recoverable taxes,
after deducting any commercial discounts and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the  location  and  on  the  condition  necessary  for  it  to  be  used  on  the  purpose  desired  by  the
management, such as staff costs arising directly from the construction or acquisition of assets,  the
costs  of  site  preparation,  initial  delivery  and  handling  costs,  installation  and  assembly  costs,
professional fees. 

Tangible assets are classified by the Company in the following asset classes of the same nature and
similar uses: 

- land and buildings;
- machinery and equipment and means of transportation;
- furniture, office equipment, protection equipment of human values and other tangible assets.
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Explanatory notes to the standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended on 31 December 2016
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Property and equipment (continued)

• Measurement after recognition
For subsequent recognition, the Company adopted the revaluation model. 
After recognition as asset, tangible assets elements of construction and land whose fair value can be
reliably measured are carried at a revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of the revaluation
less any accumulated amortization thereafter and any accumulated impairment losses. 
Other tangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any impairment losses.
Revaluations should be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not
differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the date of the reporting
period. 
If a tangible asset element is revalued, the entire class of tangible assets which includes that element is
subject to revaluation. 
If the carrying amount of an asset is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, under the heading of revaluation surplus.
However, the increase will be recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit or loss. 
If the carrying amount of an asset is impaired as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognized in
profit or loss. 
However,  the  reduction will  be  recognized  in  other  comprehensive  income to the  extent  that  the
revaluation  surplus  presents  a  credit  balance  of  that  asset.  Transfers  from revaluation  surplus  to
retained earnings are not made through profit or loss. 
Land and  buildings  are  stated  at  revalued  amount,  representing  the  fair  value  at  the  date  of  the
revaluation  less  accumulated  depreciation  and  impairment  losses.  Revaluations  are  performed  by
specialized appraisers, members ANEVAR. Frequency of revaluations is dictated by market dynamics
which land and buildings owned by the Company belong.
 

• Subsequent costs 
Daily maintenance and repair expenses of fixed assets are not capitalized. They are recognized as an
expense  in  the  period  in  which  they arise.  These  costs  consist  primarily of  workforce  costs  and
consumables, and may include the cost of small value components. Repairs and maintenance expenses
of tangible assets are recorded in profit or loss when incurred. 
Significant improvements to tangible assets, or which increase the value of their life, or which increase
their capacity to generate economic benefits by, are capitalized (appropriately increase the carrying
value of the respective assets). 

• Amortization
Amortization is calculated at accounting value (acquisition cost or revalued amount, less any residual
value) for the activity for which they are intended. Amortization is recognized in profit or loss using
the straight line method for the useful life estimated for tangible assets (except land and fixed assets in
progress), it it registered starting with the date they are available for use for the activity for which they
are intended this way most accurately reflecting the expected manner of consumption of the economic
benefits embodied in the asset. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Property and equipment (continued)

Amortization of an asset ceases at the earliest date the asset is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5 and the date that the
asset is derecognised. 

Each part of a tangible asset element that shows a significant cost compared to the total cost of that el -
ement must be amortized separately.

Estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 

- buildings; 12-50 years
- machinery and equipment and means of transportation               3-20 years
- furniture, office equipment, protection equipment of human values   3-15 years
and other metarials and tangible assets
Amortization  methods,  useful  life  estimated  durations  and  residual  values  are  reviewed  by
management at each reporting date.

From the Company history, it resulted that the residual value of assets is not significant and therefore
the amortization calculation does not take into account the residual value.

• Impairment
An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

At each reporting date, the Company must verify if there are indications of impairment of assets. If
such indication exists, the Company must estimate the recoverable amount of the asset.

If  the carrying amount  of an asset  is  impaired as a result  of  a revaluation,  the  decrease shall  be
recognized in profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognized in other comprehensive income
to  the  extent  that  the  revaluation  surplus  presents  a  credit  balance  of  that  asset.  The  decrease
recognized  in  other  comprehensive  income  reduces  the  amount  accumulated  in  equity under  the
heading of revaluation surplus. 

Land  is  not  depreciated.  Impairment  of  other  tangible  assets  is  computed  using  the  straight-line
method, allocating costs related to residual value, according to the corresponding life.

• Derecognition 
The carrying amount of a tangible asset element is derecognised (eliminated from the statement of
financial position) on disposal or when no longer expected any future economic benefit from its use or
disposal. 

Tangible assets that are retired or sold are removed from the statement of financial position together
with the corresponding accumulated amortization. 

Gains or losses resulting from derecognition of a tangible asset element is included in the current
profit or loss account when the element is derecognised. 

i) Investment property
Investment property is property (land, buildings or parts of a building) held by the Company to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both, and not to be:
- used for production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;

or

- sold in the ordinary course of business.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Investment property (continued)

Certain properties include a part that is held to be leased or in order to increase the value and another
part that is held for the purpose of producing goods, rendering services or for administrative purposes.

If these parts can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease), they are accounted
for separately. If the parties can not be sold separately, the property is treated as investment property
only if  the  part  used in  the  purpose of  producing goods,  rendering services  or  for  administrative
purposes is insignificant.

 Recognition

Investment property is recognised as an asset if and only if:

- it is probable that the future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will
flow to the Company;

- the cost of the investment property can be reliably measured.

 Measurement

Initial measuremennt

The cost of a purchased investment property comprises its purchase price plus any directly attributable
expenditure  (for  example,  professional  fees  for  legal  services,  property  transfer  taxes  and  other
transaction costs). 

Subsequent measurement

The Company's accounting policy on subsequent measurement of investment property is based on the
fair value model. This policy is applied uniformly to all investment property. Measuring the fair value
of investment properties is performed by evaluators members of the National Association of Evalua-
tors of Romania (ANEVAR). The fair value is based on market price quotations adjusted, where ap-
propriate, to reflect differences in the nature, location or conditions of that asset. These assessments
are reviewed regularly by the Company's management. 

Gains or losses from change in fair value of investment property are recognized in profit or loss in the
period they occur. 

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date.

 Transfers 

Transfers to or from investment property should only be made there is a change in use of the asset evi -
denced by: 

- commencement of the Company occupation – for transfers of investment property to tangible assets
used by the Company;

-  commencement  of  development  with  a  view  to  sale  –  transfer  from  investment  property  to
inventories, accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5;

-  end use of  the  Company -  for  transfers  of  tangible  assets  used by the Company to investment
property; 

- commencement of an operating lease to another party - for transfers from inventories to investment
property.

For a transfer from investment property carried at fair value to tangible assets, the default cost of asset
in its subsequent accounting purposes will be its fair value at the date of change in use.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Investment property (continued)

If a property occupied by the owner becomes an investment property that is accounted for at fair value,
the Company applied IAS 16 "Property and equipment" until the date of change in use, and any differ -
ence at that date between the carrying amount of the property in accordance with IAS 16 and fair value
should be treated as a revaluation in accordance with IAS 16.

 Derecognition 

The carrying value of an investment property is derecognized on disposal or when the investment is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the sale or disposal of an investment property are recognized in profit or
loss when it is sold or scrapped.

j) Assets held for sale 

The Company must classify a fixed asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. To be
available for sale it must be very probable, respectively to have a plan to sell the asset, to be launched
an active program to locate a buyer, the asset to be marketed for sale at a reasonable price to the fair
value  of  the  asset  and  the  sale  to  be  completed  within  one  year  from  the  date  of  the  asset
classification. The one year term can be extended if there are circumstances beyond the control of the
entity and the unit can prove that it can maintain the intention or plan to sell the asset. 

When there is a change in use of a property, meaning that it will be improved in view of the sale, the
Company records the transfer of assets in the category of property and equipment assets held for sale.

If the transferred tangible assets was revalued, the reserve from the the relating revaluation is closed
when the asset is sold. 

For  assets  included  in  the  category of  fixed  assets  held  for  sale,  which  subsequently change  its
destination and will be used for a longer period or to be leased to third parties is highlighted in the
accounting a transfer of them from the category of fixed assets held for sale in the category of property
and equipment. 

Currently the company has no assets that can be classified in this category because it does not have a
sales plan in this regard.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets 
The carrying amount of the Company's assets that are not financial in nature, other than deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to identify the existence of indications of impairment. If
such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its  recoverable amount  of the asset  or  cash-generating unit.  A cash-generating unit  is  the
smallest identifiable group that generates cash and which is independent from other assets and other
groups of assets. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss account.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less the costs to sell that asset or units.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
k) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
In assessing net value in use, future cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that re-
flects current market conditions and risks specific to the asset. 

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
are decreased or no longer exists. The impairment loss shall be resumed if it was a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only if the asset's
carrying  amount  does  not  exceed  the  carrying  amount  that  would  have  been  determined,  net  of
depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

l) Share capital

The share capital consists of ordinary shares, indivisible, nominative, of equal value, issued in 
dematerialized form and grant equal rights to their holders. 

m) Provisions 
Provisions are reflected in the profit or loss account when the company has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, when to settle the obligation is required outflow of re -
sources embodying economic benefits and it can be measured with a credible estimate in terms of the
amount of the obligation. 

To determine the provision, future cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
the current market conditions and the risks specific to the liability. The amount recognized as a provi -
sion is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the re-
porting period. 

Provisions shall be reviewed at the end of the reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, the provi-
sion should be annulled.

There are not  recognized provisions for the costs that are incurred for the future activity.

The Company recorded provisions for onerous contracts in cases where the expected benefits to be
derived  from a  contract  are  lower  than  the  inevitable  costs  associated  with  fulfilling  contractual
obligations. 

The Company will record provisions for incentives granted from the profit made representing profit
sharing  to  employees,  directors  which  operate  under  the  mandate  agreement  and  the  company's
administrators,  which will  be distributed after approval by the general  meeting of shareholders of
standalone  annual  financial  statements  prepared  for  the  year  the  profit  was  achieved in  granting
incentives. 

n) Employee benefits

 Short-term benefits

Obligations with short-term benefits granted to employees are not updated and are recognized in profit
or  loss  account  as  the  related  service  is  provided.  Short-term employee  benefits  include  salaries,
bonuses and social security contributions. 
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

n) Employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits are recognized as expense when the services are rendered. It recognizes
a provision for the amounts expected to be paid as premiums in short-term cash or schemes for staff
participation in profit as the company has legal or constructive obligation to pay these amounts as a
result of past service rendered by employees and if the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

Besides salaries and other salary rights under the Company contract (articles of incorporation) and the
collective employment agreement, managers, directors with mandate contract and employees of the
Company are entitled to receive incentives granted in profit participations personality ment to profit.
This  obligation  is  recognized  first  in  the  profit  or  loss  account  of  the  financial  year  in  which  it
achieved profits as reserves for employee profit sharing and bonuses paid and will be distributed after
approval by the general meeting of shareholders of standalone annual financial statements, prepared
for the year in which the profit was achieved of which are granted incentives.

• Defined contribution plans 

The Company makes payments on behalf of their employees to the Romanian State pension system,
health insurance and unemployment fund, in the normal course of business. Also, all members and
employees of the Company are legally obliged to contribute (through individual social contributions)
to the Romanian State pension. All relevant contributions are recognized in profit or loss account for
the period when incurred. The Company has no further obligations. 

The Company is not engaged in any independent pension scheme and consequently, has no other obli-
gations in this regard. The Company is not engaged in any other post retirement benefit system. The
Company has no obligation to provide further services to current or former employees. 

 Long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obligation in respect of services related to long-term benefits is the amount of fu -
ture benefit that employees have earned in return for services rendered by them in the current and prior
periods. Based on the collective employment agreement in force, people who retire at the normal  re -
tirement age benefits at retirement date of an allowance equal to the amount of two salaries at their
date of retirement.

o) Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected cash receipts and payments in the
future during the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter dura-
tion) to the carrying amount of the asset or financial liability.

p) Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which it is established the right to
receive that income.

Dividend income is recorded on gross  value including tax on dividends, which is recognized as a
current income tax expense.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

p) Dividend Income (continued) 

In the case of dividends received in the form of shares as an alternative to cash, the dividend income is
recognized at the level of cash that would have been received in correspondence with increasing par-
ticipation therein. The Company does not record dividend income from shares received free of charge
when they are distributed proportionally to all shareholders. 

r) Gains and losses from exchange rate differences 
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency (leu), by converting the
amount in foreign currency at the official exchange rate of the National Bank of Romania valid on the
date of the transaction. 

On the reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the ex-
change rate on the last day of the currency auction of the year. 

Exchange differences arising during the settlement of monetary items or the conversion of monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were converted on initial recognition (during the peri -
od) or in previous financial statements are recognized as gain or loss in profit or loss account in the
period in which they arise. 

s) Dividends to be distributed 
Dividends are treated as a distribution of profit in the period in which they were declared and ap-
proved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. The profit available for distribution is recorded in the
profit of the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS. 

t) Income Taxes
Income tax for the period comprises the current tax and deferred tax. Current income tax includes in -
come tax from dividends recognized on a gross basis. 

Income tax is recognized in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income elements if the tax is re -
lated to the capital elements. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable for the profit realized in the current period, using tax rates en-
acted at the reporting date, and any adjustment relating to prior periods.

For the year ended on 31 December 2016, the income tax rate was 16% (2015: 16%). The tax rate
related to taxed dividend income was on 31 December 2016 of 5% and 0% (2015: 16% and 0%).

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet of the Company for those temporary differences aris -
ing between the tax bases of calculation of tax on assets and liabilities and their carrying value, used
for reporting in the standalone financial statements. 

Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of good-
will, the initial recognition of assets and liabilities arising from transactions that are not business com-
bination and that affects neither the accounting profit or the tax and differences resulting from invest-
ments in subsidiaries, provided that they are not resumed in the near future. 

Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that are expected to apply to temporary differences retried,
under the legislation in force at the reporting date. 

Receivable regarding the deferred tax is recognized only to the extent that the Company that future
profits is probable which could be used to cover the tax loss. The receivable is reviewed at each bal -
ance sheet date and reduced to the extent that the related tax benefit is unlikely to be achieved. Addi -
tional taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the liability
to pay the dividend.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

t) Income taxes (continued)

Assets and liabilities with deferred tax are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
debts and receivables current tax and whether they are related to the tax collected by the same fiscal
authority for the same entity subject to taxation or tax authorities different but wish to carry out settle-
ment claims and current tax liabilities using a net basis or related assets and liabilities will be realized
simultaneously. 

Additional taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time as the
obligation to pay dividends.

u) Earnings per share

Company shows basic and diluted earnings per share for common shares. Basic earnings per share is
calculated  by dividing  profit  or  loss  attributable  to  ordinary equity shareholders  of  the  weighted
average number of ordinary shares over the reporting period.

Diluted  earnings  per  share  is  determined  by  adjusting  the  profit  or  loss  attributable  to  ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares with dilution effects arising from
potential ordinary shares.

v) Segment reporting
A segment  is  a  distinct  component  of  the  company that  provides  products  or  services  (business
segment) or provides products or services within a particular geographical environment (geographical
segment) and is subject to risks and benefits that are different from those of other segments. On 31
December 2016 the company has not identified reportable business or geographical segments. 

(x) Payment of lease 
Operating lease payments are recognized in profit or loss account on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Leasing facilities received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expense on
the lease contract duration. Expense for operating leases is recognized as a component of operating
expenses. Minimum lease payments under finance leases are divided proportionally between leasing
interest expense and the reduction of the lease liability. Leasing interest expense is allocated to each
period of the lease so as to produce a constant interest rate for the remaining leasing liability.

The Company has no signed leases.

y) New standards and amendments 

• Standards and amendments to standards that existed at January 1, 2016 

There are no standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that apply for the first
time for  the  financial  year  beginning on 1 January 2016 which have a  significant  impact  on the
financial statements of the Company. 

• New standards,  amendments  and interpretations  to  be  applied  after  1  January  2016 and
which have not been adopted earlier

There are new standards, amendments and interpretations to be applied for annual periods beginning
after January 1, 2016 and which have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of
the above is not expected to have a material effect on future financial statements.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

y) New standards and amendments (continued) 

Standards / interpretations that have been issued and are applicable starting on or after January 1,
2016.

• IFRS 14 „ Regulatory deferral accounts” (effective from 1January 2016)

IFRS 14 is an interim standard which grants exception for those adopting IFRS for the first  time
regarding such accounts related to the regulated activities.

• Amendments to IFRS 11 - "Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations"

(effective from 1 January 2016)

The amendment clarifies the accounting for the acquisition of a stake in jointly controlled business
when it is a business entity. The standard requires that the investor who makes such an acquisition to
apply accounting business combinations. 

• Amendments  to IAS  16  and  IAS  38  –  Clarifications  on  acceptable  methods  of
amortization (effective from 1 January 2016). 

The amendments clarify that an amortization method based on income is generally not adequate. IASB
amended IAS 16 to clarify that such a depreciation method is not appropriate for tangible assets.

IAS 38 "Intangible assets" now includes amortization of intangible assets on the assumption that the
revenue base is inadequate. This presumption can be eliminated if: 

- the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of income (eg. when measuring the  produced
income is a limiting factor in the amount that can be liberated by active) or 

- it can be shown that the income and consumption of economic benefits from the asset are
correlated.

• Amendments to IAS 27- Equity method in separate financial statements

(effective from 1 January 2016).

The amendment allows entities to account for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
through equity method. 

Currently IAS 27 allows recording these investments at cost or as a financial asset in the financial
statements. The amendment introduces equity method as a third method.

IFRS Annual improvements cycle 2012 – 2014 (effective from 1 January 2016)

These improvements amend the 2012 standards up to 2014 standards. They include updates on IFRS 5
"Non-current  Assets  Held for  Sale  and Discontinued Operations",  IFRS 7 "Financial  Instruments:
Disclosures", IAS 19 "Employee Benefits", IAS 34 "Interim financial reporting".

• Amendments to IAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative (effective from 1 January 2016)

Amendments to IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" were made in the context of "Disclosure
initiative" of IASB that explores how the presentation of financial statements can be improved. The
amendments clarify a number of issues, including: 

- the significance threshold - an entity does not have to group or ungroup data in a manner that
obstructs the presentation of relevant information. Where terms are significant it must be disclosed
enough information to explain the impact on the financial position or performance. 

-  disaggregation  and  subtotals  –  the  presentation  lines  required  by  IAS  1  may  require
disaggregation where it proves relevant to understanding the financial position or performance.
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

y) New standards and amendments (continued)

- notes to the financial statements - confirmation that the notes should not be presented in a
certain order. 

-  other  comprehensive  income  resulting  from  the  situation  arising  from  equity  method
accounting - the incumbent parent company must be grouped based on the presumption that these
items are further classified in the income statement.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, disclosed in IAS 8 on the adoption of new standards /
accounting policies are not required to implement these amendments.

• Amendments  to  IFRS 10,  IFRS 12 and IAS 28 –  Investment  Entities:  Appliying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments  made to  IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial  Statements"  and IAS 28 "Accounting for
Investments in Associates" clarifies that: 

- the exception to the preparation of financial statements is available and that sub-consolidated
entities and which are the subsidiaries of investment entities. 

- investment entity should consolidate subsidiary which is not an investment entity and whose
subject of activity is to provide support for the investment entity. 

-  entities  whch  are  not  investment  entities,  but  have  a  participation  in  an  associated
undertaking which is an investment entity may choose from when it comes to applying the equity
method of registration. Evaluation at fair value applied by the investments associated entity can be
applied or the consolidation can be achieved at the level of associate, which can then detail the fair
value.

Requirements that are to be applied in future 

Interpret and standards that have been issued and that whose application is not mandatory for the
period ended on 31 December 2016.

• IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" (effective from 1 January 2018) 

Full version of IFRS 9 will replace the application guide of IAS 39. IFRS 9 retains but simplifies,
mixed evaluation model  and establishes three categories of primary measures for financial  assets:
amortized cost,  fair value through other comprehensive income and fair value through the income
statement. The base of the classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual
cash flows of the financial asset. 

• IFRS 15 "Revenue from contracts with customers" (effective from 1 January 2018)

This is a converged standard on revenue recognition. Replaces IAS 11 "Construction Contracts" IAS
18 "Revenue" and the related interpretations.

Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of a good or service. When the customer
obtains control then he has the ability to direct the use and obtain benefits from that good or service. 

The basic principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognizes its income following the promised transfer
of goods and services to customers in the amount that reflects the value that the entity expects to
receive  for  these  goods  and  services.  An  entity recognizes  revenue  in  accordance  with  this  core
principle by applying the following steps: 

- Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

- Step 3: Determine the transaction price

- Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation
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3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

y) New standards and amendments (continued) 

IFRS  15  also  includes  a  set  of  presentation  requirements  which  will  result  in  providing  full
information about the nature, amount, time and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
entity contracts with customers. 

• IFRS 16 “Leasing” on the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation (effective from 1
January 2019; earlier adoption is permitted only with simultaneous adoption of IFRS 15) 

IFRS 16 will affect primarily tenant accounting and will result in the registration of nearly all leased
assets  in  the  balance  sheet.  Standard  abolishes  the  distinction  between  financial  and  operational
leasing and provides recording of an asset and a simultaneous financial liability for almost all types of
leasing. 

• IAS  12  "Taxes"  -  recognition  of  deferred  tax  assets  for  unrealised  losses
(effective from 1 January 2017)

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred taxes when an asset is measured at fair value and
the fair value is less than the tax base of the asset. 

• Amendments to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" – Disclosure Initiative (effective from 1
January 2017)

Entities will have to give explanations about the changes in position of debt arising from financing
activities.  This  includes  changes  in  cash  flows  and  non-cash  expenses  such  as,  for  example,
purchasing, sales or defer interest and unrealized foreign exchange differences.

Changes of financial assets should be included in this disclosure if cash flows are, or will be included
in cash flows from financing activities.

It does not specify a particular disclosure format.

• Amendments to IFRS 2 "Share-based Payment"  (effective from 1 January 2018)

The amendment clarifies the assessment basis for cash payments, share-based or awards that transform
cash payments in share-based payments.  

 Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 - Sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate (entry into force date undefined) 

IASB has made limited changes in IFRS 10 and IAS 28 subject. 

The amendments  clarify the accounting treatment  for sales  of assets between the investor and its
associated company. It confirms that the accounting treatment changed depending on where the asset
is sold or represents a non-monetary contribution in an associated enterprise is a business. 

4. Financial risk management 
The Company's management continually assesses the risks that may affect the company's objectives and
take appropriate measures in case of changes in operating conditions.
Risk management  is  thus  an  integral  part  of  all  business  processes  and decision  making within  the
Company.
The complex activity undertaken by the Company determines the existence of various risks that must be
monitored.
Risk monitoring is done on each hierarchical level, existing supervisory procedures and approval limits
decision.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

Internal reporting risk exposure is continuously on each business line, the company management is kept
informed of the risks that may arise in running the business.
The main risks identified in the Company's activity are:
- Economic environment risk 
- Operational risk
- Market risk (price risk, currency risk, interest rate risk)
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk.

a) Economic environment risk  
This risk is extremely important through its direct effect on the activity of the Company, and indirectly
through companies in which the Company holds interests.
Romanian economy continues to present specific characteristics of emerging economies, and there is a
significant  degree  of  uncertainty  regarding  the  development  of  political,  economic  and  social
environment.
From the point of view of the Romanian economy, 2016 was a good year, outstripping GDP growth to
be above the forecast level.
Romanian economy is still a fragile economy and is affected by developments in other economies,
notably the EU countries, which are the main business partners for our country.
EU economy in 2017 will  be subject to political  risks in particular.  The policy will  influence the
economy and generate  uncertainty.  In  the  euro area  elections  will  be  held in  three of  the  largest
economies: France, Italy and the Netherlands.
The way UK will exit the EU, the conditions to be negotiated, raises new questions on the evolution of
the EU economy in 2017.
2017 will therefore be a difficult year with high risks due to unpredictable economic developments.

b) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of incurring losses or reaching the estimated profits due to internal factors
such as  ongoing inadequate  of internal  activities,  the  existence of  inadequate staff  or  systems,  or
because of external factors, such as changing economic conditions, legislative changes in the capital
market, socio-political events. 
The  main  responsibility of  developing  and implementing  operational  risk  controls  belongs  to  the
company's management. Responsibility is supported by the development of general standards of the
company operational risk management on the following areas: 
- requirements for separation of responsibility;
- compliance with the regulatory requirements;
- requirements to report operational losses and proposed remedial action;
- development and professional training;
- establishing ethical standards;
- documentation of controls and procedures;
- preventing the risk of litigation.
Operational risks are inherent in society.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
b) Operational risk (continued)

The Company manages operational risk through the identification, assessment, monitoring and risk
control.
It  must  be emphasized that,  in managing operational risk models and techniques are not the most
important,  but  the  attitude towards risk,  which are  formed over  time  and is  an aspect  of  culture.
Frequent legislative changes, the need for approval of the Company as AIFM and authorization of key
positions at the company level (compliance officer, managing risk) on the one hand, induce certain
risks especially for understanding the complexity of the work and its adaptation to legal requirements
and, on the other hand, lead to a higher supervision (specialist) in the activity generating risk.

c) Market risk
Market risk is the current or future risk of adverse outcome on profits, caused by fluctuations in the
market prices of equity securities - in terms of activities belonging to the trading portfolio - interest
rate and exchange rate fluctuations for the entire activity of the company. 

Efficient management of market risk is made by using fundamental analysis that gives an indication of
the  soundness  of  investments  and  estimating  potential  companies,  and  considering  the  forecasts
regarding the evolution of economic sectors and financial markets. 

The main issues tracked in the analysis of market risk are: assessing the share portfolio in terms of
profitability and growth potential, allocating strategic long term investments, identifying short term
investments to capitalize on price fluctuations in the stock market, setting limits for concentration of
assets in a particular economic sector. 

The Company is subject to market risk, particularly because of its trading activity.
The Company is exposed to the following market risks:

• Price risk 

The company is at risk of fair value of financial instruments held that fluctuates as a result of changes
in market prices, whether caused by factors specific to the activity of the issuer or factors affecting all
the instruments traded on the market. 

The  market  value  of  the  portfolio  of  listed  shares  (BSE  -  regulated  market,  the  BSE-AERO  -
alternative  trading  system),  on  31.12.2016  represents  65.81%  (2015:  67,75%)  of  the  total
administered portfolio. 

In these conditions, the company has a high risk - associated to the changes in prices of financial
assets in the stock market. 

In the managed portfolio can be found a total of 6 issuers, of the 10 that constitute the BET index of
the Bucharest Stock Exchange. 

The market value according to IFRS of the packages of shares hold by the 6 issuers, representing
61.09% of the market value of shares in listed companies. Thus, the BET index variation associated
risk of BSE is high. 

The investments held in companies whose securities are listed and traded on the capital market in
Romania,  plus  placement  owned at  the  Romanian  Commercial  Bank,  represents  on  31.12.2016 -
90.45% (2015: 91,33%) of the fair value of investments.

The company also monitors risk concentrations by sector which is presented as follows:
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

c) Market risk (continued)

Portfolio structure
Total market value of the

package
31.12.2016

Total market value of the
package

31.12.2015

Weight of economic sectors 
in SIF portfolio value:

(lei) % (lei) %

1,578,803,318 100.00 1,668,679,019 100.00

finace, banking, insurance 702,992,249 44.53 741,615,971 44.44

oil resources and related services 182,830,572 11.58 199,681,581 11.97

energy and gas transport 135,629,928 8.59 165,218,232 9.90

domestic trade 99,412,330 6.30 103,914,380 6.23

food industry 95,749,537 6.06 92,778,078 5.56

renting and subrenting real estate 73,859,121 4.68 77,006,058 4.62

turism, catering, recreation 66,353,671 4.20 63,816,090 3.82

pharmaceutical industry 48,042,512 3.04 48,297,325 2.89

methane gas resources 38,793,225 2.46 33,340,672 2.00

electronics industry, electrical 36,403,022 2.31 39,658,355 2.38

machinery industry,  manufacturing 25,156,631 1.59 22,493,017 1.35

metallurgical industry 21,725,448 1.38 27,264,318 1.63

glass, porcelain, tiles industry 12,624,258 0.80 9,627,292 0.58

chemical industry 12,461,877 0.79 11,702,960 0.70

financial markets administration 11,127,561 0.70 10,453,597 0.63

other financial intermediation 10,027,339 0.64 7,836,269 0.47

distribution, supply of electricity and energy services 3,227,332 0.20 5,416,178 0.32

wood, cellulose, paper industry 4,206,566 0.25

buildings 2,050,889 0.12

other activities - -

TOTAL EQUITIES 1,576,416,613 99.85 1,666,377,828 99.86

FOND UNITS 2,386,705 0.15 2,301,191 0.14

 

Analyzing the data presented above,  on 31.12.2016 the Company mainly owned shares of issuers
operating in the financial, banking, insurance, accounting for 44.53% of the total portfolio, up slightly
compared to 31.12.2015, when the same sector recorded a weight of 44.44%. 
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
c) Market risk (continued) 

 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a portfolio may be negatively affected as a result of changes
in exchange rates. 

Given that most of the assets of the Company are denominated in the national currency exchange rate
fluctuations do not directly affect the company's business. These fluctuations have influence in the
evaluation of investments of foreign currency deposits type. 

Currency holdings represent on 31.12.2016, 0.40% (2015: 0.30%) of the total financial assets, so that
foreign exchange risk is insignificant. 

Due to the low weight of assets denominated in foreign currency, the company has no formalized
policy of currency hedging. 

Investments in bank deposits in foreign currencies are constantly monitored and investment action is
taken, disinvestment, according to the projected trend of the exchange rate.

Concentration of assets and liabilities on currencies type is summarized in the following table:

In lei Carrying value Lei EUR USD

31 December 2016

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,509,197 2,093,332 1,343,429 72,436
Deposits from banks 24,466,476 19,361,240 5,105,236
Financial assets available for sale 1,578,803,318 1,578,803,318
Loans and receivables 13,427,910 13,427,910
Other financial assets 347,473 347,473
Total financial assets 1,620,554,374 1,614,033,273 1,343,429 5,177,672
Financial liabilities

Dividends payable 56,991,969 56,991,969
Other financial liabilities 18,899,845 18,899,845
Total fiancial liabilities 75,891,814 75,891,814

In lei Carrying value Lei EUR USD

31 December 2015

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 762,407 625,425 66,633 70,349
Deposits from banks 5,813,698 912,603 4,901,095
Financial assets available for sale 1,668,679,019 1,668,679,019
Loans and receivables 4,467,266 4,467,266
Other financial assets 367,280 367,280
Total financial assets 1,680,089,670 1,675,051,593 66,633 4,971,444
Financial liabilities

Dividends payable 81,027,502 81,027,502
Other financial liabilities 9,958,816 9,958,816
Total fiancial liabilities 90,986,318 90,986,318
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
c) Market risk (continued) 

 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is that the value of a portfolio will fluctuate due to changes in prevailing market interest
rates. Factors defining this type of market risk are a wide range of interest rates of corresponding to a
variation of markets, currencies and maturities for which the Company holds positions. 

The interest rate directly affects revenues and expenses attached to the financial assets and liabilities
bearing variable interest rates. 

The majority of portfolio assets are not interest bearing. Consequently the company is not significantly
affected by interest rate risk. The interest rates applied to cash and cash equivalents are short term.

To benefit from the volatility of interest, for greater flexibility in the allocation policy of available
funds will be sought for the placement of funds in money market instruments to be done especially in
the short term of 1-3 months.

The following table summarizes the company's exposure to interest rate risk. 

In lei
Carrying value Under 3 months

Between 3 and 12
months Without interest

31 December 2016

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,509,197 3,509,197

Deposits from banks 24,466,476 24,466,476

Financial assets available for sale 1,578,803,318 1,578,803,318

Loans and receivables 13,427,910 13,427,910

Other financial assets 347,473 347,473

Total financial assets 1,620,554,374 24,466,476 0 1,596,087,898

Financial liabilities

Dividends payable 56,991,969 56,991,969

Other financial liabilities 18,899,845 18,899,845

Total fiancial liabilities 75,891,814 0 0 75,891,814
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
c) Market risk (continued)

In lei
Carrying value Under 3 months

Between 3 and 12
months Without interest

31 December 2015

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 762,407 762,407

Deposits from banks 5,813,698 5,813,698

Financial assets available for sale 1,668,679,019 1,668,679,019

Loans and receivables 4,467,266 4,467,266

Other financial assets 367,280 367,280

Total financial assets 1,680,089,670 5,813,698 1,674,275,972

Financial liabilities

Dividends payable 81,027,502 81,027,502

Other financial liabilities 9,958,816 9,958,816

Total fiancial liabilities 90,986,318 90,986,318

d) Credit risk

Credit  risk  is  the  risk  of  loss  of  the  Company  following  the  insolvency  of  its  debtors.
The Company's credit risk is mostly caused by exposures to asset items such as "shares" representing
96.44% of assets managed, evaluated according to the law.

Credit  risk assessment  is  done in  two steps,  both prior  to  taking investment  operations  and after
approval and actual operations, aiming at development of assets to take appropriate measures if the
emergence of elements that can damage the economic activity of companies and, in extreme cases,
their entry into insolvency.

Credit risk expresses the possibility that borrowers or issuers not honor their obligations at maturity,
due to degradation of the borrower's financial situation or the overall economic situation. Credit risk
arises in relation to any type of debt. 

Issuer  risk is  the  risk of  loss  of  the  value of  a  security of  a  portfolio  due to  deterioration of  its
economic and financial situation.

The main elements of credit risk identified, which could materially affect the Company's activity are:

- the risk of not collecting the dividends from portfolio companies; 

- the risk of not collecting the value of the contract, if the sales activity packages of shares to "closed"
companies through  a contract of sale; 

-  the risk that in the event of liquidation of portfolio companies, the value obtained is less than the
initial investment. 

The Company may be exposed to credit risk through investments made in bonds, current accounts,
bank deposits, and other receivables.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

d) Credit risk (continued)

On 31 December 2016 the Company does not hold in the portfolio bonds, real guarantees as insurance
and did not record outstanding financial assets.  
Company sale  transactions  –  the  purchase  of  shares  are  made  through the  bank storage  with  no
custody – storage agreement, according to the law, so the risk of default settlement is minimal. 
In accordance with the legal provisions, the Company has not granted any loans or guarantees to third
parties. 
The maximum exposure to credit risk on 31December 2016 is 40.568.000 lei (2015: 7.308.017 lei) and
can be analyzed in the following tables.

In lei
31 December

 2016
31 December

2015

Bank deposits and accounts 27,947,423 6,539,340

Other assets 12,620,577 768,677

TOTAL 40,568,000 7,308,017

Exposure on current accounts and deposits with banks (excluding attached interest)

In lei 31 December
2016

31 December
 2015

Banca RAIFFEISEN BANK 2,046,150 5,390,027

Banca TRANSILVANIA 24,448,887 919,377

Banca COMERCIALA ROMANA 1,451,159 137,214

Banca BRD - GSG 701 91,961

EXIMBANK 526 526

Marfin Bank 235

Banca ING BANK

Total 27,947,423 6,539,340

Other assets

In lei
31 December

2016
31 December

 2015

Dividends receivable 79,696 88,474

Other various debtors and trade 
receivables 13,495,993 1,779,360

Provisions from impairment of other 
financial assets (955,112) (1,099,157)

Total 12,620,577 768,677

e) Liquidity risk
The Company seeks to maintain a level of liquidity appropriate to its support obligations, based on an
assessment of relative liquidity of the assets on the market, taking into account the time required for
liquidation and the price or value that can be liquidated those assets, and their sensitivity market risks
or other external factors.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

e) Liquidity risk (continued)

The  Company must  hold  liquid  assets  whose  aggregate  value  can  cover  the  difference  between
liquidity outflows and inflows of liquidity in crisis, so be assured that the company maintaisn levels of
liquidity buffers which are adequate to enable it to cope any imbalances between cash inflows and
outflows in crisis. 

Liquidity risk is mainly related to shareholdings in the "closed"companies  existing in the managed
portfolio.  Thus,  the  sale  of  shareholdings  -  where  the  emergence  of  negative  aspects  of  their
economico-financial situation or where the aim is to obtain liquidity - is particularly heavy, with the
risk of not being possible to obtain a price which is higher or at least equal to that that those holdings
are valued in the calculation of net assets in accordance with F.S.A. 

Moreover, the low liquidity of the capital market in Romania is often difficult even trading of holdings
in listed companies. 

Looking ahead to 2017, we anticipate maintaining a low level of liquidity on the capital market, due to
the uncertainties surrounding the eurozone. 

This aspect is always to the attention of management, looking for solutions to increase liquidity in the
managed portfolio. 

The structure of assets and liabilities in terms of liquidity is analyzed below: 

In lei

Carrying value Under 3 months
Between 3 and

12 months

Without
predetermined

maturity

31 December 2016

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3,509,197 3,509,197

Deposits from banks 24,466,476 24,466,476

Financial assets available for sale 1,578,803,318 1,578,803,318

Loans and receivables 13,427,910 13,427,910

Other financial assets 347,473 347,473

Total financial assets 1,620,554,374 24,466,476 0 1,596,087,898

Financial liabilities

Dividends payable 56,991,969 56,991,969

Other financial liabilities 18,899,845 18,899,845

Total fiancial liabilities 75,891,814 75,891,814 0 0
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4. Financial risk management (continued)

e) Liquidity risk (continued)

In lei

Carrying value Under 3 months
Between 3 and

12 months

Without
predetermined

maturity

31 December 2015

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 762,407 762,407

Deposits from banks 5,813,698 5,813,698

Financial assets available for sale 1,668,679,019 1,668,679,019

Loans and receivables 4,467,266 4,467,266

Other financial assets 367,280 367,280

Total financial assets 1,680,089,670 5,813,698 1,674,275,972

Financial liabilities

Dividends payable 81,027,502 81,027,502

Other financial liabilities 9,958,816 9,958,816

Total fiancial liabilities 90,986,318 90,986,318

f) Tax risk 

Starting from the accession of Romania to the European Union, the Company had to undergo EU fis -
cal regulations and implement the changes brought by European legislation. The way the Company
has implemented these changes remains open for a tax audit for five years. 

The Company's management believes that interpreted the legislative provisions correctly and recorded
fair value for taxes and other debts to the state but in these conditions, there is some risk attached.

Romania's tax system is subject to various interpretations and permanent changes. In some cases, the
tax authorities may adopt different interpretations to those of the Company of certain tax matters and
can calculate interest and penalties. 

The statements regarding taxes can be submitted to control and revision for a period of five years,
generally after the date of submission. 

Romanian government owns a significant number of agencies authorized to perform control of the
companies operating in Romania. These controls are similar to tax audits in other countries and can
cover not only fiscal, but other regulatory and legal issues of interest to these agencies. It is possible
that the Company will be subject to tax audits as the issue of new tax legislation.

g) Capital adequacy

The company has a policy of maintaining an optimal level of equity in order to develop and achieve
company goals. The objective of the Company is business continuity in order to provide profitability
for its shareholders. 
The equity of the Company consist of the capital reserves created,  the current  profit  and retained
earnings. On 31.12.2016 the Company's equity were 1,429,195,054 lei (2015: 1,463,179,782 lei).
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5. Financial assets and liabilities 

Accounting classifications and fair values

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities on 31.12.2016 is as follows:

In lei Available for
sale

Amortised cost Net carrying value Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 3,509,197 3,509,197 3,509,197

Deposits from banks 24,466,476 24,466,476 24,466,476

Financial assets available for
sale

1,578,803,318 1,578,803,318 1,578,803,318

Investments held to maturity

Other financial assets 13,775,383 13,775,383 13,775,383

Total financial assets 1,578,803,318 41,751,056 1,620,554,374 1,620,554,374

Dividends payable 56,991,969 56,991,969 56,991,969

Other financial liabilities 18,899,845 18,899,845 18,899,845

Total fiancial liabilities 75,891,814 75,891,814 75,891,814

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities on 31.12.2015 is as follows:

In lei Available for
sale

Amortised cost Net carrying value Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 762,407 762,407 762,407

Deposits from banks 5,813,698 5,813,698 5,813,698

Financial assets available for
sale

1,668,679,019 1,668,679,019 1,668,679,019

Investments held to maturity

Other financial assets 4,834,546 4,834,546 4,834,546

Total financial assets 1,668,679,019 11,410,651 1,680,089,670 1,680,089,670

Dividends payable 81,027,502 81,027,502 81,027,502

Other financial liabilities 9,958,816 9,958,816 9,958,816

Total fiancial liabilities 90,986,318 90,986,318 90,986,318
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6. Dividend income 

Dividend income is recorded at gross value. Tax rates on dividends for the financial year ended on
31.12.2016 were 5% and zero  (2015: 16% and zero).
Dividend income, mainly on contributors is as follows: 

In lei 31 December
 2016

31 December
2015

BANCA TRANSILVANIA 13,473,250

C.N.T.E.E. TRANSELECTRICA S.A. 9,974,878 11,645,203

BRD - GSG 5,673,819

SNTGN TRANSGAZ S.A. Medias 4,993,904 3,948,547

SNGN ROMGAZ S.A. 4,189,668

ANTIBIOTICE S.A. Iasi 1,891,190 2,091,425

EXIMBANK 1,281,822

UNIVERS S.A. Rm. Valcea 886,449 811,834

TURISM FELIX S.A. Baile Felix 538,715 328,280

BURSA DE VALORI BUCURESTI 333,328 559,409

IAMU S.A. Blaj 313,169 263,800

S.E. ELECTRICA  S.A. 210,905 320,398

S.I.F. TRANSILVANIA 142,471

TURISM S.A. Pucioasa 85,901 80,848

OMV PETROM Bucuresti 7,756,149

ELECTROMAGNETICA S.A. Bucuresti 680,585

FLAROS S.A Bucuresti 492,686

S.I.F. MOLDOVA S.A. 121,361

PROVITAS S.A. Bucuresti 85,161

Other 259,678 316,266

TOTAL 44,249,147 29,501,952

7. Interest income
 

In lei 31 December
2016

31 December
 2015

Interest income earned from bank deposits 53,278 303,767

Interest income from current bank accounts 2

Total 53,278 303,769

8. Other operating income
 

In lei 31 December
 2016

31 December
2015

Financial income from adjustments for 
impairment of financial assets 12,933,108
Income from provisions for impairment of 
current assets 1,640 17,079

Other operating income 42,337,136 83,511,332

Other financial income 19,337 22,932

Revenues from deferred income tax

Total 42,358,113 96,484,451
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8. Other operating income (continued)

In the course of 2016 were repeated in other operating income, according to OGM no. 7 / 29.04.2016,
the dividends not collected for more than three years from their date of chargeability for the right to
sue was extinguished by prescription. In this regard, they were taken to other income, dividends in the
balance for the years 2010 - 2012 amounted to 42,009,606 lei (2015: 82,666,768 lei, acc. to OGM
Decision no. 6/29.04.2014 and 7a/29.04.2015).

9. Net income from sale of assets
In lei 31 December

2016
31 December

2015
Income from sale of financial assets available 
for sale

76,257,242 127,943,435

The carrying amount of financial assets 
available for sale transferre

(21,004,025) (72,464,148)

Net gain from sale of financial assets 55,253,217 55,479,287

10. Administration and supervision commissions, fees and taxes 

In lei 31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Expenses on commissions payable SSIF for 
transactions with shares

192,928 331,195

Expenses on fees payable to  shareholders 
registry services

144,900 148,800

Cheltuieli privind comisioane cu societatea de 
depozit

275,486 317,957

BSE expenses 25,200 26,040

Expenses on taxes payable to the capital 
market entities (FSA)

1,398,083 1,453,867

Expenses on audit fees 138,573 114,210

Other expenses on commissions, fees and 
taxes

92,585 673,919

Total 2,267,755 3,065,988

Fees paid to auditors during 2016 were of 138,573 lei (2015: 114 ,210 lei),  of which 113,258 lei
financial auditor (2015: 114,210 lei), and the difference of 25,315 lei was paid during the year 2016
for the information system audit.
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11. Other operating expenses

In lei 31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Expenses for taxes 369,459 299,166

Expenses for salaries and other staff expenses 12,034,806 11,436,481

Amortisation, provisions and value 
adjustments expenses 

17,018,325 10,161,291

Expenses for external services 776,497 1,448,449

Total 30,199,087 23,345,387

Salaries and other similar expenses

In lei 31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Salary costs 9,914,604 9,879,164

Expenses on social security and welfare 1,582,887 1,557,317

Other salary costs according to court decisions 537,315 -

Total 12,034,806 11,436,481

31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Staff with contract of manadate 2 2

Employees with higher education 32 35

Employees with secondary studies 13 13

Employees with middle studies 5 5

Total 52 55

In other operating expenses are summarized personnel expenses, expenses with other taxes and fees,
amortiyation expenses, provisions and adjustments of value, external services expenses. 

In the financial year ended on 31.12.2016  the average number of employees was 50 (2015: 52), and
the number of employees registered at the end of 2016 was 50 (2015: 53). 

Remuneration offered in the fiscal year 2016 to the administrative bodies, effective management and
staff key positions, representing salary rights and incentives offered from the profit, representing the
participation of staff in profit, totals 4,828,188 lei (2015: 4,753,097 lei). 

The Company makes payments to the Romanian state institutions in its employee pension account. 

All employees are members of the pension plan of the Romanian state. The company does not operate
any other retirement plan or benefits after retirement and, consequently, has no other obligations on
pensions. Furthermore, the Company is not obligated to provide additional benefits to employees after
retirement.
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12. Income taxes

Pre-tax reconciliation of profit
with income tax expense in the profit or loss account

In lei 31 December
2016

31 December
2015

Current income tax 14,711,332 24,577,466

Tax on dividends 2,022,379 3,938,519

Deffered income tax expense

Totak income tax reflected in the result of the year 16,733,711 28,515,985

Pre-tax profit 118,005,088 160,920,996

Tax in accordance with the statutiry rate of 16% 18,880,814 25,747,359

Effect on income tax

Nondeductible expenses 4,435,044 9,935,405

Untaxed income (8,597,226) (11,096,298)

Rations for imposing of dividends 2,022,379 3,938,519

Amounts representing sponsorships under legal 
limits

(7,300) (9,000)

Records and replays of temporary differences

Income tax 16,733,711 28,515,985

13. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

In lei 31 December
 2016

31 December
 2015

Cash on hand 8,510 3,424

Current bank accounts 3,483,254 726,646

Cash equivalents 17,433 32,337

Total cash and cash equivalents 3,509,197 762,407

14. Deposits with banks

In lei 31 December
 2016

31 December
 2015

Bank deposits at sight 24,464,169 5,812,694

Attached receivables 2,307 1,004

Total deposits with banks 24,466,476 5,813,698
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15. Financial assets

 Available to sale financial assets

In lei 31 December
 2016

31 December
 2015

Shares measured at fair value 1,569,695,067 1,647,958,291

Shares measured at cost 6,721,546 18,419,537

Fond units at fair value 2,386,705 2,301,191

Total 1,578,803,318 1,668,679,019

The movement of financial assets available for sale in the financial years ending on 31.12.2016 and
31.12.2015 is presented below:

In lei Shares measured
at fair value

Shares measured
at cost

 Fond units  Total

01 January 2015 1,495,284,699 18,034,809 2,333,908 1,515,653,416

Reclasifications 2015 154,846,070 154,846,070

Net change during the 
period

12,567,984 (20,960) (197,556) 12,349,468

Impairment losses 8,441,620 8,441,620

Changes in fair value (23,182,082) 405,688 164,839 (22,611,555)

31 December 2015 1,647,958,291 18,419,537 2,301,191 1,668,679,019

Reclasifications 2016 9,627,292 (9,627,292)

Net change during the 
period

(6,542,036) (2,321,878) (8,863,914)

Impairment losses (11,020,326) (247,407) (11,267,733)

Changes in fair value (70,328,154) 251,179 332,921 (69,744,054)

31 December 2016 1,569,695,067 6,721,546 2,386,705 1,578,803,318

On 31.12.2016 and 31.12.2015 in shares at fair value category are included mainly the value of shares
held  to  the  following  issuers: OMV PETROM  SA Bucuresti,  BRD  -  Groupe  Societe  Generale,
BANCA TRANSILVANIA SA Cluj  Napoca,  CNTEE TRANSELECTRICA SA Bucuresti,  SNTGN
TRANSGAZ SA Medias, SC ARGUS SA Constanta, SC ANTIBIOTICE SA Iasi.

 Fair value hierarchy
To determine fair value, the Company uses the following hierarchy of methods: 
- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities 
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (ie prices) or indirectly (ie derived from prices). 
-  Level  3:  evaluation techniques largely based on observable elements.  This category includes all
instruments  where  the  evaluation  technique  includes  items  that  are  not  based  on  observable  and
unobservable input parameters which can have a significant effect on the assessment instrument. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but which
are subject to adjustments based largely on unobservable data or estimates to reflect the difference
between the two instruments. 
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15. Financial assets (continued)

In lei 31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Level 1 798,866,813 956,688,842

Level 2 232,554,156 172,010,760

Level 3 547,382,349 539,979,417

Total 1,578,803,318 1,668,679,019

Fair value measurement of shareholdings on 31.12.2016 was performed as follows: 

-  for  securities  quoted  and  traded  in  2016,  the  market  value  was  determined  by  taking  into
consideration the quotation on the last trading day (closing quote on the main market of the capital for
level 1 and for level 2 were taken quotations for the shares traded in the last 30 trading days) except
for Mercur Craiova which market value was calculated considering the existing company's valuation
reports; 

- for quoted securities that have not been traded in the last 30 trading days of 2016 and for unquoted
securities, the market value was determined based on the equity of issuers on 31.12.2015;

- for related securities of companies in insolvency proceedings or reorganization, evaluation is made at
zero value;

-  for  units  in  UCITS,  the  value  taken  into  account  was  the  last  net  asset  value,  calculated  and
published. 

16. Loans and receivables

In lei 31 December
 2016

31 December
 2015

Trade receivables 1,194,644 712,827

Debtors 12,381,045 1,155,007

Receivables related to the state 
budget and social security 
budget 805,849 3,697,238

Other receivables 1,484 1,351

Receivables impairment 
adjustments (955,112) (1,099,157)

TOTAL 13,427,910 4,467,266
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17.  Property and equipment

In lei
 Land and
buildings

Equipment
and

machinery

 Other
equipment tools

and furniture

 Prepayments
and tangible

assets in
advance

 Total

Gross value

01 January 2015 12,709,377 2,493,756 203,349 15,406,482

Increases 474,367 11,352 18,999 504,718

Reductions (1,372,358) (163,158) (1,535,516)

31 December 2015 11,811,386 2,341,950 222,348 14,375,684

Increases 41,057 41,057

Reductions (10,106) (252,866) (7,154) (270,126)

31 December 2016 11,801,280 2,130,141 215,194 14,146,615

Accumulated amortisation

01 January 2015 839,761 2,427,067 131,057 3,397,885

Amortisation recorded 
during the financial year 393,586 34,042 22,186 449,814

Reductions or reversals (1,131,717) (163,158) (1,294,875)

31 December 2015 101,630 2,297,951 153,243 2,552,824

Amortisation recorded 
during the financial year 425,079 37,393 19,788 482,260

Reductions or reversals (1,844) (252,866) (7,154) (261,864)

31 December 2016 524,865 2,082,478 165,877 2,773,220

Net carrying amount on
01 January  2015

11,869,616 66,689 72,292 12,008,597

Net carrying amount on
31 December 2015

11,709,756 43,999 69,105 11,822,860

Net carrying amount on
31 December 2016

11,276,415 47,663 49,317 11,373,395
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17.  Property and equipment (continued)

The Company has no restrictions on property titles. Tangible assets have not been pledged as security.
At the end of the reporting periods 2016 and 2015 the Company did not record contractual obligations
for the acquisition of tangible assets. 
The  last  revaluation  of  land  and  buildings  owned  was  made  on  31  December  2015,  revaluation
differences being recorded within equity. 
The  Management  believes  that  the  net  accounting  value  of  land  and  buildings  ont  31.12.2016
represents an estimate of fair value at the reporting date. 

18. Real Estate Investments

In lei
31 December

 2016
31 December

 2015

Balance at 1 ianuarie 438,571 1,005,026

Investment property sales - (596,273)

Investment property aquisitions - -

Investment property measurement 44,500 29,818

Balance at 31 December 483,071 438,571

The last revaluation of investment properties owned was made on 31.12.2016. Revaluation differences
were  recorded  in  profit  or  loss  account.  The  review  was  conducted  by  the  authorized  appraiser
ANEVAR.

19. Other assets

In lei

31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Intangible assets 4,519 4,382

Other receivables 243,693 254,677

Inventories 17,985 21,096

Prepayments 81,276 87,125

TOTAL 347,473 367,280

20. Dividends payable

 

In lei
31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Dividends payable for the year  2010 9,717,947

Dividends payable for the year  2011 16,183,848

Dividends payable for the year  2012 16,354,832

Dividends payable for the year  2013 21,869,576 22,077,065

Dividends payable for the year  2014 15,924,515 16,693,810

Dividends payable for the year  2015 19,197,878

Total payable dividends 56,991,969 81,027,502
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21.  Taxes

In lei 31 December

 2016

31 December

 2015

Debts related to the social insurance budget 229,779 215,157

Debts related to state budget 4,895,699 2,194,617

Other taxes 121,159 131,569

Total 5,246,637 2,541,343

22. Deferred income tax liabilities 

Deferred income tax liabilities are determined by the following elements: 

In lei Assets Liabilities Net Tax

31 December 2016

Measurement at fair value of financial 
assets available for sale 620,532,111 620,532,111 99,285,138

Plant and equipment remeasurement 9,232,795 9,232,795 1,477,247

Retained earnings representing obtained 
untaxed remeasurement reserves 1,772,247 1,772,247 283,560

Retained earnings representing 
unobtained untaxed remeasurement 
reserves 3,755,326 3,755,326 600,855

Retained earnings representing 
unobtained untaxed remeasurement 
reserves – property investment 359,751 359,751 57,560

Differences  from fair value adjustment of
held for sale financial assets – free shares 
in the balance 108,195,592 108,195,592 17,311,295

Legal reserves 11,603,314 11,603,314 1,856,530

Other reserves – dividends prescribed 
under AGOA decision of 23.04.2005 6,551,528 6,551,528 1,048,244

Other reserves 980,658 980,658 156,906

TOTAL 762,983,322 762,983,322 122,077,335
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22. Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)

In RON Active Datorii Net Impozit

31 December 2015

Evaluation at fair value of financial assets
available for sale 701,543,898 701,543,898 112,247,023

Reevaluation of tangible assets 9,615,493 9,615,493 1,538,478

Retained earnings representing obtained 
untaxed rezerves from  reevaluation 1,772,247 1,772,247 283,560

Retained earnings representing 
unobtained untaxed reserves from 
reevaluation 3,493,557 3,493,557 558,969

Retained earnings representing 
unobtained untaxed reserves from 
reevaluation – property investment 359,751 359,751 57,560

Differences in fair value of financial 
assets held for sale - free shares in 
balance 111,852,424 111,852,424 17,896,388

Legal reserves 11,603,314 11,603,314 1,856,530

Other reserves - dividends prescribed 
under AGOA decision of 23.04.2005 6,551,528 6,551,528 1,048,244

Other reserves 980,658 980,658 156,906

TOTAL 847,772,870 847,772,870 135,643,658

23. Other liabilities

In RON 31 December
 2016

31 December
 2015

Liabilities with staff 988,527 1,405,666

Commercial liabilities 244,383 352,650

Received guarantees 1,494 1,664

Various creditors 15 7

Deferred revenues - shares 12,617,426 -

Provisions for risks and expenditures 5,048,000 8,198,829

Total other liabilities 18,899,845 9,958,816

24. Capital and reserves

Share capital

Share capital according to the act of incorporation of the Company amounts to 58,016,571 lei,  is
divided into 580,165,714  shares  with nominal  value of  0.1 RON /  share  and is  the result  of  the
subscriptions  directly  made  to  the  share  capital  of  the  Company,  by  converting  into  shares  the
amounts  due  as  dividends  under  Law  no.  55/1995  and  the  effect  of  Law  No.  133/1996.  The
Company's shares are ordinary, indivisible, nominative, of equal value, issued in dematerialized form
and grant equal rights to their holders. All shares were subscribed and fully paid on 31.12.2016 and
31.12.2015. 
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24. Capital and reserves (continued)

Reconciliation  of  share  capital  according  to  IFRS  with  the  capital  according  to  the  articles  of
incorporation is presented below:

In RON
31 December

 2016
31 December

 2015

Statutory share capital 58,016,571 58,016,571
The effect of applying IAS 29 on share 
capital (hyperinflation) 631,852,524 631,852,524

Restated share capital 689,869,095 689,869,095

On  31.12.2016  the  number  of  shareholders  was  of  5.754.739  (31.12.2015:  5.761.728)  which  in
structure is as follows:

Number of
shareholders

Number of
shares

Amount
(lei) (%)

31 December 2016
Resident natural persons 5,752,643 250,564,376 25,056,437 43.19
Non-resident natural persons 1,797 2,511,680 251,168 0.43
Total natural persons 5,754,440 253,076,056 25,307,605 43.62

Resident legal persons 247 217,404,868 21,740,487 37.47
Non-resident legal persons 52 109,684,790 10,968,479 18.91
Total legal persons 299 327,089,658 32,708,966 56.38

Total  2016 5,754,739 580,165,714 58,016,571 100.00

31 December 2015
Resident natural persons 5,759,633 244,987,869 24,498,787 42.23
Non-resident natural persons 1,756 3,358,142 335,814 0.58
Total natural persons 5,761,389 248,346,011 24,834,601 42.81

Resident legal persons 279 215,771,544 21,577,154 37.19
Non-resident legal persons 60 116,048,159 11,604,816 20.00
Total legal persons 339 331,819,703 33,181,970 57.19

Total  2015 5,761,728 580,165,714 58,016,571 100.00

Reserve established under Law no. 133/1996 

The  reserve  related  to  the  initial  portfolio  was  established  following  the  application  of  Law no.
133/1996, as the difference between the value of the portfolio and the subscribed share capital of the
Company.  Reconciling of the reserve related to the initial portfolio according to the IFRS with that
applied according to accounting regulations up to the date of application of Regulation no. 39/2015 is
presented below:

In lei
31 December

 2016
31 December

 2015
Reserves from the application of Law no. 
133/1996 144,636,073 144,636,073
The effect of applying IAS 29 on reserve 
constituted after applying Law no. 133/1996 
(hyperinflation) 1,806,779,361 1,806,779,361
Reserves from the application of Law no. 
133/1996 - restated 1,951,415,434 1,951,415,434
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24. Capital and reserves (continued)
Hyperinflation effect  on shareholders'  equity in the amount of 631,852,524 lei and on the reserve
constituted after  applying Law no.  133/1996 in the amount of 1,806,779,361 lei  was recorded by
reducing  retained  earnings,  leading  to  a  cumulative  loss  of  the  effect  of  applying  IAS  29
(hyperinflation) on the elements of capital of 2,438,631,885 lei to 31.12.2015, which was maintained
at 31.12.2016.  

Legal reserves

Legal  reserves are constituted as required by law in the amount of 5% of the profits  recorded in
accordance with accounting regulations applicable to the level of 20% of the share capital, according
to the articles of association. Legal reserve value on 31.12.2016 is of 11,603,314 lei (2015: 11,603,314
lei).  In the financial years 2016 and 2015 the Company has not established legal reserves from the
profit, which reached 20% of the share capital, according to the articles of incorporation.
Legal reserves can not be distributed to shareholders.  

Dividends

During 2016 the Company declared dividends payment in the amount of 75,421,543 lei for the year
2015 (2015: 69,619,886 lei, dividends for the year 2014), respectively 0.13 lei/share for 2016 (2015:
0.12 lei/share).

During 2016 the Company recorded income dividends unclaimed for more than three years from their
date of chargeability for which the right to shares was extinguished by prescription in the amount of
42,009,606 lei (2015: 82,666,768 lei) according to the decisions of the general meeting.

Reserves from revaluation of financial assets available for sale

The reserve includes the cumulative net change in fair values of financial assets available for sale, the
date of their classification in this category until their derecognition or impairment. Deferred tax related
to these reserves is recorded on equity and inferred reserves of measuring financial assets available for
sale.

25. Other reserves

In lei 31 December
2016

31 December
2015

Other reseves 610,918,796 581,084,892

The effect of applyingIAS 29 on other reserves 1,806,779,361 1,806,779,361

Total 2,417,698,157 2,387,864,253

26. Result per share

In lei 31 December
2016

31 December
2015

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 101,271,377 132,405,011

Weighted average number of common 
shares 580,165,714 580,165,714

Basic earnings per share 0.1746 0.2282
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27. Guarantees granted

The Company does not have any guarantees given.

28. Environmental contingencies 

The  Company has  not  recorded  any provision  for  future  costs  on  elements  of  the  environment.
Management does not consider that the costs associated with these items as significant. 

29. The transfer price 

Tax legislation in Romania contains rules on transfer pricing between affiliates since 2000.

The current legislative framework defines the "market value" for transactions between related parties,
and the methods of transfer pricing. As a result, it is expected that the tax authorities initiate thorough
verifications of transfer pricing, to ensure that the taxable profit is not distorted by the effect of prices
charged in relationships with affiliates. 

The Company can not assess the outcome of such verifications.

30. Transactions and balances with parties in special relations

Subsidiaries of the Company

In accordance with the applicable law, the Company controls a total  of 11 issuers on 31.12.2016
(2015: 12 issuers).  All subsidiaries of the Company on 31.12.2016 and 31.12.2015 are located in
Romania.  For  this  percentage of  ownership of  the  Company is  no different  from the percentage
number of votes held.

Company name
Percentage owned by

SIF on 31.12.2016
- % -

Percentage owned by
SIF on 31.12.2015

- % -

ALIMENTARA S.A. SLATINA 52.24 52.24
TURISM PUCIOASA S.A. DAMBOVITA 69.22 69.22
PROVITAS S.A BUCURESTI 70.28 70.28
UNIVERS S.A. RM VALCEA 73.75 73.75
CONSTRUCTII FEROVIARE S.A.  
CRAIOVA

77.50 77.50

FLAROS S.A. BUCURESTI 81.04 81.04
ARGUS S.A. CONSTANTA 86.20 86.20
GEMINA TOUR S.A. RM VALCEA 88.29 88.29
MERCUR S.A. CRAIOVA 93.37 93.37
CONSTRUCTII MONTAJ 1 S.A.
CRAIOVA

- 96.56

COMPLEX HOTELIER DAMBOVITA S.A.
TARGOVISTE

99.94 99.94

VOLTALIM S.A. CRAIOVA 99.19 99.99

The disappearance during 2016 of its shareholding in Constructii Montaj 1 SA Craiova is determined
by its merger by absorption by Voltalim SA Craiova.
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30. Transactions and balances with parties in special relations (continued)

Associates of the Company 

On 31.12.2016 the Company holds more than 20% but not more than 50% of the share capital at a
total  of  eight  issuers  (2015:  10  issuers).  All  of  whom are  based  in  Romania.  For  these  issuers
percentage of ownership by the company is no different from the percentage number of votes held.

Company name
Percentage owned by

SIF on 31.12.2016
- % -

Percentage owned by
SIF on 31.12.2015

- % -

SANTIERUL NAVAL ORSOVA S.A. 21.21 21.13
MIRFO TRADING S.A. TG. JIU - 22.01
ELECTROMAGNETICA S.A. 25.40 25.25
MAT S.A. CRAIOVA 25.71 25.71
TURISM LOTUS FELIX S.A. BAILE FELIX 27.46 25.76
PRODPLAST S.A. BUCURESTI 27.55 27.53
ELECTRO TOTAL S.A. BOTOSANI 29.86 29.86
SINTEROM S.A. CLUJ-NAPOCA 31.63 31.63
LEMCOR S.A. CRAIOVA - 34.69
LACTATE NATURA S.A. TARGOVISTE 39.70 39.70

Disappearance during the year 2016 of the shareholding in Lemcor SA Craiova este is determined by
its merger by absorption by Voltalim SA Craiova. Mirfo Trading SA Tg. Jiu Company was decresed
from the portfolio due to its sale on a contract of shares sale, closed company.

Key management staff

31 December 2016

Board of Directors members: Tudor Ciurezu - Chairman, Anina Radu – Vice President, Cristian Busu,
Victor Capitanu, Nicolae Stoian, Carmen Popa, Paul – George Prodan.

Effective management: Tudor Ciurezu – General Manager, Anina Radu – Deputy General Manager.

31 December 2015

Board of Directors members: Tudor Ciurezu - Chairman, Anina Radu - Vice President, Cristian Busu,
Victor Capitanu, Nicolae Stoian, Carmen Popa, Paul – George Prodan.

Effective management: Tudor Ciurezu – General Manager, Anina Radu – Deputy General Manager. 

The Company has no contracted obligations on payment of pensions to former members of the Board
of Directors and management and so it has no accounted commitments of this kind.

The Company has not granted loans or advances (except for travel advances for work, justified in legal
term) to the members of the Board and management and has no accounted commitments of this kind.

The Company has not received and has not granted any guarantees in favor of related parties.

The  company  has  a  number  of  court  actions  arising  from  the  normal  course  of  business.  The
Company's management believes that these actions will not have a significant impact on the financial
statements of the Company. 
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31. Commitments and contingent liabilities
Court actions

On 31.12.2016, the Company's Legal Department were registered in state court a total of 33 cases, of
which:

- 22 cases - plaintiff;
-   5 cases - defendant;
-   1 case - intervener;
-   5 cases - in insolvency proceedings.

After their object, the causes are structured as follows:  
-   5 cases - companies in insolvency proceedings, as follows:

● in 4 cases the Company acts as unsecured creditor;
● in one case acts as contribution creditor.

- 11 cases – cancellation of  G.M.S decisions / cancellation of transactions in shares, where the
Company acts as plaintiff;

- 17 – other causes.
In bankruptcy cases, the most significant amount is recorded in the statement of assets of the company
Aro S.A. - 217.921 lei, representing dividends 1995, 1996, interest and court costs.  The other three
companies in which the Company is unsecured creditor are  Electrototal S.A. Botoșani, CCCF S.A.
București, Roprint S.A. Craiova.  
Regarding the cases where the Company acts as the plaintiff, having as subject the annulment of the
G.M.S. decisions, mainly concern: amendments to the articles of incorporation, incorporation of new
companies  with  contributions  in  kind,  acquisition assets,  transactions  in  shares,  merger,  decisions
adopted with breach of the limits of competence, among defendant companies being Corealis S.A.
Craiova,  Prodplast  S.A Bucuresti,  Contactoare  S.A.  Buzau,  Cerealcom  S.A.  Alexandria,  Banca
Comercială Română S.A. 
In "other causes" in which the Company acts as the plaintiff, are registered cases having diversified
subject: criminal complaint, foreclosures, claims, damages, complaints to enforcement by withholding
dividends payable, of which we illustrate: 
-  enforcement  to  recover  the  amount  of 603.516  lei,  representing  civil  damages  given  by  court
criminal  decision  in  case  no.11108/2/2007  -  theft  of  shares  committed  by Goga  Dan  Octavian,
Panaitescu Miron Victor, Negruţiu Claudiu Marius, obligaţi la plata în solidar.  jointly and severally
liable to pay. So far, was recovered the amount of 35.987 lei. Enforcement has been stopped for lack of
goods. 
- enforcement against the debtor A.V.A.S. (currently A.A.A.S.) to recover the amount of 633,567 lei,
according to the Civil Sentence no. 1581/21.10.2010, case no. 19477/3/2010, representing the amount
owed by A.A.A.S. to Retizoh S.A., respectively 70% of the value of a property restituted to former
owners.  This  company has  executed this  amount  from the  Company account,  making use  of  the
provisions applicable to joint and several liability. So far was recovered the amount of  7,875 lei and
was also distributed to the Company the amount of 35,565 lei from the sale price of the shares held by
A.A.A.S. to Biofarm S.A. București (for enforcement by other lenders), amount not received until the
reporting date -  31.12.2016.  The enforcement  continues.  A.A.A.S.  contested the sale  of  shares  at
Biofarm S.A. București, appeal upheld at first instance, the solution being appealed. 
-  cases  having as  subject  compensation for  failing the public  offering of  shares  in  application of
mandatory Art.  203 of Law 297/2004 (referring to the shares of Mobila Rădăuţi  S.A., Lacta S.A.
Giurgiu).  The  case  regarding  the  shares  to  Mobila  S.A.  Rădăuţi  is  on  enforcement  of  claims  of
executive  titles  obtained. The  case  regarding  the  shares  to  Lacta  SA Giurgiu,  after  the  favorable
settlement judgment obtained in the first court, the Court of Appeal upheld the appeals and ordered the
defendants to pay the plaintiff Geochis S.A. the amount of 8,676 lei representing court costs.  The
solution will be appealed. 
- in cases having as subject damages, under art. 210 of Law 297/2004, in contradiction with the major
shareholders of Sinterom S.A. şi Contactoare S.A. issuers,  the cases are pending, not being settled
irrevocable.
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31. Commitments and contingent liabilities (continued) 

In case no. 4395/114/2012, having as subject the obligation of the contactor to damages of Contactoare
S.A. as majority sharegolder at Sinterom S.A., after admission by the High Court of Cassation and
Justice of the  appeal promoted by the Company, the case was retried by Ploiesti Court of Appeal and
was  resolved  by  Decision  641  /  12.10.2016,  admitting  the  action  and  compelling  the  defendant
Sinterom S.A. to pay the amount of 368.804 lei, representing damages and 32,144 lei, court costs. The
decision was appealed by Contactoare S.A. Buzau, date of judgement to ICCJ – 08.03.2017.
In  case  no.  5756/279/2012,  having  as  subject  obligation  to  damage  of  the  Company  Serviciile
Comerciale Române S.A. Piatra Neamț, as a amajority shareholder at Contactoare S.A. Buzau,  the
claim was rejected and the judgment in first court and on appeal, the Company attacking the decisions
with appeal, date of judgement at Bacău Court of Appeal – 17.02.2017.  
The company also promoted during 2016 an action for monetary claims to compeal Cerealcom S.A.
Alexandria to pay the amount of 1,660,826 lei,  representing the value of the stake due to withdraw
from society, in accordance with Art. 134 of Law no. 31/1990 R, as amended and supplemented. The
cause is heared on 23.02.2017.

The cases in which the Company is the defendant, representing shares having as subject monetary
claims arising from the position of Director and / or administrators of the Company,  promoted by
Buzatu Florian Teodor and Popescu Carmen Ioana which at the reporting date - 31.12.2016 presents
the following situation:
- Case no. 6584/63/2014, plaintiff Buzatu Florian Teodor,  having as object monetary claims in the
amount of 1,758,550 lei and moral damages in the amount of 40,000 lei,  due to the fact that he was
removed  from his  position  in AGOA from the  date  of  29.04.2011.  Dolj  Court,  by Decision  no.
128/31.03.2015,  rejected  the  request  for  summons.  The  plaintiff  appealed,  upheld  by  Decision
667/01.10.2015 of the Court of Appeal Craiova, the court annulling the first court ruling and refer the
case back having the same court. The company appealed, which was rejected by the High Court of
Cassation and Justice. The case is referred back to the Court Dolj, with hearing on 23.02.2017.  
- Case no. 12919/215/2015, plaintiff Popescu Carmen Ioana, having as object the obligation ,,to do'',
respectively the obligation of the Company to refund the material guarantee constituted according to
the  Articles  of  Incorporation  of  the  Company for  exercising  the  membership  al  Consiliului  de
Administraţie,  of  the Board of Directors,  following the dismissal of this  according to the General
Meeting of Shareholders on 29.04.2011. By decision no. 337/15.01.2016, Craiova Court a rejected the
request, the decision being final by rejecting the appeal filled by the plaintiff, according to Decision
no. 767/08.11.2016.
- Case no. 22552/215/2015, plaintiff Popescu Carmen Ioana, having as object monetary claims in the
amount of 48,000 lei,  representing participation in profit  during the period 01.01.2011-29.04.2011
(date  on which she was revoked by AGOA from the position of  Administrator).  By decision no.
14446/20.11.2015, Craiova Court partially upheld the request, forcing the company to pay the sum of
17,969 lei. In this case, an appeal was filled both by the Company - 19.01.2016, and Popescu Carmen
Ioana - 04.02.2016.  The court allowed both appeals and held the case for retrial, date of judgement
02.03.2017.

During 2016,  there were no actions for annulment of decisions adopted by the General Meeting of
Shareholders of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A.
Administrator Financial manager

conf.univ.dr.ec. Ciurezu Tudor             ec. Sichigea Elena

_______________________ ________________

Radu Anina

_______________________
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STATEMENT 
 

according to the provisions of 

R.N.S.C. /F.S.A. Regulations no. 1/2006 

(as subsequently amended and supplemented) 

regarding issuers and operations with securities    

 

 We hereby confirm that, according to our knowledge, the annual accountant-

financial situation on 31.12.2016, prepared in accordance with applicable accountant 

standards, offers a correct image and according to reality of assets, bonds, financial 

position, profit and loss account of S.I.F. Oltenia S.A. and that the Report of the 

Board of Administrators contains a fair analysis of the company development and 

performance, as well as a description of the main risks and uncertainties specific to the 

activity developed.    

 

 

 

 

associate prof.PhD. ec. Tudor CIUREZU    Anina RADU                          ec. Elena  SICHIGEA 

 

President    Deputy General Manager           Economic Manager 

 












